- ' CASE 1960: Application of GULF fory
" / : approval of the NORTH CAVERNS UNIT k|
e AGREEMENT ~ EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO. ,
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DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CH 3.66%91

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

BEFORE THE
OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Santa Fe, New Mexico =

T May 11,1960 T

EXAMINER HEARING

IN THE MATTER OF:

Application of Gulf 0il Corporation for
approval of a unit agreement, Appli-
cant, in the above-styled cause, seeks
approval of its North Caverns Unit
Agreement, which unit will embrace ap-
proximately 6,303 acres of Federal and
State land in Townships 22 and 23 South,
Range 24 East, Eddy County, New Mexico,
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Case 1960

BEFORE: Daniel S, Nutter, Examiner.

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING

MR. PAYNE: "™Application of Gulf 0il Corporation for
approval of a unit agreement.®

MR, KASTLER: 1If the Commission please, I am Bill
Kastler from Rosweli, New Mexico appearing on behalf of Gulf 0il
Corporation in Case 1960, Our two witnesses will be R, H. Cress
and Mr. J. P. Cavanaugh.

If the Examiner please, we are going to present through the
first witness, Mr. Cress, four exhibits which have been labeled
Exhibits A, B, C and D, but which should be stamped, and ap=-
prooriately, exhibits,as ExhibitsNo. 1, 2, 3 and 4.,

(Witnesses sworn,)




":"FM ”

e

A

AN AL SRSy s g7 TN AP A PRI e 0

.5

i.

.“f_‘

3 T

e LA

e

H
a4
-

S
DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

PHONE CM 3.6691

ALBURQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

R He CRESS

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as

follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, KASTLER:

Q Would you please state your name?
A My name is Robert Cress,
Q By whom are you employed and where are you employed?

A I'm employed by the Gulf Oil Corporation in Roswell,
New Mexico,
- Q What*is your bbSition?
A My present position is District Exploration Geologist.
Q Have you previously appeared befofe the New Mexico Oil

Conservation Commission and qualified as an expert- geological

witness?
A No, sir,
Q Mr, Cress, would you please state what your qualifica-

tions are, where you attended school and briefly outline the nature¢
of your experience in petroleum geology?

A I graduated from the University of Minnesota in 1949
with a Bachelor's degree in geological engineering. I was em-
ployed by the Gﬁlf 0il Corporation as a geologist in 1950 and have

worked with them in that capacity to the present time,

Q Where have you been employed by Gulf?
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N . T have been employed in various areas ol Texas and New
: ;ii . - Mexico, the last three years being in Roswell.
B 'Q  Are you familiar with the lands in Eddy County under
l: o . | lease by Gulf and in the general vicinity of Townships 22 South
] A : | and 23 South, 24 East?
: ] 2 R
- z A Yes, I am,

i

Q I call your attention now to exhibit marked Exhibit No.

....;..;(

1 in Case No. 1960.

S

e 1 e b AR by 8 1

MR. KASTLER: Mr. Nutter, are the witness? qualifica=-

tions accepted? -
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MR. NUTTER: Yes, sir, please proceed.
Q Would you please refer to Exhibit No. 1 and explain

what is shown on there that is pertinent to Gulfts application for

.

approval of this unit?

u..\Mm
- '
| I

A Exhibit No. 1 is a regional plat that shows the proe=
posed unit oﬁtlined with respect to geographic locations and

major geologic features. You will notice that we are located ap~

e s b et P M ER
< e R

Lood
DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

Q
;; ; prcximately ten miles northwest of White City and the same distanc
i N )
- z from the outcrop of the Capitan Reef which is shown with a heavy
f‘ § inked line on the plat.
% ~ < This reef marks the west and northwest extremity of the

Delaware Basin in Capitan time. The plat further shows the loca-

tion of nearby deep dry holes.

L__,__Ihs_nnih_anea,ia“lnnanadmin_anﬂapea of fairly rugged relief

W
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with approximately 250 feet of reliefl across the unit outline,

o —
= | ;Alrpfwl

- Q What is the size of the proposed unit area?

;:'A}: A The proposed unit area is approximately 6,302 acres,
. 3 Q Is this a unit unitized for exploration?
g A VYes,WSir, it is.
§ Q ‘Would you identify the surrounding wells that are shown

on Exhibit 17

A We might turn to Exhibit B which has the name of the well
and the formation it bottomed in.. To the northeast of the unit

area the Guadalupe Foot Hills, the Phillips No. 1 Guadalupe Foot

Hills was drilled in Section 20 to a total depth of 13,034, The
test bottomed in Ellenberger and after testing water was plugééd

and abandoned. Very slight shows in the Pennsylvanian encouraged

Phillips to reenter this-in 1958. They were not successful in com;
pleting from these zones and the well was plugged.

To the north of the unit area, the Northern Natural Gas No. 1
McKittrick Hills Federal in Section 23 of 24 East, reached a total

depth of 11,890 feet in sediments of Devonian age, and after

DEAR\'NLEY-MEIER REPORTING,SERVICE, Inc.

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

testing salt water the well was plugged and abandoned.

MR. NUTTER: Salt water in the Devonian?
~ A Yes, sir., I might mention that a test of the Lower
Pennsylvanian sands, in testing the Lower Pennsylvanian sands they

tested a zone for 800,000 cubic feet of gas. Thisdecreased to ap~

p —proximately 74;000-cubie-feet—of-gas—at—the—end—ofthe testy—— —
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PAGE §

Devonilan. They. plugged back to 10,035 feet in the Pennsylvanian _

, South, Range 23 East?

To the west of the unit area the Humble No., 1 Bandana Polnt
well drilled to the Ellenberger, the total depth of the well was
12,262 feet, They tested water in the Ellenberger and in the
and completed through perforations around 9800 feet for a gas well
of a million eight hundred thousand cubic feet of gas per day.

Q  That Bandana Point well is in Sextion 13 of Township 23

A Yes, sir. The area is complicated by facies changes in
“the Permian as‘the basin sediments enter the opening and pass into
the reef and backAreef’faeies. Youtll notice or our Exhibit A we

have a large bulge in the Capitan Reef, and this anomalous de~
veloﬁmeﬁt of the reef from its narrow linear trend"suggested to us
a structure on the concave side of the bulge.

Q You have referred to Exhibit A and Exhibit B and you are
intending to refer ié Exhibits 1 and 2 respectively?

A Yes, sir, |

Q ‘A1l right, proceed. Is there anything further that can
be shown or can be seen or described in commection with Exhibit
No. 1?

A Yes, sir, I would mention 140 feet of contour regional

dip between the Phillipts Guadalupe Foot Hills well and the Nor-

thern Natural Gas No. 1 McKittrick Hills well at the Devonian

“‘ieveir"“Themregiona}—dip~inﬂthewareamis—aﬁprexéma%eiy—zgg-£ee%_—*_J
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to the mile to the east into the Delaware Basin, This countef
regional dip and the large bulge on the reef are the primary

“tne prospect.

Q One other question concerning Exhibit No., 1 or other
facts that are not particularly shown, how near is the nearest known
Devonian producing well? |

) A The nearest Devonian productlon is in 18-31 in the Shugart=-
Devonian Field, I believe the name of that fggid is, I don't know
how far it 1s, but it*s a fair distance,

Q Now, . calling your attention back to Exhibit No. 2, would
you state what is shown in the dashgd lines there and describe whepe
the proposed unit. area is situated on this plat?

A Exhibit 2 shows the outline of the proposed unit area
in hashered lines, and it is situvated in Townships 22 South,

24, East and Townships 23 South and 2l East. The plat further showh
seismic control in the area., We show it in a southwesterly dir-
ection in search of our high from the Guadalupe Foot Hills unit
well and encountered a turnover that crested in Section 12, having
a north=south turnover, We then shot an east-west line to deter-
mine the dip in that direction.

We developed a strong turnover cresting along the west line

of Section 11, This control indicated to us a generally, a large

generally north-south trending structure with 300 feet of enclosure

—a%-%he~80ne—899ings~%e#eimand—§QQ—£ee%“e£—eneiesupe—a%—%he—uevgniah
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level., The basis for the unit boundary was the minus 6100 foot
contour on the Devonian map, this is on Exhibit D.

Q Or Exhibit 4.

A Yes, sir. This is the lowest closing contour on our

feature,

Q At minus 6100 feet?

PHONE CH 3.-6691

A Yes, sir. I might mention in connection with the seismigq

work, 1t was extremely expensive and it cost Gulf approximately
$10,000 a mile to Shoot the facies changes, in the Permian the rugs

ged topography and the dense outcropping dolomite influenced or

modified the results. We thought to fully shoot it out it would
take ét least ten miles more work and this would cost in,the;
neighborhood of apbfoximately $i00,000. Our estiﬁéted cost for
this test is‘approximately $280,000 and we felt it waé more prudwe'rifmj
to evaluate the area by drilling the wildcat test than toﬁattempt
vfurther exploratory work in that we had seismic evidence o:f this
large north-south trending featuré as well és geologic evidence

of this structure,

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

Q Now, Mr. Cress, as I understand it, Exhibit 4, which is

also labeled Exhibit D, is the structure on top of the Devonian

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEX!CO

that you have developed from the seismic control shown in Exhibit

No., 2, is that correct?

A Yes, it is. This is at an approximate Devonian horizon.

Q The enclosure of ‘minus 6100 feet is roughly the area
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U.5.G.S. in connection with Gulfts petition for the approval?

PAGE 8
[ that 1s endlosed by Thé propqsed unit area?
A Yes, sir, it is,
Q Now, whete is your unit test well in relation with this
on Exhibit &?
A Our unit test well is located in the northwest of the

southwest corner of Section 11, Township 23 South, Range 24 East.

Q Thatts sp indicated on Exhibit D or Exhibit No. 47

A Yes,‘sir; it is.

Q Now,aﬂlﬁéypuf attention briefly to Exhibit C or Exhibit
No. 3.- What is,shékn on that exhibit?

A Exhibit 5 shows contours on Bone Springs horizon, which
is a Permian horizén, and shows a structure with’appr§xima£elyn300
feet of closures, ’A seismic structure with approximately 300 feet
of closure at this level,

Q Has this geological information been presented to the

A Yes, si£.

Q Prelimiﬁary designation and finél designation of this
unit area?

A Yes, it has,

Q That has been accompanied with a cénfidential report?

A Yes, it has.

Q That report containing substantially the same facts and

matters thatyonhave testi




g AN L

e AR B

ey

=1 =8

o

“ .
it e e iR : L et
e TR R L R e

=

P

e 4

s |

EARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

, Inc.

PHONE CH 3-6691

Yes, sir, it does.
Has the UeSeGeSe jndicated ivts approval?

A Yes, 1 was snformed by our Law Department and our Land

Department that we had received‘fiﬁal anproval on May 10th by

phone.
Q Thatts final approval? A Yes, sir.
Q ﬁas ﬁhis same geological confidential.report and this
material also been presented to the Commissioner of Public Lands?
A Yes, it has.
| Q H;s phe test well been commenced, Mre Cress?

A Yes, sir, it has and it is presently drilling at approxi

- mately 10,500 feet.

Q@  And what 1S the objective depth of that well?

A The objective depth of the test 18 11,750 feet and the
objective horizon is the Devoniane.

Q  You are now at or below 10,500 feet?

A Yes, Sire

Q In your opinion would the unit agreement, the North
caverns Unit Agreement, 23 outlined, provide for, fully for explora
tion in this area and in the event of production would it provide
adequately for the orderly development of the reservoir?

A Yes, s8ir, it would. |

Q Were Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and b prepared by you or at your

direction and under your supe:!ision?
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PAGE 10

A Yes, sir, they were.

direct testimony.

witnass?

MR, PAYNE: Yes, sir.
MR, NU?TER: Mr. Payne.

GROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR, PAYNE:

A >No, sir, there arent't.
MR, KASTLER: Other than the one
A Other than the one thatt!s presen

Q Yes., Just seismic holes? A

unit agreement contains?
MR, KASTLER: Yes, he is.
MR, PAYNE: Thank you.

BY MR, NUTTER:

A Yes, sir. It's Pennsylvanian an

as to cover the Devonian structure and pro

| of the structure by the unit operator?

MR, KASTLER? This concludes the direct examination on

MR, NUTTER: Does anyoné have any questions of the

Q "Are there any wells on this unit drilled to any formatioh?

tly drilling.

Yes, sir.

Q Is your other witness going to testify more as to what the

Q - Is this considered a Pennsylvanian prospect also?

d Devonian prospect.

Q In your opinion, is the unit outline sufficiently large

vide adequate control
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DIRECT EXAMINATION

- PAGE 11
;f A Yes, sir; in my opinion it is.
¢ { Q In your opinion is the unit outline unnecessarily large

\igfg toeedlbse an undue amount of acreage?

" .ﬂ ’ ] A No, sir, |

g:f é Q Other than what is on the structure?

’; § A No, sir, in my opinion it is not.

%:; MR. NUTTER: Any further questions of £he witness? He

»gxﬁ may be excused. |

o
»; -~ (Witness excused,)

PO U | .
;jéjj‘ MR. KASTLER: Our nextkﬁipness_is Mr. J. P, Cavanaugh. ;
B £ J. P, CAVANAUGH
. §{3 -called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testified as
ﬁ % follows:

B!

BY MR, KASTLER:

el bod

SRR

Q For the record, will you please state your name, where

you reside, by whom you are employed and what your position is?

L
1

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTINGEISERVICE, Inc.

g A My name is J. P, Cavanaugh, I reside in Roswell, New
; Mexico, I'm employed by Gulf 0il Corporaéion in the Roswell Dis~
E § trict as é land man,
@E g Q Have you previously testified before the New Mexico 0il
,; Conservation Commission?
3 j’ ; f; A No, sir, I have not.
f L Q What has been your experience as a land man, Mr,
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PAGE 12

Cavanaughé

A My e#perience as land man started with Humble 0il and
Refining Company in therGulf Coast Division with Warren Petroleum
Corporation,

Q In what year?

A In the year of 1939, '40 and *41, fPrior to my war

.service I returned to Humble 0il and Refining Company in 1945 and

in 1950 I was employed by Warren“Petroleum Corporation in the Gulf
Coast Division, the Abilene District and finally the Roswell
pistrict. Three years ago I vas employed by Gulf: 0il Co;péfgtion
in the Roswell District as a land man. With Warren in the Abilene
and Roswell Districts I was District Land Man for them,

Q  Mr. Cavanaugh, are you familiar with the North Caverns
Unit Agreement?

A Yes, sir, I am,

Q | Were you instrumental in getting the unit agreement put
together, agreed to by a number of parties, and executed?

A Yes, sir, I was, Exploration units are basically my
concern with Gulf Oil Corporation in the Roswell District.

(Whereupon Gulf*s Exhibit No. 5
was marked for identification.)

Q Do you have a plat for introduction as an exhibit here,
and may that be submitted for identification and stamping and so

forth?
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PAGE 13

-acres of State of New Mexico land, and it does not inrclude any

K Xs Exhibit No. 5%

-l

Q Calling your attention to Exhibit No. 5, does that showe
closure of ;he proposed‘Nofth Caverns unit area?
o A Yes, sir, it does in the haShe& outline,

Q What is the status of lands there as to ownership,
whether Federal, State‘or fee lands? |

A This unit_includes 5,669.99 acres of Federal land, 632.64

fee land.

Qﬁy Are the respective owners of working interest leases:
shown on this plat, which is Exhibiv Né. 5%

A Yes, sir, they are, on the respective tr#cts as owned.

Q Briefly, would you recapitulate the number or names of
the working interest owners in this unit?

A Yes, sir. Gulf Oil Corporation is shown on the plat
under their respective tract followed by Norﬁhern Nétural Gas -
Producing Company, Phillips Petroleum Company, Superior 0il
Company, Hondo 0il and Gas Company, Tidewater Oil Company, Texaco

Seaboard, Inc. and A, C., Holder,

Q Are the lease expiration dates also shown on Exhibit No.
57

A Yes, sir, they are,

Q And as well, does Exhibit No. 5 show lease serial numbers

and whether the leases are Federal or State leases?
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Q
Agreement
pfescribe

R

Q

A

Q

égreement

A

Q

rect?

A

Q

A

‘Yes, sir, it does,

Yes, sir, it is.

are one, to share in the cost of development by the working intere
est ownersj secondly, getting into the rbyalty ownership to fofm
a participating area, after which the initial test well or any

succeeding wells are completed,

provides for a fixed working interest participation, is that cor=-

each and every well drilled under the unit operating agreement,

parties may undertake the drilling of any wells?

And the respective lease ownerships?
Yes, sir, it does,

Mr. Cavanaugh, is this a usual type of Federal Unit
following closely to the code of Fedéralrregulations that
the form of the unit agreement 1tself?
Yes, sir. |

The purpose of this unit is for exploration?

What are the safeguards or the provisions in the unit

contained for the drilling of an initia1~test well?

In other words, as I understand it, this unit agreement

Yes, it does. A fixed working interest participation on

Does it also contain provisions whereby less than all

Yes, sir, it has a provision included in the unit
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discovery or before initial discovery for the drilling of_more

“of the parties who are subséquently taken in by an éxpansion or

6perating agreement for non consent wells to be drilled,

Q Does it provide for further development after inicial

wells?

A ‘Yes, sir, it does.
Q Does it substantially accord correlative rights for the

owners of all interests in the unit area? ;

A Yes, sir, I believe it does.

Q Doe§ it provide for subsequent joinder of any partiés
who have not joined?

A Yes, sir, it does.

Q Does it provide for the subsequent joinder or the joinde:

enlargemgnt of the unit area?

A Yeé, sir, it doss,
Q Does it as well provide for the coqtraction of the unit
area for failure to develop?

A‘ Yes, sir, it does.

Q ﬁow many of the working interest owners have signéd and

committed themselves or their companies to this unit agreement?

pe.

A One hundred percent, or all of them.

Q Are there any overriding royalty ownerships?

A Yes, sir, there are overriding royalty ownerships that
affect Federal land.
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o G There are ho overriding royalty ownerships affecting

B
; State lands?
R A No, sir,
- = Q In all, how many owners of record rof:. overriding royalty
- x or production payment interests are there?
~ v )
Iil . -
f £ A . There are probably eleven.
L Q Have all eleven parties been offered the opportunity

i d

of consenting to and ratifying this unit agreement?

A Yes, sir, by registered mail,

|

Q Have any of them replied?

By j

A Yes, sir, all with the exception of three parties have

A

replied, four have replied in the negaiive, four have replied in

g"@nr

. s TS s,
i “ N
. . N N - . N .
. 3 : o -
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the affirmative, However, of the four that have replied in the

R REPORTING SERVICE, Ine.

affirmative, one instrument will have to be resubmitted for proper

ES
Eg legal procedure, |
Eé Q Do you have copies of the consents and ratifications sub}
Eg . mitted to Gulf as unit operator by those Qverriding royalty or
;% Sg § production payments owners desiring to join the unit?
- _ % A Yes, sir. If the Commission please, we would éppreciate
i S
- g submitting photostatic copies of the originals., The originals
544 ' : will remain in our files,

MR. PAYNE: Thatts all right, Mr, Cavanaugh,

MR, KASTLER: All right, these are verifax copies,

In _connection with the royalty participation, how is that

o

>,
ot )
®
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© PAGE 17

throughout the unit share in one~eighth of the production?

A No, sir, the royalty owners within the participating

P W N

area share in the production from the well tﬁé€7§WWitﬁiﬁwanS"PaFB”%"W"’mw“wwm* 

ticipating area,
Q Does the unit agreement provide that the participating
area will be agreed upon and declared as a matter of agreement

between the working interest owners, representatives of the U.S.G.$.,

representatives of the Commissioner of Public Lands and repfésenta
tives of the Oil Conservation Commissi§n?
A Yes, sir. Within the month that the weli is completed.
Q Or as soon thereafter as practical?
A Yes, sir.
Q Was Exhibit No. S‘prepared by you or under your dir-
ection and supervisioh?
A Yes, sir, it was,
MR, KASTLER: I have no further questions on direct )
testimony at this time,
‘MR. NUTTER: Does anyone have any questions?
MR, PATNE: Yes,
MR, NUTTER: Mr, Payne.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR, PAYNE:

0 Mr. Cavanaugh, does this unit agreement contain a

. L0 1
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pacE 18

segregation clause as to the Sfifé”ﬁﬁa”Féaé?aI'Iﬁﬁa.

A The gegregation of any Federal lease committed to this
agreement {s covered by fourth paragraph in 17 (b) of the act as

amended by the act of July 29 1954, (68 Statutes 583, 585.) That*t

_on page 18 of the unit agreement.

MR, KASTLER: That would apply o Federal segregation
howevere Are Stﬁte 1eases to be segregated as well?
A Yes, sir,»I believe they &aree
: MR;‘NUTTER: Paragraph (1) on 18 1 thinke.
Q (By Mp. Payne) Now, Mr. Cavanaugh, did you gestify that
the 0oil Gonservation.Cémmissiog\also has to approve the partici-
pating area?

A 1t is subject to the approval; gire.

Q Well, now, where is that in the"unit agreement?

A "The‘parties,hereto, including the State Commission, agre
that all powers and authority vested in the State Commission in an
b} any provisions of this agreement are vested in the State Come
mission and shall be exercised by jt pursuant to the provisions of
the laws uf the State of New Mexico and subject in any case to
appeal or judicial review as may now or nereafter be provided by
the laws of the State oi New Mexico.™

Q Is that provision consistent with pafagraph 11 on page

11 relative to the participation after discovery?

_language 40 2
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PHONE CH 3-6691 |

Q The language in this paragraph as to the effect that

only the supervisors of the U.5.G.S. and the Commissioner of Pub111

Lands need to approve a participating area., Let's see, the second

full p&fagraph on page 12, the State Commission élong iiggﬁthﬁ,\
supervision and the State Commissioner is givn"-authorépf to im;
pound royalties and in so establishing ayparticipat{;; area I be~
lieve it is.our’pfocedure to consult or submit same to the 0il
Conservation Commission, is that right, Mr. Kastler?

MR. KASTLER: Well, off the record.

(Whereupon a discussion was held off the record,)

MR. KASTLER: Back on the record.  Mr. Cavanaugh, in the
event of the establishment of a participating area, would Gulf 0Oil
Corporation, as the unit operator, confer with the State 0il Con=-
servation Commission as to the participating area to be declared?

A Yes, sir, it would.

Q (By Mr. Payne) Mr. Cavanaugh, what happens here if you
get production before the appropriate parties have approved your
unit agreement? As I understand it, your well is at 10,500 now;
is thét rigﬁt?

A Yes, sir, it is. However, prior to the commencement of
this well we had one hundred percent agreement as to the cost.

MR. KASTLER: By the working interest owners.

,
5

A We did not run any risk in commencing this well,
0 As vour participating area does that contain a |
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Commission might issue would be made retroactive to be dated

retroactive provision That it reldates back to the time of first— ]

producticn?
A Yes, sir.

MR. KASTLER: Might I state-for the recofd that the
effective date of the entire instrumeﬂt is to be the date of final
approval by the U.,S.G.S., and inasmuch as we have been notified
by telephone that the U. S. Geologicel Survey Director yesterday

approved our unit agreement, that any order. the 0il Conservation

effective May 10 or to be dated the date that the Commissioner of

U.S.G.S. finally approved the unit., |
MR. PAYNE: So that would take care of the allocation of

any production that might accrue prior to actual approval by all

these parties?

MR, KASTLER: Yes, it would, and the agreement would as
well because the effective date would have occurred prior to
production, |

MR, NUTTER: In other words, this élause in'this unit
agreement that provides that the initial participating area would
be effective as of the date of completion of the well or the ef=-
fective date of the unit agreement would apply as the effective
day of the unit agreement is May the 10th regardless of any sub-

sequent aoprovals that may come after this?
MR. KASTLER: Yes.




E- PAGE 2]
o MR, NUTTER: The effective date will be May 1Oth?
} |- : .
r L] MR, KASTLER: That will be the effective date of the unif
K S : .
:f'__ i i agreement, yes, The production, the allocation of production is
o “"‘ 8 otherwise provided for, but is, of course, provided for either
3 _. 5 within the unit agreement or the unit operating agreement,
P ¥ 4 ,

. g 2 MR. NUTTER: I think the unit agreement provides that the
‘v:;:‘;. . Ie ?~“ N B :
et i effective date of any revision of any participating area will be

!“w V 1)
3 ‘ § the first of the month in which is obtained the knowledge or ine

N
oA m

R B = formation on which the revision is predicated?
R 1
: % MR. KASTLER: That is correct.

N f |

: éz E: MR, NUTTER: That would take care of subseqQuent ex=

a8 I~
p Ul S pansions?

oy o MR. KASTLER: And I don't see any problems in connection

’ i;g ESJ with that. I would like to state further for the record that we

~

: § E g appear to be beyond the fret or worry now of not having the unit
i E‘ : finally approved at the time we completed our initial test well,

‘ gﬁ < . | Ssubject of course to the approval of the (il Conservation Commissi¢n,
> %5 :é § we do most earnestly solicit your approval. I wish to state also
%tﬁ; Q ; that the Commissioner of Public Lands has only tentatively given
3, - g its approval, basing their actual approval somewhat upon the

- ) condition that you approve it.
- MR, NUTTER: In other words, you have tentative approval
from the Commissioner of Public Lands?
) MR, KASTLER: Yes.,
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MR. NUTTER: You have tentative pIus Final approval frofm

the U.S.G.S. and we're having a hearing today for the third one.
Mr, C#vanaugh, you stated that the Exhibit 5 showed the expiration
date of the various leases. What is the expiration;date of Lease
A I improperly stated that, the OB6176, that the exhibit
shows an expiration date, However, thaﬁ date is November 17,
1969.
MR. NUTTER: It?s not about to run out then, is it?
A That, however, is shown on Exhibit B of the Unit Operat-
ing Agreemeﬁt.
MR. NUTTER: Any further queStions‘of Mr. Cavanaugh?
He may be excuséd. |
(Witness excused.)
MR. KASTLER: I move that Exhibits Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 and
»5 be entered into evidence.
MR. NUTTER: Gulfts Exhibits 1 through 5 will be entered,
-Do yourhave anything furthef, Mr. Kastle;? ;
'MR. KASTLER: No, sir, I haven't,
MR. NUTTER: Poes anyone‘have anything furthe: f~» Case

19607 We will take the case under advisement and take a fifteen

minute recess. 1 do hered¥ celc

a complete TeCOT
< T W&
the Examine® hearing 19 e .

peasd by me Mo

IR issiolr
hi;,o 01l conservation Conl
New Noeadl
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
‘ : 385
COUNTY OF BERNALILLO )

,,,,,,,,,,,, I, ADA DEARNLEY, Court Reporter, do hereby certify that the
foregoing and attached transcript of proceedings beforé the New
Mexico 0il Conservation Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico, is a
true and correct record to the best ofjmy knowledge, skill an&
ability,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have affixed my hand and notarial seal

this day of May, 1960,

My commission expires:

June 19, 1963.
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with approx ma

on Exhibit 1?

pleting from these

Q What 1s the size of the proposed unit area?
‘A The proposed unit area is approximately 6,302 acres.

Q Is this a il unitized for exploration?

A Yes, sir.

of veliefl EETSEE”EﬁE””nit 6ﬁttt

A Yes sir, 1t 1is.

- Q Would you jdentify the gurrounding wells that are ghown

A We might turn Lo Exhibit B ‘which has the nameé of the wel
and the formation itv bottomed in, To the northeast of the un1t>
area the Guadalupe Foob Hills the Phillips No. 1 GQuadalupe Foot
' Hills was drilled in section 20‘to a total depth of 13,03k. The
test bottomed 1n £1lenberger and after testing water was plugged
‘and abandoned; Very slight shows 1n the Pennsylvanian encouraged

‘?hillips to reenter this in 1958, They were not successful in com

zones and yhe well was plugged.

_To the north of the unit area; the Northern Natural Gas No. 1
McKivtrick Hills Federal in Section 23 of 2i East, peached 2 total
depth of 11,890 feet in sediments of Devonian age, and after.
yesting salt water the well was plugged and abandoned.

MR, NUTTER S Salt water in the Devonian?

1 might mention that a test of the Lower

Pennsylvanian sands, in gesting the Lower Pennsylvanian sands the
tested a zone for 800, 000 cubic feet of gase This decreassd to 8P~

~-.oaa—ea54e~£ee%.g£~gasﬁaxﬁxhe,end,of_she,nasnn__,

&)
&E/
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To the west T of the —alt area the

yell drilled to the 'Ellenberger, the rotval depth of the well was
‘12;£62‘feet; They‘tested water in the Ellenberger and in the
pevonian. They plugged pack to 10,035 feet in the Pe nnsvlvanian
and completed through perforations around 9800 feelb for & gas well
of a million eight hundred thousand cubic feet of gas per daye.

Q» That Bandana Point woll is in Section 13 of Township 23
gouth, Range 23 gast?

A Yes, sire The area is complicated py facies changes 1in
the Permian'és the basin sediments enter the opening and pass into
the reef and pack reef facles. Youtll notice on our Exhibit A we
have a large vulge in the Capitan Reef, and this anomalous de~-
yelopment of the reef from ivs narrow linear trend suggested to us
a structure on the concave side oi the bulge.

Q You have referred to Exhibit ‘A and Exhibit B and you are
1ptending to refer 10 Exhibits 1 and 2 respectively?

A Yes, SiT.

Q A1l right, proceed. 1s there anything further that can
pe shown or can pe seen or described in connection with Exhibit
No. 1?

A Yes, Sire 1 would mention 140 feetb of contour regional
dip between the Phillip's Guadalupe Foot Hills well and the Nor-

thern Natural gas No. 1 McKittrick Hills well at the Devonian




- ;
. ~ PAGE 6
: to the mile to the east into the Delaware Basin., This counter
‘ *¥4¢~f-wu~;}ww : ! regional dip and the large bulge on the reef are the primary
L geologic basis for the prospect.
‘ n;" = Q One other question concerning Exhibit No. 1 or qther
&t ? g facts that are not particularly shown, how near is the nearest knovn
3 : z ,
o : Devonian producing well?

Devonian Field, I believe the name of that'field is, I don't know

how far it is, but it's a fair distance.

Q Now, calling your attention back to Exhibit No, 2, would

the proposed unit area is situated on this plat?
A Exhibit 2 shows the outline of the proposed unit area

in hashered lines, and it is situated in Townships 22 South,

seismic control in the area. We show it in a southwesterly dire

ection in search of our hign from the Guadalupe Foot Hills unit

well and encountered a turnover that crested in Section 12, having

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

a northe-south turnover. We then shot an east-west line to deter=-

mine the dip in that direction,
e Ve developed a strong turnover cresting along the west line

d to w8 a generally, a large

o
(D

C of Section 11, Thiis contirol indica

{

vou state what is shown in the dashed lines there and describe where

24, East and Townships 23 South and 24 East. The plat further show+

A The nearest Devonian production is in 18«31 in the Shugart-

( generally north~south trending structure with 300 feet of enclosur

( - “—at—the—Bone-Springs—level-and-500- fest—of enclosure at the De

W
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Tevel, The basis for the unit boundary was the minus 6100 foot

contour on the Devonian map, this 1s on Exhibit D,

Q Or Exhibit 4.

A Yes,,sir.»kThis is the lowesp closing contour on our

feature,

Q At minus 6100 feet?

A Yes, sir, I might mention in connection with the seismid

work, it was extremely expensive and it cost Gulf approximately

$10,000 a mile to shoot the facies changes, in the Permian the rugd

ged topogravhy and thé dénse'éutcropping dolomite influenced or
modified the fesults. ‘We thought to fully shoot it out it would
take at least ten miles mofe work apd this would éost in the
neightorhood of_approximately $100,000. Our estimated cost for
this test 1s approximately 3280;000 and we felt it was more prudent
to evaluate the area by drilling the wildcat test than tozattempt
further exploratory work in that we had seismic evidence of this
large north-south tfending feature as well as geologic evidence
of this structure,

Q Now, Mr. Cress, as I understand it, Exhibit 4, which is
also labeled Exhibit D, is the structure on top of the Devonian
‘that you have developed from the seismic control shown in Exhibit

No. 2, is that correct?

A Yes, it is, This is at an approximate Devonian horizon,

Q The eaclosure of minus 6100 feet is roughly the area

rd

LR,
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[TRAT Tsaniosed ~by the proposed untt-areat —
A Yes, sir, it is,.

Q Now,-where is your unit test well in relation with this

- 6n_EiE_1b«ft | : . ‘ )

A Our unit test well is 1ocgted in the northwest of the
' southwest corner of Section 11; Township 23 South,“Range 2l Eaét.

Q Thap's so indicated on Exhibit D or Exhibit No, 47

A Yés,_sir, it 1s. |

Q Now,é&ﬂiﬁiyour'attention briefly to Exhiﬁit C or Exhibit
No. 3. What is shown on that exhibit?

A Exhiblt 3 shows contours on Bone Springs horizon; which
is a Permian herizon, and shows a structure with approximately 300
feet of closures, A seismic structure with avoroximately 300 feet
of closure at this level,

Q Has this geologicai information been presented to the
UeS.GeS+ in connection with Gulf?s petition for the approval?

A Yes, sir.

Q Preliminary designation and final designation of this -

‘unit area?
A Yes, it has,
Q That has been accompanied with a confidential report?

A Yes, it has,

Q That report containing substantially the same facts and

T matters that you have testified-to-here?
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A Yes, sir; it does,

Q Has the U.,S.0.5. indicated it's avproval?

A Yes, I was informed by our Law Department and our Land
Department that we hadfreceived final approval on May 10th by
phone, |

Q Thatts final approval? A Yes, sir,

Q Has this éame geological confidential report agd‘this
material also been presented to the Commissioner of Public Lands?

A Yes, it has,” |

Q Has the test well been commenced, Mr, Cress?

A Yes, sir, it has and it is presently drilling at approxis
mately 10;500 feet,

| Q And what 1s the objective depth of that well?

A The ébjective depth of the test is 11,750 feet and the
objective horizon is the DeVOhian.

Q You are now at or below 10,500 feet?

A Yes, sir.

Q In your opinion would the unit agreement, the North
Caverns Unit Agreement; as outlined, provide for, fully for explora
tion in this area and in the event of production would it provide
adequately for the orderly development of the reservoir?

A Yes, sir, it would.

Q Were Exhibite 1, 2, 3 and 4 prepared by you or at you

direction and under your suvervision?
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SR A Yes, slr, they were.

P ' A
o ‘ MR. KASTLER: This concludes the direct examination on

direct pestimony.

MR.‘NUTTER: Does anyone have any questions of the

witness?

PHONE CH 3-6691

MR, PAYNE$ Yes, sir.
MR, NUTTER: Mr. Payne.
- CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR, PAYNE?

Q Are there any wells on this unit drilled to any formaﬁidh?
A No, sir;/there>aren't. |
MR, KASTLER: Other than the one -
A Other than the one that's presently drilling.
Q Yes, dJust seismic holes? A Yes, sir.
Q Is &our other witness going to testify more as to what the
unit agreement contains?
| MR. KASTLER: Yes, he is.

MR, PAYNE: Thank you.

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

BY MR, NUTTER:

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

Q Is this eonsidered a Pennsylvaﬂian prospect also?
A Yes, sir. It's Pennsylvanian and Devonian prospect.

Q In your opinion, is the unit outline sufficiently large

as to cover the Devonian structure and provide adequate control
of the structure by the unit operator?

I

Nl

LA
A
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toendlose an undue amount of acreage?

A

Q

A

Q

A

Yes, sir, in my opinion it is,

In your opinion is the ﬁnit outline unnecessarily large

No, sir,
Other than what is on the structure?

No, sir,{in my opinion it is not.

~ MR, NUTTER: Any furthéi questions of the witness? He

may be excused., ... - e N —

(Witness excused.,)

MR. KASTLER: Our next witness is Mr. J. P. Cavanaugh.

o Po CAVANAUGH

called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, testifled as

follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, KASTLER:

Q

For the record, will you please state your name,’where

you reside, by whom you are employed and what your position is?

A

My name is J. P. Cavanaugh, I reside in Roswell, New

Mexico, I'm employed by Gulf Oil Corporation in the Roswell Dis-

trict as a land man.

Q

Have you previously testified before the New Mexico 0il

Conservation Commission?

A

Q

No, sir, I have not,

¥hat has been your experience as a land man, Mr.
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'.in 1950 I was amnloved by Warren Petroleum Gorporatioﬁ in the Gulf

Cavanaugh?

A My experience as land man started with Humble 01l and
Refining Company in the Guif Coast Division with Warren Petfoleum
Corporation.

Q In what year?

A In the year of 1939; *40 and 41, Prior to my war
service I returned to Humble 01l and Refining Company in 1945 and
Coast Division, the Abilene Distriet and finally the Roswell
Distriect. ‘Three vears égo I was employed by Gulf 01l Corporation
in the Roswell District as a land man. With Warren;in the Abilene
and Roswellwbisﬁéi;ts I was District Land Man for them,

QR Mr, Cavanaugh; are you familiar with the‘North Caverns
Unit Agreement?

A Yes, sir; I am,

;.Q Were you instrumental in gétting the unit agreement put
together; agreed to by a number of parties, and executed?

A Yes, sir, I was. Exploration units are basically my
concern with Gulf 01l Corporation in the Roswell District.

(Wherceupon Gulf's Exhibit No. 5
was marked for identification.)

Q Do you have a plat for introduction as an exhibit here,

and may that be submitted for identification and stamping and so

Cmrmar
A Ve Ui
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A Ag Exhibit No. 5.

Q Calling your attention to Exhibit No}HS, does that show gn-

closure of the proposed North Caverns unit area?
A ‘Yes, sir, it does in the hashed outline.
Q What is the status of lands there as to ownership,

whether Federal, State or fee lands?

A This unit includes 5,669.99 acres of Federal land, 632.64

acres_of Stéte of New Mexico land; and>it does not include any
fee land,

Q Are the respective owners of working interest leases
shown on éhis plat; whichAis*Exhibit No. 57

A Yes, sir; theyaré; on the respective tracts as owned.

Q Briefly, would you recapitulate the number or names of
the/working interest owners in this unit?

A Yes, sir. GCulf 0il 6orporation is shown on the plat
under their resﬁective tract followed by Northern Natural Gas
Producing Company; Phillips Petroleum Company, Superior 0il
COmpany; Hondo 01l and Gas Company, Tidewater 01l Company; Texaco
Seaboard; Inc, and A, C. Holder.

Q ‘Are the lease expiration dates also shown on Exhibit No.
57

A Yes, sibz’, they are,

Q And as well, does Exhibit No. 5 show lease serial number
and whether the leases are Federal or State leases?

2]




el T

DEARNLEY-MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

' PHONE CH '3-6691

. PAGE 1L
A Yes, sir, it does. )
Q " And the respective lease ownerships?
A Yes, sir, it does. h
Q Now, Mr. Cavanaugh is this a usual iyps of Poderal Unit

Agreement following closely to the code of Federal regulations,that
prescribe the form of the unit agreement 1tself?

A Iea; sir,

Q Thewpg;pose of this unit is for exploration?

A Yes, sir, it is.

Q what are the safeguards or the provisions in the ungt
agreement contained for the driliing of>an initial test well?

A The safeguards for the drilling of the initial test well

-| aye one, to share in the cost of development by the working inter=

est ownersj} secondly; getting into the royalty ownershipito form
a participating area; after which the initial test well or any
succeeding wélls are completed; |

Q In other words; as I understand it, this unit agrsement
provides for a fixed working interest participation, 1s that cor=-
rect?

A Yes; it does. A fixed working interest participation on
each and every well drilled under the unit operating agreement.

Q Does it also contain provisions whereby less than all

parties may undertake the drilling of any wells?

A Yes, sir, it has a provision included in the unit
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‘ - B - .
operating agreement for nov sonsent wells to be drillec. “'—j

Q ,Doesrit provide for further development after initial

discovery or before jnitial. discovery for the drilling of more

wells?

A Yes, sir, it does.’

Q Does it substantially accord correlative rights for the
owners of all'interééts in the unit area?

A Yes; sir; I believe it does. | _

Q Does it provide for subsequent joinder of any parties
who have not joined?

A Yes; sir; it doese.

Q  Does it provide for the subsequent Joinder or the joindel
of the parties who are subseéuently taken in by an expansion or
enlargement of the unit area?

A Yes, sir; it does.

Q Does it as well provide for the contraction of the unit
area for failure to devel.op?

A ¥es; sir; i1t does.

Q How many of the working interest owners have signed and

committed themselves or their companies to this unit agreement?

A One hundred percent, Or all of them.
Q Are there any overriding royalty ownerships?
A Yes, sir, there are overriding royalty oswnerships that

| affect Pedoral lemde

s
a
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State 1ands?

A No, sir.
Q In all, how¥ many owners'of'record “of sverriding royait
oy 9!9@&9?}9“ payment intérests are there? ‘

A There are probably eleven.

, Inc

Q Have all eleven parties bean offered the opportunity
of consenting to and ratifying this unit agreement? |
A {es, sir, by regiStered mails -

Q Have any of them replied?

A Yes; sir, all with the exception of three parties have
replied, four have replied in the negative; four have replied ih
the affirmative. HdWever; of the four that nave replied in the
affirmative; one instfument will havé to be pesubmitted for proper
‘legal procedure.

Q Do you have copies of the consents and ratifications sub
mitted to Gulf as anit operator bY those overriding poyalty or
production payments owners desiring to join the unit?

A Yes; gir. If the Commission please; we would appreclate

submitting photostatic coples of the originals. The originals

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

will remain in our files.
MR, PAYNES Thatts all right, Mre. cavanaughe
MR, KASTLERS A1l right, these ape verifax copiebe

\ Q In connection with the royalty participation, how is tha




N e A S

aran

. S B O
gt Aot B a1 i -
apre B e s A S o

i

i

T
<od

L

L SO WR:

PHONE CH 3.6691.,

DEARNLEY—MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Iﬁc.

ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

B s PAGE 17
provided D the avent of -production; would-the-reyaltyowners——

ihroughout the unit share‘in one=eighth of the production?
A No; sir; the royélty owners within the participating
chare in the production from the well thatts within this par-
ticipating #rea. | .
qQ Does the unit agreement provide that the participating
area will be agreed upon and declared as a matter of agreement
between the working interest oﬁners; representatives of the U.S.G.q
representatives of the Commissioner of PublicALands and represeﬁta-
tives of the 0il Conservation Commission?
A Yes; sir. Within the month that the well 1s completed. |
Q Or as soon thereafter as practical?
A Yes; sir,
Q Was Exhibit No. 5 prepared by you or under your dire
ection and supervision?
A Yes; 8ir, it was,
MR, KASTLER: I have no further questions on direct
testimony at this time.
MR, NUTTER: Does anyone have any questions?
MR, PAYNE: Yes,

MR. NUTTER: Mr, Payne.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR, PAYNE:

Q_—_ Mr, Cavanaugh, does this unit agreement contain a ]
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BOETegation clause as to the State and Federal land?
A The segregation of any Federal lease committed to this

agreement is covered by fourthrparagraph in 17 (b) of the gct és
amended by the act of July 29; 1954; (65 Statutes 583; 585.) That's
on page<18 or'the unit agreement.

| MR.fKASTLER#-,That would apply to Federal segregation
however, Are State leases to. be segregated as well?

| A Yes, sir, I believe they are.

MR, NUTTER: Psragraph (i) on 18 I think.

the 0il Conservation Commission also has to approve the:partici-
pating area? . ' ‘ S .
A It is subjeet to the épproval, sir,

Q Well, now, where is that in the unit agreement?

that all powers and authority vested in the State Commissionﬁin ang
by any provisions of this agreement are vested in the St#te Com~
-mission and shall be exercised by it pursuant to the provisions of
the laws of the State of New Mexico and subject in any case to
appeal or judicial review as may now oxr hereafter be provided by
the laws of the State of New Mexico.,"

Q Is that provision consistent with paragraph 11 on page

11 relative to the particlpation after discovery?

A "The parties.hereto, including the State'cdﬁmission, agre+

Q  (By Mr. Payne) Now, Mr. Cavanaugh, did you testify that|-

|

L A ____To what language do you refer?
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Iﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁ REPORTING SERVICE, Ine.

DEARNLE

PHONE CH 3.g69;

only the Supervisors of the UeSeGeS, and the Comm
Lands need to approve g partieipating area, Lat?

full paragraph on nage 12,vthe;3taté CommiSSibh a
pound royalties and in so establishing & particip

Conservation Commission; is that right; Mr. Kastl
MR, KASTLER; Well, off the record,
(Whereupon a discussion’was held off th
'MR. KASTLER: Back on the record, mw,

event of the estabiishment of a participating are

Corporation, a8 the unig operator; confer with th

servation Commission as to the participating aypea

A Yes, sir, it would,

pens &ere if you
8 get production before the appropriate parties have appr;fed your
g unit agreement? Ag I understang it, your well is at 10;500 now
g is that right? |
§ A Yes, sir, it is, However; prior to the commenﬁement of
3 .

lieve it 4g our procedure to consult or submit same to the 041

MR, KASTLER: By the Working interest owners,

A We did not run &ny risk in commencing this well,
Q As your rticipating arca doss that contain a
2_your pa. ====n6 drea doss —=Z 4

issioner of publy

é
8 See, the sesond
} -

1o@g with the

atibg area I bee o

er? |

e re?ord.)

Cavaéaugh, in the
a, would Gulf 041
e State 011 Cone-

to be declafed?




(retroact Ve Provision that it ﬁéfﬁfis*ﬁiék‘

S

Production?

A Yes, sip,

PHONE i 3-6691

MR, PAYNE: 3, that woulg take

any produétidn that mighy accrue priop to actusl approval bylall
these:parties? |

eare of the allocation of
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PHONE CH 3-6691
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PAGE 21

MR, NUTTER: The ef?eotive date will be May 10th?

MR. KASTLER: That will be the effective date of the unig

agreement; yes. The production, the allocation of production is
otherwise provided for, but is, of course, provided for eiﬁher
within the unit agreement or the unit operating agreement.
effective date of any revision‘of any’participating area will be
the f;rst of the month in which is obtained the knowledge'oi ine
formation on which the revision is predicated? o -

MR, KASTLER: That is correct.

MR. NUTTER: That would take care of subsequént ex-;
pansions?

MR, KASTLER: And I don't see any problems in connection
with that. I would like to state further for the record that we
appear to be beyond the fret or worry now of not having the unit
finally avproved at the time we completed our initial test well,
subject of course to the approval of the 04l Conservation Commissi
we do most earnestly solieit your approval. T wish to state also
that the Commissioner of Public Lands has only tentatively givén
its approval; basing their actual approval somewhat upon the
condition that you approve it.

MR. NUTTER: In other words, you have tentative approval

from the Commissioner of Public Lands?
MR, KASTLER: Yes.

2

MR. NUTTER: I think the unit agreement provides that thé ;
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MR, NUTTER: You have tentatlve plus_riﬁti“apﬁrvvai“rrvm—
the U.S.G.S. and we're haviﬁg a hearing tqday for the third one.
Mr. Cavanaugh, you stated that thevExhibit 5 showed the expiration
date of the various leases. What is the ex;iratioﬁrdate of Lease
0861767

A 1 improperly stated that, the OB6176, that tﬁe exhibit

shows an expiration date. However, that date is November 17,

1969.
| MR, NUTTER: It's not about to run out then, is:itj
A That, however, is shown on Exhibit B of the Unit Operat-‘
ing Agreement;

MR. NUTTER: Any further questions of Mr., Cavanaugh?
He‘may be‘exeused.

(Witness exéused.)

MR. KASTLER: I move that Exhibits Nos.»l, 2, 3, 4 and

5 be entered into evidence. :

MR, NUTTER: Gulfts Exhibits 1 through 5 will be entered

Do you have anything further, Mr, Kastler?
MR. KASTLER: No, sir, I haven't.

MR. NUTTER: Does anyone have anything further for Case

19607 We will take the case under advisement and take a fifteen

minute recess,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
H SS

L | coumry oF BERMALTLLO ) | - L
vé"‘ : 3 I, ADA DEARNLEY, Coﬁft Repdrter,,do hereby certify that théwww;wWﬂwu

§,_ % foregoing and attached transcript of proceedings before the New

e é . Mexico 0il Conservation Commission at Sahta»Fe; Nevaexico; is a

%-i“ true and correct record to the best of my knowledge, skill and

i :E ability.,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have affixed my hand and notarial seal

S

vl o

this  day of May, 1960. - | “ o

otr) 2

thé;guﬁﬁblic-Gourﬁégaporter

o

(o

Mj commission expires:

Ly

June 19, 1963.

.
RGN

, ( i

o

Ryt

DEA’RNLEY .MEIER REPORTING SERVICE, Inc.

%
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW MEXICO

l -

PRl CEU e VRN n:._.‘,,....u...,,.

L




PETROLEUM AND ITS PRODUCTS

ROSWELL DISTRICT GULF OJL CORPORATION

W. A. SHELLBHEAR ]
District Manager _P. 0. DRAWER 669 e ROSWELL, NEW MEXICO

F. 0. Montioox
District Exploration Manager
M. 1. TAYLOR

District Production Manager September 21, 1960
ﬂ- A. PRICE
: District Services Manager

Northern Natural Gas Producing Company Texaco Seaboard, Inc.

2223 Dodge Street -Post Office Box 3109
Omsha 1, Nebraska Midland, Texas
Attention: Mr. D. H. McArthur Attention: Mr. R. T. Maxwell
Phillips Petroleum Company Hondo 01l & Gas Compamr ' ‘
Bartlesville, Cklahoma Post Office Box 660 : . ; ‘ -
Attention: Mr. J. F. Kington Roswell, New Mexico : : T

7 » Attention: Mr. H. E. Harrington
The Superior 0il Company :

218 West Illinois Street Mr. A. C. Holder
Midland, Texas Post Office Box 1476 i
Attention: Mr. R. K. Patterson Lovington, New Mexico !

Tidewater 01l Company |
Post Office Box 1LOL

S e

Houston 1, Texas 7
: Attention: Mr. Everett W. Hargrave, Jr. I czﬂ‘f /,7 uﬁ"J

Gentlemen: Re: Termination of North Caverns'Un-if
(Pederal), Eddy County, New Mexico

On or about June 13, 1960, our Mr. Cavanaugh furnished each of you ‘
the necessary instruments to complete your file in the formation of the North .
Caverns (Federal) Unit, and at that time Mr. Cavanaugh was in the process of
having the necessary instrument executed by each of you for the termination
of the North Caverns Unit.

request for the termination of the North Caverns (Federal) Unit and two
additional copies of the same instrument that has been approved by the
Commissioner of Public Lands and the Director of the United States Geo-
logical Survey making the termination of the North Caverns (Federal) Unit
effective as of July 1, 1960. You will note that carbon copies of this
letter are being sent to the respective District Offices with one copy
each of the approved termination instrument.

T

T

We now enclose for the completién of your file one copy of tﬁe ;

T T T



With these instruments we trust that you file is now complete and
that the unavoidable delay hes not caused you too great an inconvenience.

JPC:hs
Attachments

ce:l

- Permian Building

Northern Natural Gas Producing Company

400 Union Building

Midland, Texas
Attention: Mr. R. Willingham, Jr.

Phillips Petroleum Company

Midlend, Texas )
Attention: Mr. Worth E. Whitworth

Tidewater 0il Company

Post Office Box 1231

Midland, Texas
Attention: Mr. J. R. Creswell

Texaco Seaboard, Inc.

V & J Tower Building

Midland, Texas
Attention: Mr. R. R. Farris.

Yours very truly,

GFblws).
F. E, Curtis, Jr.
Distriot Landman




JUN 24 1960

U. S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY
ROSWELL, NEW MEXICO

+.TO: The Director

United States Geological Survey
Washington 25, b. ¢

The- Commissioner of Pu
State of New Mexico
State Land Office
Santa Fe, New Mexico

blic Lands of the

REQUEST FOR TERMINATION OF THE NORTH CAVERNS UNIT - |
. NO. 14-08-001-6774 | S .

The undersigned, representing in excess of seventy-five pber cent,

.on an acreage basis, of the- owners of workin

& Interests in the North Caverns’
- Unit Area, state as follows: )

NW/U4 SW/h of Section 11, Township 23 South
- total depth of 11

» Range 24 East, N.M.,P.M
»515 feet, the final depth being reached

., to

on May 26, 1960,
drillstem test conducted May 26, 1960, the interval behWéen“ll;hEH:feet R,f -

and 11,515 feet in the Devonian formation was tegited ang 260 feet or mud

cut salt water ang 2,000 feet salt water were recovered. Further drilling

of said well appeared to have been unwarranted ang impracticable, The

weii'was plugged and abandoned on May 29, 1960.

,u};%;:n;ﬁy reason of the above the undersigned respectfully request
GLL&,

hat tﬁp{ﬁbfth Caverns Unit pe terminateqg effective July 1, 1960,
. -~y . ¥ -

e <

S e g 2 2,"‘_;3 . Date Approved__ JUL 22 1o=n . _
e [ B R |
LT i GULF OIL CORPORATION =
LS Y ORI
:' O b o~ ,

k o

D] é’c"t'&"."il‘.%'."é'éé'lo'g‘i'c'}iﬁiiﬁef“ ;
’ )

By //mﬂ//? £-

Attorney-in-Fact

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS PRODUCING‘_,;-QQMPANY;_

ATTEST, R
By W\ . :._ ' =
! ice-President [/74 ;
. PHILLIPS PETROLEUN COMPANY
ATTEST

By

c sident




'hiﬁSJP'ﬂi?Qw ,

THE SUPERIOR -OIL COMPANY

By

and

Assistant Secretary

Vice-Fresigént

TEXACO SEABOARD INC,

By J{MV}

Attorneygéh—FaQZ

HONDO OIL & GAS COMPANY

A
Y

"STATE OF NEW MEXICO .
COUNTY OF CHAVES

day of , 1960, by W. A, SHELLSHEAR ,

il
5 -"-,,U'l

e

. ’ ‘
Ty Carinee (¥
- h%#ﬂ}ﬁnmn
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. STATE OF NEBRASKA

COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

The foregolng instrument was acknowledged before me this _ 15th

N 1960, by John M. Hanléy R

Vice-President of NORTHERN NATURAL GAS PRODUCING COM

day of June
PANY, 'a’ Delaware

corpor§tion, on behalf of saild corporation.

AN e, L . ‘
__-_4.,:--".‘:".-.','1,\ . .
‘..-‘,'A.-"". .,',. -_-. . /')’g /{-f"

S . T TWotary PUBILC

My Cpmmiss;on Expires-

\{- )
april 11, 1963 T

STATE OF CKLAHOMA _ i
éGUNTY OF WASHINGTON )
The foregoing\instrument was
, 1960, by
of PHILLI?S PETROLEUM COMPANY, a Delaware corporation,

acknowledged before me this JyTtA

‘l-??}. .{’ . M/ ).

on

day cf 5
Vioe-President

behalf of sald corporation.

/‘ .
ya //)47tx:LnLJﬁéiidLlétﬁﬁL___f_

Notary Edblic

M EEAN SNy

My - Commisbion Expires

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF MIDLAND  {
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 427

Zéﬁ/ 93¥%f77aﬁ”é?724 s

MPANY, a California corporation,

, 1960, by

;L7?9¢1ﬂ
f'l/
yice-President

.day of
of THE SUPERIOR OIL CO

-.on pehalf of said coréoration. , .

Notary Public

»




o My Commission Expires:

'STATE OF TEXAS }

COUNTY OF HARRIS I

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this // / -

day of QM—- s 1960, by E. B. MILLER .I.. ,» Vice-President
of TIDEWIQER OiL COMPANY, a Delaware corporation, on behalf of said corpora-

tion. ; ‘ - ,/ \
/. ﬂrw,—(_}’k*“’" c“‘f“"‘?w‘ \;_. e
Notary Publ¥o”

/L.LM

. STATE OF TEXAS [

COUNTY OF MIDLAND §
91‘}19 fot‘egoir\g h\ttmt no aolmowledged before me thils &_ff\
' . Ste o Tz, Attornéy-in-

E% t of TEXAC@ m INC. , & Delaware corporation, on behalf of sald

, eo?ponatibﬁu"

Notary Public — .

My Commission Expires:

bk

'STATE OF NEW MEXICO | o
 COUNTY OF CHAVES i re :
The foregolag Lmatrument was acknowledged before me this L0~

doy of __ Fumw® ... ., 1960, by W Vice-
Président of HONDO OIL & GAS CGMPANY; a New Mexico corporation, on behalf _

of said corporation.




Foa s Wy T
, , M ™
| 'STATE OF NEW MEXICO ‘| — _
COUNTY OF LEA ¥ v
_ The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this .?/'4‘
day of 9 1960, by A C. HOLDER and RUBY F, HOLDER,
his wife.
{ /
WWK:eji |
6-13-60
(30)
| =5-




CERTIFPICATE OF APPROVAL
FOR THR TERMIMMTION OF THE NORTH CAVERNS Ui AGRERAENT.

There having been presented to the Comnissioner of
Public Lands a request for termination of the North Caverns
Unit;

this request having been signed by over seventy-five “'
me‘nt. on an acreage basis, of the ocwners of working -
interest in the North Cavern Unit; . L

this request states that the test well toq'uttod to be » 1
drilled in the North Caverns Unit area under Section 9 of :
the Unit Agresment was drilled and was plugged and abandoned
on May 29, 1960, and due to this fact the working interest
owners request approval for the termination of thio unit
effective July 1, 1960.

. TERAKFORE, this Cextificate of Approval for the ter-
mination of the Worth Caverns Unit is executed, vith sesl
affined, this 22nd day of June, 1960.

COMMISSIONIR OF PUBLIC LARDS

tip o,
edin BY: .
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3 a

. T0: ‘The Director

United States Geologlcal Survey

S. GEOLOGlCAL SURVEY
Washington 25, D. C. URoswm. NEW KEXICO
The Commissioner of Public Lands of the
State of New Mexico -

State Land Office
Santa Fe, New Mexico

REQUEST FOR TERMINATION OF THE NORTH CAVERNS UNIT
NO. 14-08-001-6774

The undersigned, representing in excess of seventy-five per cent,
',oﬁ an acreage basis, of the owners of working interests in the North Caverns{
Unit Area, stéte as follows: \ -
The test well required under Section 9 of the Uﬁit Agreement.
finéliy approved on May 10, 1960, was drilled aﬁ a location in the. ‘ .
NW/4 SW/# of Section 11, Township 23 South, Range 24 East, N:M.P.M., to o
total depth of 11,515 feet, the final depth being reached on May 26, 196Q.
on drillstem test conducted May 26, 1960; the interval between 11,&24.feet'ké
-'and 11,515 feet in the Devonian formation was tes&ed and 260 feet of mud :g

cut salt water and 2,000 fect salt water were recovered. Furt her drilling

“of said-well appeared (o nave been unwarranted and 1mpract1cab1e The
well was plugged and abandoned on May 29, 1960.

“"“.By reason of the above the undersigned respectfully requast

L "G\‘L‘ii.-i‘:“( ‘ !
. thet e ‘&6rth Caverns Unit be terminated effective July 1, 19€0. :
. \0.:.{ c::‘ G, -~ Date Approved JUL 29 1or-q IEQL_ '
3o g o e o p=e
o: O Wi 3 GULF OIL CORPORATION VL
.G;"_‘ ‘O §3 rProd.
_f%_:TT_ PrE

S, o,

7772

Attorney-in-Fact

' B RA
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS PRODUCING SOMPANY.: ...

ATTEST: :
VEIEST: W <
[$0 ] <
- NG
_(\isltjfsis ant Secretary ice-President v Ly
s NS PHILLIPS PETHOLEUM COMPANY

F SIS e Sretary S S1aent

© ATTEST:

ﬁA~ . ~ By i




THESUPENAR U1t
 APPRCYLL,

THE SUPERIOR OIL COMPANY |44

Assistant Secretary

TIDEWATER OIL COMPANY

Ly

- By -
- Seeretary Vice-FPresigent

APPROVID AS TO : TEXACO SEABOARD INC._

Terms A4 4... | S

Form oo W Z f@f-%w ) '

4 By } )‘* o

' : }ftor'r\ey—yn -Yagk
i, o HONDO OIL & GAS COMPANY : :
SRR T A ' ' oo

\/
B (JZ,) unguZ&/(4/

Vice- Pr\esiderﬂ:'

~
L
et/ |
Y ./E HOLDER : i
'STATE OF NEW MEXICO - g
COUNTY OF CHAVES _
. dregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this A Z s
. day of ', 1960, by W. A, SHELLSHEAR P
“ \H\lluu," ﬂ A .
*“j\\\\ \3) -’db y-ii-Fact for GULF OIL ‘CORPORATION, a Pennsylvania corporation,
& bien ’ )
\\\'\\"Q. . ‘. 2. . i
S5 e N &8 tion. .
: §:;:, “,-r/im?’ E"’?z‘:f said corporation 4
ER= ..0 ey .E,é ::
) L2 VBN S
”’I’qc ‘-on.c. \‘. \‘:
”':,,Mﬁhnﬂ‘lssion Explres:
V7




- STATE OF NEBRASKA
COUNTY OF DOUGLAS
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 15th

day of _June _,A 1960, by John M. Hanrley ,

Vice-President of NORTHERN NATURAL GAS PRODUCING COMPANY, 'a’ Delaware

corpq;gtipq, on behalf of said corporation.

RSN ‘ ' / s
. . .-..: L --__-:\ _"., . W/ //,r‘} o /",:_

L o Notary Public

~

.
.si.:
H

My Cgmmission.FmpireS°'

K

’ Aprﬂ 11, 1963

STATE OF OKLAHOMA |
| COUNTY OF W_ASHII#GTON ]

The foregoing instrument:was acknowledged befbre me this /y-t4
day of ) e , 1960, by Pl b Atad # ,
_ Vice-President of PHILLIPS PETROLEUM COMPANY, a Delaware cgrporatign, on |

behalf of said corporation.

5 iy 4/3144“/

?”?1 ~ Notary Béblic

"!.r\-
My - Commishion Expires~;

’--h.' PP

2 B U
R

a2
_',.‘ .- .-. . ..- . ‘QI ‘-_‘_‘

=

" STATE OF TEXAS - [
COUNTY OF MIDLAND | o - }
| The foregolng instrument was acknowledged before me this /6 1;
day of }M/ : » 1960, by Z/ Dt g eon ’
Vice- Pfésident " of THE SUPERIOR OIL COMPANY, a California corporation,

- on behalf of sald corporation. ,

Notary Public

4My Comm133¢on Expines'




>d:a‘y of‘
'152 t of- TEXAC@ Qﬂh!ﬂilb tue., & Delaware corporation, on ‘behalf of sald

ea?‘ponatibm"

 STATE OF TEXAS T

COUNTY OF HARRIS ]
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this // / ~

day of qu , 1960, by . R MILLER .J. s Vice-President
of TIDEWA(ER OIL COMPANY, a Delaware corporation, on behalf of saigd corpora-

tion. ‘ e

/" Z’W‘—-f,.,(.}".?"‘)v""""""’?w o~ €
Notary Publ}p’

<~ STATE OF TEXAS |
COUNTY OF MIDLAND |

\\ﬂ\ p tI‘)he foregoing. ineSrument wu ~acknowledged before me thils &ﬁ
, Sre Tz Attorney-in- |

/ e /wm

Notary Public

My‘Commission Expires:

. &Lt ..

'STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COUNTY OF CHAVES | ,
Al
The forewolag imstrument was acknowledged before me this priode

asyor __ Temwel ., 1960, by W Vice
Président of HONDO OIL & GAS COMPANY, New Mexico corporation, on behalf:

of sald corporation.




E S )

'fsrATE OF NEW MEXICO 'l

couuwv OF LEA § SR .-\;»
The foregoing 1nstrument was acknowledged before me this A .,?/"‘é

day of ' %‘4/ " 1960, by A C. HOLDER and RUBY F. HOLDER,

WVK:eji
6-13-60
(30)
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 CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL
FOR THR TRRMINNTION OF THE NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AGRERHENT.

There having been presented to the Comaissioner of
Public Lands a t«ju.lt for termination of the North Caverns
Unit; |

this request having been .mn.d by over mon;j-tlvc

—perosnt, On &n JICXSEFS Dasis, O Lthe ownera of working .

interest ;u the Noxrth Cavezrn Unit;

e ey g emmeta s o

this request states that ths test well required to be
drilled in the North Caverns Unit area under Section £
the Unit Agresment was drilled and was plugged and abandoned
on May 29, 1960, and due to this fact the io:king interest

owners request approval for the termination of this unit
effective July 1, 1960.

. TEERRPORE, this Cextificate of Approval for the ter-
mination of the Morth Caverns Unit is executed, with sesl
affixed, this 22nd dmy of June, 1960. |

;o

R ALY K A
PR . .

| . D077 P -

COMMISSIONTR OF PUBLIC LAKDS
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In reply reier tot
Unce  rivvigaon

voy 2, 1960

Gulf 011 Coxporation
P. 0. Box 669

“f.aw Department

Roswell, New Mexico

Re: Proposed North Caverns Uhit,

E’l‘t]}- Cv‘\:nt}' ,,,,,,,,, “A,_, 1!&!}‘1 Falo FEp.

Dear Mr. Kastler:

Please be adviged that after consideration by the Unit
Division and our attorney Mr,. Leonard Levy, wa are approving
Culf's North Cavern Unit as to form and context.

“Wa have alsc received concurrence from Mr, Fd Iuck, our
gaologist.

The Commissioner of Public Lands will issuve ceortificates
of approval for the North Caverns Unit Area, Eddy County, New
Mexico, upon rvecelving a copy of the unit agreement as ratified
to by the working interest owners, and a couy of the operating
agreement; and further a written or oral orxder of approval from
the 01l Conservation Commission, issued on Case No, 1960 to bae
heard under Examiners Hearing May 11, 1960,

Very truly yours,
MURBAY U, MORSAN
LommxsﬂioaeL of Public Lands

BY:
fed Bilbervy, Supervisor
MYMAMR/m 01l an" Gas Division

ce: NCC-8nnta Fo
aas-Rogwell




April 8, 1960

irec
0il COnservation Commission
1 R
Mexico e e
Re: In the Matter the Appl ation of S
ulf 0il Cor?P atvlio for tne approval - n
£ the Unit greem g for h evelop
nt and peration tvhe N rth caverns
Unib Ared, Fddy Co vy, New Mexico:.
10 respectfuily;herein reduest the Com~
Unit Agreement, coples of
uwni®

oration
of the Horth caverns
ound that the propos
e of oil and

ator shall
an execute

Unit oper
1 or

3. nat the
an executed origina




e
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Secretary-Director

- New Mexico 01l Conservation Commission

April 8, 1960
Page 2 :

North Caverns Unit Agreement wilthin 30 days after the
effective date thereof.

4, That any party owning rights in the unitized substances
~ who does not commit aneh.rights tc 53id Unlit Agreement
before the effective date thereof may thereafter become
a party thereto by subscribing to such agreement or
counterpart thereof or by ratifying the same. The Unit
Operator shall flle with the Commission within 30 days

an original of any such counterpart or ratification.

5. That the Order of the Commission should become effective
upon the approval of sald Unit Agreenment by the Director
of the United States Geological Survey and the Commis-
sloner of Public Lands for the State of New Mexico, and
shall terminate 1¥so fagto upon the termination of saild
Unit Agreement. ¢ Tast Unit Operator shall immediately
notify the Commission in writing of such termination.

The Unit test well 1is located in the NW/4 of the SW/4 of Sec-
tion 11-23S-24E. The well is projected to a depth adequate to test

- the Devonian formation, not to exceed 11,750 feet,

(ulf 011 Corporation has previously obtained a preliminary
designation of Unit Area from the Acting Director of the United
States Geological Survey, a verifax copy of which is attached here-
to.

It is requested that this matter be set for hearing before
an examiner at an early date.

Respectfully submitted,

GULF OIL CORPORATION

o e stlm, T

William V. ?Estler

‘WVK:ieji

Enclosures




GULF 3. 2110

7  Aaprld 8, 1960

Secretaryqnireo

- [V
NGH i :v‘i;w

P, 0, Box 871 | T el

a4 oonn.rvatign 0qmnisnion =

Santa Fe, ch Hexiao

o Ret“Ih ‘the Matter or the Kpplication of
oy e Gl 4381 Qorpqr&tion fgr the: approval
T ;_Z s#;IhQ;UnQ# v avelop- .
Sl it and operab ration of Cayerns .
ﬁnit Aréa, BEddy COunty, Nau Haxioo.nv-

3945 }

Dear Sirs s fﬁlt; '313 M_J,Z

guir oy’ corporation ruapeotruliy herein requests the Com-

mis:é?a's npz:z;:ﬁ of..
_ pribeipls

rd the preveht
1t stgtaa 88 rollqn;;

$he uorth;c&vcrns Unis Agreemsnd, eoples of
to, unﬁ . that-the PrOPe! % -

18 egd o vation o "o1l and
on of waate. n support n$,§£a application,

15" ThAY She. Vit Area shali ‘es e

T-22-8, R-24-E, K M P.H, T-23 -3, R-2 4-El,N M.P M.
_,Ssq.;aé; 8/8: B “gec. 1 w/é R
A5Y SRR AR g{‘ /ar S SO 23
3 1 A1l 33 All
11t All
12¢ W
14y N/é, sW/4, W/2 sE/u
151 All

>~

containing 6,302.63 acres,_more or lesp.,wk

the Unit Agreement be enlarged or
:vided but that the administrative app

9. That the Unit Area may by the terms and previsions bf

contracted 88 pro-

roval for any ex-

pansion or contraction of the Unit Avea nust also be

T . obtained from the Secretary-Director ©

yvation Commission.

£ the 01l Conser-

3, That the tnit Operator ahall file with the Commisslon

an executed original or an exe

cuted counterpart of the
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OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
P. 0. BOX 871

SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO.

May 13, 19¢é@

)

Mr. Bill Xastler
-Gulf 041 Corporation
Pox 689 N
Roswell, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Kastler: .

(D)

. We enclose berewith two copies of Order R-1673
in Case No, 1860 issued today by the 0il Conserva-
tion Commismion.

Yery truly yours,

—g

A. L. PORTER, Jr.
Secretary-Director

ir/

Eanclosures: (2)

o /‘\74’/,”::/
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BRFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMIBSION
OF THEX STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN TRE MATTRR OF THE RBARING
CALLED BY THE OXL CONSERVAIION
COMMISSION OF TRE ITATE OF NEW
MRAICO FOR THE mw
COMR L LERING

CASE Mo, 1350
0‘«: BO. 3*1673

THE APPLICATION OF QULEF OLL CORPOAMIIOR
FOR APPROVAL OF ITS NORTR CAVERMS UMIY
AGRESNENY, WHICH UNIT RMEAACES 6303 ACRES,
moaun. IOCATED IN TOWMESHIPS 21 AND

23 SCUTE, RANUR 24 EAST, WidN, RDDY COUNYY,
W KRXICO,

2Y_SHE COWISSON:

This couse cams o for heaving at 9 o‘clogk a.m
nay 11, 1960, st Samka Fe, New Mexieo, M:mmai mges
Bxamines memxcm«m«mu
Now ¥Waxico, inefeer vefarxed 2o 88 the "Commission,” in
muumnuotmcmmmmwxm.

‘m.mcw,_/‘jé:uu ,xmwem:::«.&
Querum present ) OB,
mmr&td.

Demial 8, Butter, and deing umumm
m"
3 mmmmmm muzed
nmf%ncmzumjmsmozeu?m"
subject wittey thexeot.

{2) 9hat the ptom mt: plan will sn,pcmx;’hm to
M‘mmuanu 541 and mas and the prevemticn of

1. That thia order shall ba Jnown 38 the NORTE CAVERRS
URIT AGRBEMENY ORDER.

2. (&) Thet tha project harein referrsd to shall ba mown
a8 tha Koxth Cavarns wtw:mtm;unmemmruw
foxyed to a8 the “project.’

(b} That the Plan by which tha project ashkall be opeara-
tad shall be exbraced in the form of a unit agreement for the



£he SeoreLa¥ry”

snicial participet axes

¢ phall & causubjeet go ® ;

CommissicB.

¢ the unit opers
sxacuted cwmm

affective dste the

: 5, Tha
an axocuted original oF
unit Agraenant within 30 aays after tho
G Twawpaxtymm?ﬁghts mzm@i‘.g&éw
who deese aot cosmdt euch righte co 88id unit W&: pafore ©ne
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.. CALLED BY THE OIL COXSERVATION

 CONSIDERING:

“THE APPLICATION OF GUL¥ OiL coamnmmn

| accordance with Rule 1214 of the Commission Rules and Regulations,

BEFORE THE OlL CONSERVATION COMMISSION .
OF THE BTATE OF NEW MEXICO ,

IN THE I"XATTBR OF THE HBARING

COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW
MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF -

CASE No. 1960
Oxder No. R-1673

FOR APPROVAL OF ITS NORTH CAVERMS UNIT
AGREEMENT, WHICH UNIT EMBRACES 6303 ACRES, - ‘
MORE OR LESS, LOCATED IN TOWNSHIPS 22 AND
23 SOUTH, RANGE 24 EAST, NMPM, EDDY COUNTY,
NEW MEXICO.

ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

BY THE COMMISSION:

This cause came on for hearing at 9 o'cloek a.m. on
May 11, 1960, at Santa Fe, New Mexico, before Daniel S. Nutter,
Examiner duly appointed by the Oil Conservation Commission of
New Mexico, hareinafter referred to as the “Commission," in

NOW, om this_l13th day of May, 1960, the Commission, a

zgidonco adduced, and the momndatiou of the xxanmer.
Daniel 8. Butter, and being fully advised in the premises,

FINDS:

(1) That due public notice having been given as required
by law, the Commission has jurisdietion of this cause and the
subject matter thereof.

{(2) That the proposed unit plan will in principle tend to
promote the conservation of oil and gas and the prevention of
waste.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That this oxder shall be known as the NORTH CAVERNS ;
UNIT AGREEMENT ORDER. |

2. (a) That the project herein referred to shall be known
as the Noxth Caverns Unit Agreement and shall hareinafter be re-
ferred to as the "project."

(b) That the Plan by which the project shall be opera-
ted shall be embraced in the form of a unit agreement for the




«24-
CASE No. 1960 5
Ordex No. R-1873 i

davelopment and operation of the North Caverns Unit Area, referrsd
to in the Petitionex's petition and filed with said petition, and
such plan shall be Xnown as the North Caverns Dait Agrsswent wian, |

ST 3. the North Caverns Umit Agreement Plan shall be, and
: hcnbi.u, approved in principle as a proper conservation measuxe)

provided, however, that notwithstanding amy of the provisions con-
tained in said unit agreement, this approval shall mot be comside
as wvaiving or relinquishing in any manner any right, duties or i
obligations which are now, or may hereafter, be vested in the Hew |
' Mexieo 04l Conservation Commission by law relative to the swper- |
. vision and comtrol of operations for exploration and development
- of .1 lands committed to said Noxrth Caveras Unit Agreemant, ox
relative to the production of 6il and gas therefrom.

4. (a) That the unit area shall be:
NEW co PAL ME

Section 26: 8/2

Segtion 27: 8/2
Section 34: All
Section 35: Al

HIP 23 SOUT 24 BAST
section 1 ws 2 ;
Sectiom 2: All »

Section 3: Al)

Section 10: All

Section 1l All

Section 1213 W/2 _
Section 14: N/2, 3W/4, W/2 SB/4 i
Section 15: All ]

containing 6303 acres more or less.

i

(P) The wnit area may be enlarged or contracted as pro-
vided ip said Plan: pxovided, however, that administrative approval
for expansion or contraction of the unit area must be obtained fron
the Seoretary~Director of the Oil Conservation Commission. The ‘,
initial participating area for any formation and any revisions
thareofiahau alsc he subject to approval by the 011 Conservation
Commission.

5, That the unit operator shall file with the Commission
an executed original orxr executed counterpart of the Noxrth Caverns
Unit Agreement withnin 30 days agter the effective date thaxeof,

6. That any party owning rights in the unitized substances
who does not commuit such righte to saild unit agreement before the
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CASE No. 1960 :
Order No. R-1673

effective date thereof may thereafter become a party thereto by

[ muamre,mmuOmthadaymdmhcuu-
gnbowdumud

i
]
i
4
R
ki
Y
I
U
t
H

1 | subsexibing to such agreement or counterpart thereof, or by
: . ratifiying the same. The unit operator shall file with the Com~
. i miasmion within 30 w: an original of any such counterpart or i
| ratification. oy
7. That this Oxder shall becomes effeative upon the approval
1 . of said unit agreement by the Director of the United sStates Geo-
| logical Suxvey and the Cogmissioner of Public Lands for the State
. of New Mexico, and shall terminate o facto upon the termimation
. of said unit agreemsnt. The last w t oparator shall imswediately
§ , notify the Commission in writing of such termination. {
g i

STATE OF HBW MEXICOC
OX1; CONSERVATION COMMISSION

6 JOHN BURROUGHS, Chairman _ 0

(/ t,/ /Z JZLO

A. L. PORTER, Jx.. nambe: & Secretary

e R G e R

o R RN S e AR e St

esx/




0il Conservation Commission - 9 a,m,, Mabry Hall

N ~~
' No. 13-60

DOCKET : EXAMINER HEARING MAY 11, 1960

State Capitol, Santa Fe,

' CASE 1958:

CASE 1959;:
o . automatic custody transfer system.

o e

CASE 1960:

embrace approximately 6,303 acres of Federal and State land

The following cases will be heard before Daniel S. Nutter, ExaMiner, or
Oliver E. Payne, Attorney, as alternate examiner:

Application of Texaco Inc., for approval of an automatic
custody transfer system. Applicant, in the above-styled

cause, seeks an order authorizing the installation of an

automatic custody transfer system to handle the production
from the Echol-Devonian Pool from all wells on its State
"AR" Lease, consisting of the N/2 SW/4 and Lots 3 and 4 of
Section 2, Township 11 South, Range 37 East, Lea County,
New Mexico. : '

Application of Sinclair 0il & Gas Company for approval of an
- Applicant, in the above-
styled cause, seeks an order autnoxi21ng'the installation of
an automatic custody transfer system to handle the production
from the Empire-Abo Pool from all wells presently completed
or hereafter drilled on its M., Yates “B'" Lease, consisting

of the S/2, NE/4, S/2 NW/4, and NE/4 NW/4 of Section 33,
Townshkip 17 South, Range 28 East, Eddy County, New- Mex1co

Ne— -

Application of Gulf 0il Corporation for approval of a unit
agreement, Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks

approval of its North Caverns Unit Agreement, which unit will
in Townships 22 and 23 South Range 24 East, Eddy County,
New Mex1co

e

CASE 1961:

Appllcat1on of Gulf Oil Corporatlon for perm1531on to com-
mingle the productlon from four separate pools and for
approval of an automatic custody transfer system to handle
said commingled production, Applicant, in the above-styled
cause, seeks permission to commingle the production from the
Blinebry, Drinkard, Paddock, and Penrose-Skelly Pools from
all wells located on its C, L, Hardy lease comprising the
SW/4 of Section 20, Township 21 South, Range 37 East, Lea
County, New Mexico, after separately metering only the pro-
duction from the Blinebry Pool and to allocate the Drinkard
Paddock and Penrose-Skelly Pool production without prior
metering or measurement but on the basis of monthly individaul
well tests. Applicant further seeks approval of an automatic
custody transfer system to handle the said commingled produc-
tion from ail weils on the said C. L. Hardy lease.
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Docket No.

CASE 1962:

CASE 1963:

CASE 1964:

CASE 1965:

CASE 1966

13-60

Application of McGrath and Smith for a special allowable for
one well in the Caprock-Queen Pool, Lea and Chaves Counties,
New Mexico. Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks a
special allowable for one well offsetting a capacity water-
flood project in the Caprock-Queen Pool, Lea and Chaves

_Counties, New Mexico. . Said well_ is the Tidewagter=State Well
"No. 1, located in the NW/4 SE/4 of Section 18, Township 13
South, Range 32 East, Lea County, New Mexico. ’

Application of Aztec 0il & Gas Company for an unorthodox gas
well location and for approval of two non-standard units. -
Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks approval of an
unorthodox gas well location in the Blanco-Mesaverde Gas Pool
for its Richardson Well No. 6, to be located in the SE/4 of ;

Section 22, Township 31 Morth, Range 12 West, San Juan County, .

New Mexico. Applicant further seeks establishment of a 297- ;

acre non-standard gas proration unit in the Blanco-Mesaverde

Gas Pool and a 297-acre non-standard unit in the Dakota S DS
Producing Interval, each consisting of the E/2 of said Section ! .

22 and to be dedicated to the said Richardson Well No. 6. i ’

Application of Aztec Oil & Gas Company for an unorthodox gas
well location and for approval of two non-standard units, :
Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks approval of an §
unorthodox gas well location in the Blanco-Mesaverde Gas Pool
for its Richardson Well No. 7, to be located in the SE/4 of
Section 15, Township 31 North, Range 12 West, San Juan County,
New Mexico. Applicant further seeks establishment of a 309.
55-acre non-standard gas proration unit in the Blanco-Mesa- :
verde Gas Pool and a 309.55-acre non-standard unit in the ¢
Dakota Producing Interval, each consisting of the E/2 of said
Section 15, and to be dedicated to said Richardson Well No.
7. f

RN

Application of Aztec 0il & Gas Company for approval of an
unorthodox gas well location., Applicant, in the above-styled
cause, seeks approval of an unorthodox location in the Blanco-
Mesaverde Gas Pool for its Thompson Well No. 6, to be located
in the SE/4 of Section 28, Township 31 North, Range 12 West,
San Juan County, New Mexico.

Application of Texas National Petroleum Company for an oil-
gas dual completion utilizing parallel strings of casing
cemented in a common well bore and for an unorthodox gas well
location., Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks an
order authorizing the dual completion of a well to be located
at an unorthodox location 660 feet from the North and West
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Docket No.

CASE 1966
(Cont.)

N

13-60

lines of Section 1, Township 25 North, Range 9 West, San
Juan County, New Mexico, in such a manner as to permit the
production of o0il from the Gallup formation and the pro-
duction of gas from the Dakota Producing Interval through

2 7/8-inch casing and through 2-inch tubing set in 4 1/2-inch
casing respectively with the casing being cemented in a
common well bore.




Rough draft for unit agreement orders.

A
I JEEN BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION | /
P OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO c/' <
i ‘1 Vs . \
: )
; IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING - r,:/,
< ALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION
o OMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW
o , MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF

C CONS IDERING: S
; ' - CASE Mo, /760

Order No. ?—/{7; »

THE APPLICATION OF G.(/25 Ore
CORFPORA 710/
_ . FOR “#i& APPROVAL OF /7= Nogr//
< ‘ ot - - A NE RS ~ UNI'T .
A Q AGREEMNT,M WHICH YT cw[?eﬁos& (303
S ACRES, MORE OR LESS, LOCATED IN
E g TOWNSHIPS 2 A#D 43 Sour# , RANGE
SO _RY EAST, NMPM, =pp v
SoaE T COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

kﬁ _— BY THE COMMISSION:

o S This cause came on for hearing at _/_C o'clock ¢Z. m. on
S ﬂz’w y/i 19 4o at - New MexIco, before.
RN ? - A

i1 i

[4 4

NOW, on - this _ day of 19 ) S o

FINDS:

3 (1) That due public notice having been‘/'glven as required by law,
the Commission has jurisdiction of this cause and the subject matter thereof:

(2) That the proposed unit plan will in principle terd to
promote the conservation of oil and gas and the prevention of waste.

: IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:
1. That this order shall be known as the

NORTH CA vffw UNIT AGREEMENT ORDER

That the project herein referred to shall be known as

{ 4 ( EQ%:'_E_'M'I% Unit Agreement and shall hereipafter
":; be relerred tc as rojec

(b) That the Plan by which the project shall be operated
shall be embraced in the form of a _nunit agreement for the development
and operation of the /{ a/az/' »tw.” Unit Area, referred to in
the Petitioner's petition and f1 said petition, and such plan
shall be known as the &,}g}a,&/ Unit Agreement Plan,

3. % That the 7244//( (iistsea’  Unit Agreement Plan
* ¥ X shall be, and hereby is, approved in principle as a proper conservation

r i; measure; provided, however that notwithstanding any of the provisions
gt

contained in said unit agreement, this approval shall not be considered
as waiving or relinquishing in any manner any right, duties or obligations
which are now, or may hereafter, be vested in the New Mexico 0il Con-
servation Commission by law relative to the supervision and control of
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Order No.

operations for.exploration and development of any lands committed to

4

said . G008 F 0t Unit Agreement, or relative to

the production of o lgn gas ere rom

( () T the unit operator periodically” shall file with

the Commission a_- Unitfétatement of Drogress,
summarizing o ations Tor the eXploration and. development of (ﬁy lands
committed to said _~Unit Agreement.” This state<
ment of p"grﬁﬁg i1l be fich’within 30 -days after the eﬁbiraticn - 4
each six<mont uring ;he term of the unit agreement, shalltgpd%ain
such pértinent data ags-may be necessafy for the Co ssion to d rmine
kﬁh progress being mfide in the U/} Area.

4., (a) That the unit area shall be:
. NEW MEXICO PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
TOWNSHIP 72 Sousi- , RANGE .2 &ros7—

TOWNSH 1P 23 S'eurH, RINGE 24 EQsT
Keclion /7 tyer | E

<‘Qec[<mo Z: @bl
containing 23539 acres more or less.

(b) The unit area may be ‘enlarged or contracted as rovided
in Said lan Pwit it griegent Zdne mwg/mm e SETEA, , 71151/

&é) PO ; t UT/ e A ens
s " ﬁ ?@ﬂ%ﬁ% unfé opé@ator shall ff&é wi i%A ‘/A% /iéh anﬂMq“4i

executed or1g1na1 or executed counterpart of the Il ?;'
Unit Agreement within 30 days after the effective

date thereof.
6. That any party owning rights in the unitized substances who

ki

does not commit such rights to said unit agreement before the effective g
date thereof may thereafter become-a party thereto by subscribing to such
agreement or counterpart thereof, or by ratifying the same. The unit Cﬁgf
operator shall file with the Commission within 30 days an original of any

such counterpart or ratification.

7. That this Order shall become effec ive upon t e approval ?; ?
said unit agreement by the 4 :

L o Gornilivncre of Aullics a.,.,é,,_/q/jsz e ST §

onelon )
terminate ipso facto upon The Termination ol salid unit agreement.

The last unit operator shall immediately notify the Commission in writing
of such terminatien.

DONE at Santa Fe, New Mexico on the day and year hereinalkove
designated.
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
1L, _CONSERVATION COMMISSION AN

‘o

‘“iz;/’“g{-%'

SEAL %xm ' [é(////- (’-'.:, fo
!.‘é'ﬁ Z:

ngéé&n JO .
dicss /I -
@@(Z{% Y ‘(J/_;. -
Ll L N2, S, L S -
:Zﬁ;zKZ; /Si' 621?




CONSENT AND RATIFICATTCN OF

NORTH CAVERNS UNI'T AGHIKMENT

ia

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDDY COUNTY, MEW MEXICO
The undersigned {(whether one or more) hereby:-acknowledge

tion of the Horth Caverns Unit Area embracing lands in Eddy County,

A /

New Mexico, which said Agreement is dated the .%¥4 day of

receipt of a copy of _the Unit Agreement for %hc~devélopmént;andMoperar

; 1960, and acknowledge that they have read the same

and are familiar with the terms and conditions thereof.

The undersigned also beiﬁgbthe owners of overriding royalty
or productiion payment interests 1n the lands or minerals embraced in
sald Unit Area, do hereby commit all of their said interests to the
North Caverns Unit Agreement and'do hereby coﬁsent thereto and ratify
and agrée to be bound by all of.che terms and prbvisions thereof, |
exactly the same as if the undersigned hadrexecuted the original of
said Unit Agreemént or a counterpart thereof,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF this instrument 1s executed by the under-

signed as of the date set forth in their respective acknowledgments,

jﬁv N (C‘__L/jl/] ¢ o\-’;//‘ -~

STATE OF NEW MEXICO ]

CHAVES I

COUNTY OF

Leadlin E INeZian Lbuglne

The foregoling instrument was acknowledged before me this 14th
, 1560, by _Caliie C, McLean, widow of M. A.
of Artepia, New Mexico .

B L R o
}

e

e

R T
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CONSENT AND EATIFICATION OF

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AGREEMENT

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

The undersigned (whethér one or more) hereby acknowledge

tion of the North Caverns Unit Area embracing lands in Eddy County,

New Mexico, which saild Agreement 1s dated the Lﬁﬂﬂf.day of /Z;U. /

» 1960, and acknowledge that they have read the same

daywofi ., iﬁ;tl s 1960, by _Callie C, Mclean, widow of M_
.c". 32 D_& s Of  _Artesia. New Mawio~

and are familiar wlth the terms and conditlons thereof,.

The undersigned also béing the owners of overriding royalty

or productiion payment interests in the lands or mineﬁals embraced in

sald Unit Area, do hereby commit all of their said interests to the

North Caverns Unit Agreement and do hereby consent thereto and ratify

and agree to be bound by all of the terms and provisions thereof,
exactly the same asqif the undersigned had executed the original of
said Unit Agreement or a counterpart thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this instrument 1s executed by the under-

signed as of the date set forth iIn their respective acknowledgments.

ondles Eppetion ) becglet
I 7 lean

STATE OF NEW MEXICO §

COUNTY oF CHAVES i

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 14th

R AP R S

S o L e —— e

......
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CONSENT AND RATIFICATION OF

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AGREEMENT

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

The undersigned (whether one or more) hereby acknowledge

nonv of the 1Init Ao
cep cl-The Unil &g

reement for the development and apera-.

tion of the North Caverns Unit Area embracing lands in Eddy County,
New Mexico, which said Agreement 1s dated the 29%4{ day of /iOIr /

, 1960, and acknowledge that they have read the same

and are familiar with the terms and conditions thereof,

The undersighed>also being the owners of overriding royalty
or productiion payment interests in the lands or minerals embraced in
sald Unit Area, doc hereby commit all of their sald intérests to the
North Caverns Unit Agreement and do hereby consent thereto and'ratify
and agree to be bound by all of the terms and provisions thereof,
exactly the same as if the undersigned had executed the original of
said Unit Agreement or a coﬁnterpart thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this instrument is executod by the under-

signed as of the date set forth in theilr respective acknowledgments.
Tadlin E.Inellam Meless
42521-621415g7ééZfé“”“\

STATE OF NEW NEXICO i

COUNTY OF CHAVES I

P ey —h W _ - bt

The foregoing 1nstrument was acknowledged before me this 14th
» 1560, by V‘&&t' vnq!2£!2§4_1;nsz_nx_n‘dn.____

R A

T3 A DRI 07BN LEY T K MR SIS SN 1 e
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CONSENT AN RAT!IVICATION OF

NORTH CAVERNS URTYT AGREEMENT

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDDY COUNYY, NEW MEXICO

- The undersigned (whether one or more) hereby acknowledge

lopment and opera-

‘tion of the North Caverns Unit Area embracing lands in Eddy County,

77

New Mexico, which said Agreement 1s dated the & day of

, 1960, and acknowledge that they have read the same

Hprif
-7
and are familiiar with the terms and condltions thereof.

The undersigned also being the cwners of overriding royalty
or productiion payment interests in the lands or minerals embraced in
sald Unit Area, do hereby commlit all of their saild intepests to the
North Caverns Unit Agreement and do hereby ;onsent theretc and ratify
and agree to be bound by all of the’terms and provisions thereof,
exactly the same as if the undersigned had executed the original of
said Unilt Agreement or a counterpart thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF thils instrument 1is executed by the under-

_signed as of the date set forth in their respective acknowledgments.

Disa. 7L A 7)(;-3, foit
j%% 7%[(7¢1t12hu$$

STATE OF New MEXICO i
COUNTY OF CHAVES !

The forvgoing instrumen
: - ° TN
day ol ,_EEE“ s AYDU,

RROMT
ﬁﬁgsnigq Explirves:
Sy '

.
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e QA TR




CONSENT AND RATIFICATION OF

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AGREEMENT

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDLY CQUNTY, NEW MEXICO

The undersigned (whether one or more) hereby acknowleage
recelpt of a copy of the Unit Agreement for thne de/elobment and opera—
tion of the North Caverns Unit Area embracing laggs in Eddy County,

New Mexico, which sald Agreement is dated the ;22%{ day of

prsl , 1960, and acknowledge that they have read the same

and are familiar with the terms and condlitions thereof.

The undersigned alsc being the owners of overriding royalty
or préductiion payment interests in the lands or minerals embraced in
saild Unit Area, do hereby commit all of their sald interests to the
North Caverns Unilt Agreement énd dc-heréi; congent thereto and ratify
and agree to be bound by all of the terms and provisions thereof,
exactly the same as 1f the undersigned had executed the origlnal of
sald Unit Agreement or a counterpart thereof. -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this instrument is executed by the under-

signed as of the date set forth in thelr respective acknowledgments,

?&Z&d. i&QLAMA:ZQLZ}Q;a

STATE OF Ngw /MEXICO ]
COUNTY OF CHAVE.S {

LOSWELL NEW MEXID

-4

The feoregoing instrument was acknowledged before me thls g

day of __gpgy, » 1960, by A&%MLMWMM&M&MRMBML

;4;4/]1',/

\N’E Notary Public

‘:ﬁmq§a&93_ﬁxpires:
N

. L A
# : . A
;:t: ~ . :: /
. C Y
"O_ D .
.‘0"-.'»1 o -
.‘;\ < . b_,‘
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CONSENT AND RATIFICATION OF

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AGREEMENT

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

wiveoo . The undersigned (whether cne or more) hereby acknowledge
receipt of a copy of the Unit Agrggﬁént for the qevel“pmentuandwepera-u B m;
tion of the North Caverns Unit Area embracing 1a$2§ in Eddy County,

New Mexlco, which said. Agveement is dated the ;sz{ day of

oril ,; 1960, and acknowledge that they have read the same

and/are famillar with the terms and cpnditions thereof, |
A The'undersigned also being the ownefs of overriding'royalty

or productiion paymenﬁ?interests in the lands or minerals embraced inr
sald Unit Area, do hereby commitﬁall of their sald interests to the
North Caverns Unit Agreement and do ﬁereby consent thereto and ratify
and agree to be bound by all of the terms and provisions‘thereof,
exactly the same as if the undersigned had execuvted the original of

said Unit Agreement or a counterpart thereof.

AT AL

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this instrument is executed by the under- 2

NTRNER PRI

signed as of the date set forth in thelr respective acknowledgments.

i 2

Pva. K j)LZ/im:v
774 7§Z-%’}14,ZQ<A@©

STATE OF New MEXiCD I
COUNTY OF CHAVE.S 1

The foregoing instrument was arknowledged vefore me this 4{‘1

day of EPE[ s 1‘90\), Uy 2tommw .4 L) “l' UrﬂvWHMILNwW—.—
of oswell New mexico

%,

otary Pu
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receipt of a copy of the Unit Agreement for the development and opera—

CONSENT AND RATIFICATION OF

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AGREEMENT

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO |

The undersigned (whether one or more) hereby acknowledge

tion of the North Caverns Unit Area embracing lands in Eddy County,

Vs :
New Mexico, which sald Agreement 1s dated the :;§£E day of 4%&4441/

, 1960, and acknowledge that they have read the' same

N AN 5 e T R

and are familiar with the terms and conditions thereof.

The undeysigned also bveing the owners of overriding royalty
or productilon payment interests in the lands or mlnerals embraeed in
sald Unit Area, do hereby commit all of theirrsaid interests to the
North Caverns Unit Agreement and do hereby consent thereto and ratify
and agree to be bound by all of the terms and provisions thereof,
exactly the same as If the undersigned had executed the original of
sald Unit Agreement or a counterpart thereof,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this instrument is executed by the under—'

signed as of the date set forth in theilr respective acknowledgments.

/I RUT

(’ ‘ . 1 U 3/ -
.,ZAV); ,?2 . vb} Lic-ﬁi'ﬁﬁt*'/ﬁ' e

(

STATE OF TEXAS i
COUNTY OF HARRIS J

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before
day of April , 1960, by Mr. and Mrs., N. G. Cum
L of Houstor, Texas

Notary FUbIIe
My Commission Expires: pokbTHY W, HALL

June 1, 196} Notary Pusic w1 083 tor Har is Dounty, Texas

My Commussion ©rpires luna 1, 1551
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COWSENT AND RATIFICATION OF

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AGREEMENT

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

The undersigned (whether one or more) hereby acknowledge
recelpt of a copy of the Unit Agreement for the development and opera-
New Mexico, which said Agreement 1s dated the day of LZhrel

s, 1960, and acknowledge that they have read the same

tion of the North Caverns Unit Area embracing lands in Eddy Couiity,
-J

‘and are familiar with the terms and conditions thereof.

The undersigned also being the owners of overriding royalty

4¢r productiion payment interests in the lands or minerals embraced in

said Unit Area, do hereby commlt all of their saild interests to tﬁe
North Caverhs Unit Agreement and do hereby consent thereto and ratify
and agree to be bound by all of the terms:and provisions thereof,
exactly the same as 1f the undersigned had executed the original of
said Unit Agreement or a counterpart thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF~tﬁis instrument 1is executed by the under-

sligned as of the date set forth in thelr fespective acknowledgments.

W/ RUTES

Do Do Joien
| il

STATE OF TEXAS i SRRy,
SN
COUNTY OF HARRIS i . :g\ _ -

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before
day of April , 1960, by Mr, and Mrs, N, G, C
of Houston

EFTTITR

S YR TS 74‘@@ .'

NdfariéZUblIE
My Commission Expires: pokDTHY W, HALL
_ _June 1. 1961 Notary Pubiic v and for Harsis County, Tou 1

My Commussion Expites funa 1,157
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CONSENT AND RATIFICATICON OF

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AGREEMENT

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

The undersigned (whether one or more) hereby acknowledge

7 receipt of a copy of the Unit Agreement for the development and opera-

tion of the North Caverns Unit Area embrécing 1ands in Eddy County,
New Mexico, which said Agreement is dated the ."day of 4g;$¢¢4i/

, 1960, and acknowledge ﬁhat they have read the same

and are familiar with the terms and conditions thereof.

The undersigned also being the owners of overriding royalty

or productiion payment interests in the lands or minerals embraced .in

 said Unit Area, do hereby commit all of their said interests to the

North Caverns Unit Agreement and do hereby consent thereto and ratify
and agree to be bound by all of the terms and provisions’éhereof,
exactly the same as 1if the undersigned had executed the original of
sald Unit Agreement or a counterpart thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this instrument is executed by the under-

signed as of the date set forth in thelr respective acknowledgments,

7/5%@

STATE OF TEXAS i i,
‘:\\ \".',: ‘?§E1~° -
COUNTY OF HARRIS I S\

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before
day of April , 1960, by Mr a.nd Mrs, N, G, Cum

Heouston, Texas

i Sl

Notary f¥ublic
My Commission Expires: THY W. HALL
I 1. i if ] Notary Pubic .0 and for Harsis County, Tox s

My Commission Expies leae 1, 1971
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CONSENT AND RATIFICATION OF

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AGREEMENT

EMBRACING LANDS IN EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

The undersigned (whether one or more) hereby acknowledge

receipt of a copy of the Unit Agreement for the development and opera-

:ion of the North Caverns Unit Area embracing lands in Eddy County,ﬂ

-~re 3

New Mexico, which said Agreement is dated the day of éEZﬂQc{L/

, 1960, and acknowledge that they have read the same

" and are familiar with the terms and conditions thereof.

The undersigned also being the owners of overriding royalty
or productiion payment interests in the lands or minerals embraced in
said Unit Area, do hereby commit all of their said 1nterests to the

North Caverns Unit Agreement and do hereby consent thereto and ratify

N,Wand”agree to be bound by all of the terms.- .d provisions thereof,

exactly the same as if the undersigned had executed the original of
saild Unit Agreement or a counterpart thereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF this instrument 1i1s executed by the under-

signed as of the date set forth in their respective acknowledgments.

STATE OF TEXAS i
COUNTY OF HARKIS i
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before
day of April , 1960, by Mr and Mrs. N, G. Cwna
Houston, 1exas '_
Notary ubII&
My Commission Expires: 00KOTHY W. HALL

I l ] Qf ] Notary Public in and for Harrlsg County, Texas

My Commission Expires June 1, 1961
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EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NO. '

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into as of the day of
, 1960, by and between the parties subscribing,

‘ratifying, or gonsenting hereto( and herein referred to as the parties

hereto," Lljjgj W t :j;ﬁ.
i
»”L’;-ﬁ"’ﬂ dﬁ;‘ lﬂ Y{i{

VTN ESSETH:
ﬁ37‘ “WHEREAS the parties hereto are the owners of working, royalty,
or other o1l and gas interests in the unit area subject to this agreement;
and
WHEREAS the Mineral Leasing Act of February 25, 1920, 41 Stat,.

M37;Wés émended, 30 U.S.C. Secs. 181 et seq., authorizes Federal lessees

and their representatives to unite with each other, or jointly or separately
with others, in collectively adopting and operating a cooperative or unit
plan of development or operation of any oll or gas pool, field, or like
area, or any part thereof for the purpose of more properly conserving the
natrual resources thereof whenever determined and certified by the Secretary
of the Interior to be necessary or‘advisable in the public Interest; and
WHEREAS, the Commissiloner of Public Lands of the State of New
Mexice 1is authorized by an Act of the Legislature (Sec. 7-11-39 N.M,
Statutes 1953 Annotated) to consent to or approve this agreement on be-
half of the State of New Mexlco, insofar as it covers and includes lands

and mineral interests of the State of New Mexicoj; and

WHEREAS, the 0il Conservation Commission of the State of New

'13 Mexico is authorized by an act of the Legislature (Chapter 72, Laws of
1935, as amended by Chapter 193, Laws of 1937, Chapter 166, Laws of 1941,
and Chapter 168, Laws of 1949) to approve this agreement and the conserva-

tion provisions hereof; and

! AN
2 (Q 2 \
J \ UNIT AGREEMENT
VIR FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION OF THE ;. o6 S
L” I (i’/Za/“
: ]0,\ NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AREA L .
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WHEREAS"the parties hereto hold sufficient interests 1n the

North Caverns Unit Area covering the land hereinafter described to give
reasonably effective control of operatioﬁs therein; and

WHEREAS, 1t is the purpose of the parties hereto to conserve
natural resources, prevent waste, and secure other benefits obtailnable
through development and operation of the area subject to this agreement
under the terms, conditions and limitations herein set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the promises
lherein contalned, the parties hereto commit to this agreement their re-
spectiveAintereéts in the below-defined unit area, and agree séverally
among themselves as follows:

1. ENABLING ACT AND REGULATIONS. The Mineral Leasing Act of
Febrvary 25, 1920, as amended, supra, and all valid pertinent regulations,
including operating and unit plan regulations, heretofore issued there-
under or valid, pertinent, and reasonable regulations hereafter issued ? _ Lol
thereundef are accepted and made a part of this agreement as to Federal 4 | J
lands, provided such regulations are not inconsistent with the terms of
ﬁhis agreement; and as to Stéte of New Mexico aﬁd privately owned lands, £ 31;
the oll and gas operating regulations in effect as of the effective date D -
hereof governing drilling and producing operations, not inconsistent with
the terms hereof or the laws.of the State of New Mexico are hereby accepted f
and made a part of this agreement.

2. UNIT AREA. The following-described land 1s hereby designated

and recognized as constituting the unit area:

e Y vy A S e A A

.T-22-S, R-24-E, N.M.P.M. T-23-3, R-24-E, N,M,P,M, ;
Section 26: S/2 Section 1: W/2 :
27 S/? ' 2: All
34 All 3: All
35: A1l 10: All
11: All
12: W/2
14: N/2, SW/4, W/2 SE/U
15: A1l

Containing 6,302.63 acres, more or less.

Exhibit A attached hereto is a map showing the unit area and the
% houndaries and identity of tracts and leases in sald area to the extent
known to the Unit Operator. Exhibit B attached hereto is a schedule showing

to the extent known to the Unit Operator the acreage, percentage, and kind
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of ownership of oil and gas interests in all land in the unit area, How-
ever, nothing herein or 1n sald schedule or map shall be construed as a
representation by ény party hereto as tc the own;rship of any interest
other than such interestnor interests as are shown in said map or

schedule as owned by such party. Exhibits A and B shalllbe revised by

the Unit Operapor whenever changes in the unit area render such révision
necessary, or when requested by the 011 and Gas Supervisor, hereirafter re-
ferred to as "Supervisor", or when requested by the Commissioner of Public
B Lands of the State of Néw‘MeXiéo,'héféiﬁéftéf referred to as "State Com-
miésioner", and not less than seven copies of the revised exhibits shall

be filed with the Supervisor; and one (1) copy thereof shall be filed with_
the State Commissioner‘and one (1) copy with the New Mexico 0il Conserva-
tion Commission, hereinafter referred'to as "State Commission".

o The above-describéd unit area shall when practicable be expanded
to include therein any additional tract or tracts regarded as reasonably
necessary or advisable for the purposes of this agreement, or shall be
contracted to exclude lands not within any participating area whenever
such expansion or contraction is necéssary or advisable to conform with

the purposes of this agreement. Such expansion or contraction shall be
éffected in the following manner:

(a) Unit Operator, on its own motion or on demand of the Director
of the‘Geological Survey, hereinafter referred to as "Director', or on
demand of the State Commissioner, after preliminary concurrence by the
Director, shall prepare a notice of proposed expansion or contraction des-
cribing the contemplated changes in the boundaries of the unit area, the
reasons therefor, and the proposed effective date therecof, preferably
the first day of a month subsequent to the date of notice.

(b) Said notice shall be delivered to the Supervisor, the State
Commissioner and the State Commission and copies thereof mailed to the
last known address of each working interest owner, lessee, and lessor
whose interests are affected, advising that 30 days will be allowed for
submission to the Unit Operator of any objections.

(c) Upon expiration of the 30-day period provided in the pre-

ceding item (b) hereof, Unit Operator shall file with the Supervisor, the

-3-




State Commissioner and the State Commission evidence of mailing of the
notice of expansion or contraction and a copy of any obJections thereto
B which have been flled with the Unit Operator, together with an applica-

tion in sufficient number, for approval of such expansion or contraction

| " and with appropriaté:Joinders.

%f‘fjabj o (d) After due consideration of all pertinent information, the

. expansibn or contraction shall, upon approval by the Director, the State
Commissloner and the State Commission, become effective as of the date
prescribed in the notice thereof,

(e) A1l legal subdivisions of unitized lands (i.e., 40 acres byv

Government survey or its nearest lot or tract equivalent in instances of
‘lrregular surveys, however; unusually large lots or tracts shall be con- é
sidered in multiples of 40 acres,>or the nearest aliquot equivalent theré—

,,,,,,,,,, of, for the purpose of elimination under thié sﬁbsectidn), no parts of T
which are entitled to be in a participating area within 5 years after the
first day of the month following the effective date of the first initial
particlpating area established under the unit agreement, shall be eliminated
automatically‘from this agreement, effective as of the first day there- ‘
after, and Such lands shall no longer be a part of the unit area and shall
no longer be subject to this agreement, unless at the expiration of said
5-year period diligent drilling operations are in progress on unitized
lands not entitled to participation, in which event all such laﬁds shall

~ remain subject hereto for so long as such drilling operalions are con-
tinued diligently, with not more than 90 days' time elapsing between the

completion of one such well and the commencement of the next such well,

except that the time allowed between such wells shall not expire earliler
than 30 days after the expiration of any period of time during which

drilling operations are prevented by a matter beyond the reascnable control

of unit operator as set forth in the section hereof entitled "Unavoidable
Delay"; provided that all legal subdivisions of lands not in a partici-
pating ares and not entitled tTo become participating under

provisions of ihils agrecment within 10 years after said fi

3

st day of the
nonth following the effective date of said first initial participating area

shall be eliminated as above specified. Determination of creditable

4o




"Unavoidable Delay" time shall be made by unit operator and subject to
approval of the Director and the State Commissioner. The unlt operator
shall, within 90 days after the effective date of any elimination here-
under, describe the area so eliminated to the satisfactioniof the Director
and the State Commissioner and promptly notify all parties in interest. ‘
If conditions warrant extension of the 10-year period specified
in this subsection 2(e), a single extension of not to exceed 2 years may
be accomplished by consent of the owners of 90% of the current unitized
working inferests and 60% of the current unitized basic royalty interests
(exclusive of the basic royalty.inteﬁests of the United States), on a

total~-nonparticipating-acreage basis, respectively, wilth approval of the

'Director, and the State Commissioner provided such extensilon appllication -

ls submitted to the State Commissloner and the Director not later than
60 days prior to the expiration of saild 1l0-year period,

Any expansion of the unit area pursuant to thils sectlon which
embraces lands theretofore eliminated pursuant to this subsection 2(e)
shall not be éOnsidered,automatic commitment or recommitment of Such lands.

3. UNITIZED LAND AND UNITIZED SUBSTANCES, All land committed
to this agreement shall constitute land referred to herein as "unitized
land" or"land subject to this agreement", All oil and gas in any and all
formations of the unitized land are unitized under the terms of this agree-
ment and herein are called "unitized substances".

4, UNIT OPERATOR. Gulf 011 Corporation is hereby designated as
Unit Operator and by signature hereto as Unit Operator commits to this agree-
ment all interests in unitized substances vested in 1t and agrees and con-
sents to accept the duties and obligations of Unit Operator for the dis-
covery, development and productlion of unitized substances as herein pro-
vided. Whenever reference is'made herein to the Unit Operator, such
reference means the Unit Operator acting in that capaclty and not as an
owner of interest in unitized substances, and the term "working interest

owner" when used herein ghall include or re

fer to Unit Operator as tihe owner
of a working interest when such an interest 1s owned by it.

5. RESIGNATION OR REMOVAL OF UNIT OPERATOR. Unilt Operator shall
have the right to resign at any time prior to the establishment of a par-
ticipating area or areas hereunder, but such resignation shall not become

..5...



effeotive so as to release Unit Operator from the duties and obligations
of Unit Operator and terminate Unit Operator's rights as such for a period
of 6 months after notice of intentlon to resign has been served by Unit
Operator on all vorking interest owners and the Director, the State Com-
migssioner and State Commission and ﬁntil all wells then drilled hereunder
are placed in a satisfactory condition for suspension or abandonment which-
ever 1s required by the Supervisor as to Federal lands and the State Com~-
mission as to State and privately owned lands unless-a new Unit>0perator
shall have been selected and approved and shall have taken over and as-
sumed the duties and obligations of Unit Operator prior to the expiration
of said period. | '

Unit Operator shall have the right to resign in like manner and
subject to like limitations, as above profided, at any time a participating
area established hereunder 1s in existence, but, in all instances of
resignation or remo§al, until a successor unit-operator is selected and
approved as hereinafter provided, the working interest owners shall be
Jbintly'responsible for performance of the duties of unit operator, and
shall not later than 30 days before such resignation or removal becomesf
effective appoint a common agent to represent them in any action to be
. taken hereunder.

The reslignation of Unit Operator shall not release Unlt Operator
from any liability for any default by it hereunder occurring prior to the
effectlive date of 1ts resignation,

| The Unit Opzrator may, upon default or failure in the performance
of its duties or obligations hereunder, be subject to removal by the same
percentage vote of the owners of working interests determined in like man-
ner as herein provided‘for the selection of a new Unit Operator. Such re-
moval shall be effective upon notice thereof to the Director and the State
Commissioner,
The resignation or removal of Unit Operator under this agreement

1oV terminatve its right, title, or interest as the owner of a working

EI’
&
P -l
[
o)

interest or other interest in unitized substances, but upon the resignation
or removal of Unit Operator becoming effective, such Unit Operator shall
deliver possession of all equipment, materials, and appurtenances used in

conducting the unit operations and owned by the working interest owners to
-6~
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the new duly qualified successor Unit Operator or to the owners thereof 1if
no such new Unit Operator 1s elected, to be used for the purpose of con-

ducting unit operations hereunder. Nothing herein shall be construed as

i
i
;
i
o
{
i
i

authorizing removal of any material, equipment and appurtenances needed for

the preservation of any wells,

6. SUCCESSOR UNIT OPERATOR. Whenever the Unit Operator shall

tender his or its resignation as Unit Operator or shall be removed as

st
e
S

" hereinabove provided, the owners of the working interesis in the pa
pating area or areas according to their respective acreage~intefests in
such participating area or areas, or, until a participating area shall
have been established, the owners of thefworking interests according to
thelr respective acreage Interests in all unitized land, shall by majority.
vote select a successor Unit Opefatdr:’ Provided, that, 1f a majority but :  3
less than 75 per cent of the working interests qualified to vote are owned ‘
by one party to this agreement, a concurring vote of one or more additional ;

working interest owners shali”be fequired to éelect a new operator. Such - . 3

selection shall not become effective until:

(a) a Unit Operator so selected shall accept in writing the duties

N

and responsibilities of Unit Operator, and

(b) the selection shall nave been approved by the Director and
State Commissicner. If no successor Unit Operator is selected and
qualified as herein provided, the Director and State Commiséioner at their
electlion may declare thils unit ggreement terminated. '

7. ACCOUNTING PROVISIONS AND UNIT OPERATING AGREEMENT., If the

Unit Operator is not the sole owner of working interests, costs. and ex- i
penses lncurred by Unit Operator in conducting unit operations hereunder ' ;

shall be paid and apportioned among and borne by the owners of working

interests, all in accordance with the agreement or agreements entered into ;

by and between the Unlt Operator and the owners of working interests,

whether one or more, separately or collectively. Any agreement or agree-

) B : ments entered into between the working interest owners and the Unit Opera-
tor as provided in this section, whether one or more, are herein referred
to as the "unit operating agreement". Such unit operating agreement shall

also provide the manner in which the working Interest owners shall be

-7 -




diligently until tre Devonilan formations have been tested or until at

o}

L

a lesser depth unitized substances shall be discovered which can be pro-
duced in paying quantities (to-wit: quantities sufficient to repay the
costs of drilling, and producing operations, with a reasonable profit) or
the Unit Operator shall at any time establlish to the satisfaction of the
Supervisor 1f on Federal land, of the State Commissioner if on State land,
oxr of the State Commission if on privately owned land, that further
drilling of said well would be unwarranted or. impracticable, provided
’however, that Unit Operator shall not in any event be required to drill
said well to a depth in excess of ii,Zngiggﬁ' Until the discovery of

a deposit of unitized substances capable of being produced in paying
quantities, the Unlit Operator shall continue drilling diligently one well
at a time, allowing not more than 6 months between the completion of one
well and the beginning of the next well, until e well capable of produciﬁg
unitized substances in paying quantities 1is compieted to tﬁe satisfaction
of saild Supervisor if it be on Federal 1and‘er of the State Commissioner
_if on State land or fhe State Commission;if on privately owned land or
until it is reascnably proved that the unitized land is incapable of pro-
ducing unitized substances in paying quantities in the formations drilled
hereunder. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to 1limit the right of

the Unit Operator to resign as provided in Section 5 hereof, or as re-

gquiring Unit Operator to commence or continue any drilling during the period

pending such resignation becoming effective in order to comply with the
requirements of this section. The Director and State Commissioner may
modify the drilling requirements of this section by granting reasonable
extensiong of time when, in their opinion, such action is warranted.

Upon failure to comply with the drilling provisions of this sec-
tion, the Director and State Commissioner ray, after reasonable notice to
the Unit Operator, and each working interest owner, lessee, and lessor at
thelr last known addresses, declare this unit agreement terminated.

10. PLAN CF FURTHER DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION. Within 6 months
after completion of a well capable of producing wnitized substancesg in
paying guantities, the Unit Operator shall submit for the approval of the
Supervisor and the State Commissioner an acceptable plan of development

and operation for the unitized land which, when approved by the Supervisor
-9-
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and the State Commissioner, shall constitute the further drilling and opera-
ting obligations of the Unit Operator under this agreement for the period
i specified therein., Thereafter, from time to tlime before the explration

of any existing plan, the Unlt Operator shall submit for the approval of

the Supervisor and the State Commissioner a plan for an additional speci-
fied -period for the development and operation of the ﬁnitized land., Any
plan submi@ted pursuant to this sectlon shall provide for the exploration
of;the unitized area and for the diligent drilling necessary for determina-
tion of the area or areas thereof ‘capable of producing unitized suﬁstances’
1n‘§aying quantities in each and every productive formation and shall be
as complete and edequate as the Supervisor and the State’Commissioner may
determine to be necessary for timely development and proper conser?ation
of the oll and gas resources of the unitized area and shall;

(a) specify the number and locations of any wells to be drilled

and the proposed order and time for such drilling; and

,»(b) to the extent practicable specify the operating practices
regarded as neceseary and advisable for proper‘eOnsefvation of '
natural resources. Separate plans may be submitted for separate
productive zones, subject to the approval of the Supervisor and
the State Commissioner. Said plan o6r plans shall be mcédified or

supplemented when necessary to meet changed conditlions or to pro-

tect the interests of all parties to this agreement. Reasonable
diligence shall be exercised in complying with the ob}igations of
the approved plan of development. The Supervisor and State Com-
missioner are authorized to grant a reasonable extension of the
6-month period herein prescribed for submission of an initial

plan of development where such action 1is justified because cf un-

usual conditions or circumstances. After completion hereunder of

a well capable of producing any unitized substance in paying

‘§ guantities, no further wells, except such as may be necessary to
afford protection against operations not under thils agreement or

P - such as may be specifically approved by the Supervisor and the

State Commissioner shall be drilled except in accordance with a

plan of development approved as herein provided.




~of unitized substances in paving quantities; all lands—in 5aid schedule

11. PARTICIPATION AFTER DISCOVERY. Upon completion of a well
capable of producing unitized substances in payling quantitles, the Unit
Operator shall, within the month of such completion, if practicable, or as /
soon thereafter as reduired by the Supervisor or the State Commissioner
submit for approval by the Director and the State Commissioner a schedule,

based on subdivisions of the public land survey or aliquot parts thereof,

of all unitized land then regarded as reasonably proved to be productive

on approval of the Director and the State Commissioner to constitnte a

participating area, effective as of the date of completion of ‘such well
e T e e e sy e

/\m
or the effective date of the unit agreement whichever is later. Saild

—me

schedule also shall set forth the percentage of unitized substances to be
allocated as herein provided to each unitized ‘tract in the participating
area so established, and shall govern the allocation of production from
and after the date the participating area becomes effective. A separate
participating area shall be established in like manner for each separate
pool or deposit of unitized substances or for any group thereof produced
as a single pool or zone, and any two or more participating areas so
established may be combined into one with the consent of the owners of

all working interests in the lands within the participating areas so to

be combined, on approval of the Director and the State Commissioner. The
participating area or areas so established shall be revised from time to
time, subject to like approval, whenever such action appears proper as a
result of further drilling.operations or otherwise, to include additional
land then regarded as reasonably proved to be productive in paying quanti-
fies, or to exclude land then regarded as reasonably proved not to be pro-
ductive in paying quantities and the percentage of:allocation shall also
be revised accordingly. The effective date of any revision shall be the
first of the month in which isﬁobtained the knowledge or information on
which such rev1sion is predicated prov1ded however, that a more sppro-

ive date may be used 11 justified by the Unit Operator an

[
Q
c'l‘

approved by the Director and the State Commissioner. No land shall be

_excluded from a participating area on account of depletion of the unitized

substances.
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It 1s the intent of this sectlon that a participating area shall

represent the area known or reasonably estimated to be productive in paying

quantities; but, regardless of any revision of the participating ares,
nothing herein contained shall be construed as requiring any retroactive

adJustment for productlon obtained prior to the effective date of the

:evision of the participating area.
In the absence of agreement at any time between the Unit Operator

and the Director and the State Commissioner as to the proper definition or

redefinition of a participating area, or until a participating area has,

or areas have, been established as provided herein, the portion of all

payments affected tﬁereby may be impounded 1in a manher mutually acceptable

‘to the owners of working interests, except royalties due the Unite& States

rand the State of New Mexico, which shall be determined by fhe Supervisér
Afor'Federal lands and the State Commissioner for State lands and the State
Commission as to privétely owned lands and the amount thereof deposlited,
as directed by the Supervisor and the State Commissloner respectively, to
be held as unearned money until a participating aréé is finally approved
and then applied as earned or returned 1n accordance with a determlnation
of the sum due as Federal and State royalty on the basis of such approved
participating area.

Whenever it is determined, subject to the approval of the Super-

visor, as to wells drilled on Federal land and of the State Commissioner

as to wells drililed on’State land and the State Commission as to wells on
privately owned lands, that a well drilled under this agreement is not
capable of production in paying quantities and 1nc1usibn of the iand on
which it is situated in a participating area is unwarranted, production
from such well shall, for the purposes of settlement among all parties
other than working interest owners, be alilocated to the land on which the
well is located so long as such land 1s not within a participating area

established for the pool or deposit from which such production 1s obtalned,

Settlement for working interest benefits from such a well shall be made as

provided in the unit operating agreement.

12. ALLOCATION OF PRODUCTION. All unitized substances precduced
from each participating area established under this agreement, except any

part thereof used in conformity with good operating practices within the

-12-
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unltized area for drilling? operating, camp and other production or develop-
ment purposes, for repressuring or recycling in accordance with a plan of
development approved by the Supervisor, and State Commissioner and the
Stété Commission, or unavoidabiy lost, shall be deemed to be produced
equally on an acreage basls from the several tracts of unitized land of

the participating area established for such productlion and, for the pur-
pose of determining any benefits aécruing under this agreement, each such
tract of unitized land shall have allocated to:1t such percentage of sald
production as ﬁhe number ofhacfés of sﬁch tfécﬁ inclﬁdéd in said partici-
patiné area bears to the total acres of unltized land in said particl-
pating area, except that allocation of production‘hereunder for purposes
other than for settleﬁent of the royalty, overriding royalty, or payment
out of production obligations of the respective working interest owners,
shall be on the basis prescribed in the unit operatiﬁg agreement whether
in conformity with the basis of allocation herein sét forth or otherwise.
It is hereby agreed thatrproduction of unitized substances from a particl-
pating area shall be allocated as ﬁf6§1&éd herein regardless of whether
‘any wells are drilled on any particular part or tract of said participating
area. If any gas produced from one participating area is used for re-’
pressuring or recycling purposes in another participating area, the first
gas withdrawn from‘such last-mentioned participating area for sale during
the 1life of this agreement shall be considered to be the gas so transferred
until an amount equal to that transferred shall be so produced for sale and
such gas shall be allocated tc the participating area from which initially
prcduced as constituted at the time of such finaliproduction.

13. DEVELOPMENT OR OPERATION OF NON-PARTICIPATING LAND OR
FORMATIONS, Any party or parties hereto owning or controlling the working
interests in any unitized land having thereon a regular well location may
with the approval of the Supervisor as to Federal land, the State Com-
missioner as to State land, and the State Commission as to privately owned
land, and subject to the provisions of the Unit Operating Agreement, at such
party's or partiesi sole risk, co0sts, aind eipense drill 2 well a2t such lo-

avis 1o
O RA AL _\.und tO

test any formation for which a participating area
has not been established or to test any formatlon for which a participa-

ting area has been established 1if such location is not within said
-13-




particlipating area, or drill any well not mutually agreed to by all in-
terested parties, unless within 90 days of receipt of notice from said
party of his intention to drill the well the Unit Opefator elects and
commences to drill such a well 1n like manner as other wells are drilled
by the Unit Operator under this agreement.‘ |
If any well drilled as aforesaid by a working interest owner re-
sults in production such thatrthevlandwupon which it 1is situated may properly
be included in é parﬁicipat%ng area, such participating area shall be es-
tablished or enlarged as pfovi&ed in this agreement and the well shall
thereafter be operated by the Unit Operator 1n accordance with the terms
of th;s‘égreement and the unit operating agreement. -
If any well_drilled as aforesald by a working interest owner ob-
tailns production in quantities insufficlent to justify the inclﬁsion in ' B
a participating area of the land upon which such well is situated, such |
well may be operated and produced by the party drilling the same subject
to the conservation requirements of this agreement. The royalties in
amount or value of production from any such well shall be paid as speéified
in the underlying lease and agreements affected. !
14, ROYALTY SETTLEMENT, The United States and any State and all
royalty owners who, under existing contract, are entitled to take in kind
a share of the substances now uniftized hereunder produced from any tract, i

‘shall hereafter be entitled to the right to take in kind their share of

b en b g e

the unitized substances allocated to such tract, and Unit Operator, or in
case of the operation of a well by a working interest owner as herein in
special cases provided for, such working interest owner, shall make de-
liveries of such royalty share taken in kind in conformity with the ap-
plicable contracts, laws, and regulations. Settlement for royalty in-
terest not taken in kind shall be made by working interest owners respon-
sible therefor under existing contracts, laws and regulations on or before
the last day of each month for unitized substances produced during the
preceding calendar month; provided, however, that nothing herein contained
shall operate to relieve the lessees of any land from thelr respective
lease obligations for the payment of any royalties due under thelr leases.
If gas obtained from lands not subject to this agreement is in-

troduced Iinto any participating area hereunder, for use in repressuring,

-14-
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stimulation of production, or increasling ultimate recovery, which shall be
in conformity with a plan first approved by the Supervisor, the State Com~
missioner, and the State Commission, a like amount of gas, after settlement
as herein provided for any gas transferred from any other participating
area and wilth due allowance for loss or depletion from any cause, may be
withdrawn from the formation into which the gas was introduced, royalty
free as to dry gas, but not as to the products extracted therefrom; pro-

vided that such withdrawal shall be at such time as may be provided inr

‘the plah of operations or as may. otherwise be consented to by the Super-

visor, the State Commissioner aﬁd the State Commission as conforming to
good petroleum engineering practice; and provided further, that such right
of withdrawal shall terminate on the termination of this unit agreement,

Royalty due the United States shall be computed as provided in
the operating regulations and paid in value or delivered in kind as to all
unitized substances on the basis of the amounts thereof alldéated to
witized Federal land as provided herein at the rates specified in the
respective Federal 1éases, or at such 10we?ﬁrate or rates as may be
authorized by law or regulation; provided, that for leases on which the
royalty rdtéddepends on the daily average production per well, said average
production shall be determined in accordance with the operating regulations
as though each participating area were a single consolidated lease.

Royalty due on account of State and privately owned lands shall
be computed and paid on the basis of all unitized substances allocated'to
such lands.

15. RENTAL SETTLEMENT. Rental or minimum royalties due on
leases committed hereto shall be paid by working interest owners responsi-
ble therefor under existing contracts, laws, and regulations, provided
that nothing herein contéined shall operate to relieve the lesgees of any
land from their respective lease obligations for the payment of any rental
or minimum royalty in lieu thereof due under their leases. Rental or
minimum royalty for lands of the United States subject to this agreement
shall be praid a2t thc rate specilied in the respective leases from the
United States unless such rental or minimum royalty 1s waived, suspended,

or reduced by law or by approval of the Secretary or his duly authorized

representative,

-15-
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Rentals on State of New Mexico lands subject to this agreement

shall be pald at the rates specified in the respective leases,

;af‘ o With respect to any lease on non-Federal land containing pro-
Qﬁ; ;.L visions which would terminate such lease unless drllling operations were
:;f S -within the time therein speéified conmenced upon the land covered thereby
2 ] . . -

s or rentals pald for the privilege of deferring such drilling operations,

the rentals required thereby shall, notwithstanding any other provisilon

-

‘bfﬁﬁhis aéreement, be deemed to afcrue and become payable during thewfg?m
thereof as extended by this agreement and thereafter uﬁtil‘the required
drilling operations are commenced ﬁpon the land covered thereby or some
portion of such land is included within a participating area.

16, CONSERVATION. OperationsAhereunder and production of
unitized substances shall be conducted to provide for the most economical

and efflcient recovery of sald substances without waste, as defined by

cr pursuant to State or Federal law or regulation.

- 1T. DRAINKGE. The Unlt Operator shall -take appropriate and
adequate measures to prevent drainage of unitized substanées from unitized
land by Qells on land not subject to this agreement, or, with the consent
of the Director and the State Commissioner, pursuant to applicable regﬁla-
tions pay a falr and reasonable compensatory royalty.

18. LEASES AND CONTRACTS CONFORMED AND EXTENDED, The terms,

conditions, and provisions of all leases, subleases, and other contracts

relating to exploration, drilling, development, or operation for oll or
gas of lands committed to this agreement are hereby expressly modifled
and amended to the extent necessary to make the same conform to the pro-

visions hereof, but otherwise to remain in full force and effect; and the

parties hereto hereby consent that the Secretary as to Federal leases and

the State Commissloner as to State leases shall and each by his approval
hereof, or by the approval hereof by his duly authorized representative,
does hereby establish, alter, change, or revoke the drilling, producing,
1tal, minimom royalty, and royalty requirements of Federal and State
leases committed hereto and the regulations in respect thereto to contorm
sald requirements to the provisions of thls agreement, and, without limiting

the generality of the foregoing, all leases, subleases, and contracts are

-16-




particularly modified in accordance with the following:

7 (a) The development and operation of lands subject to this
agreement under the terms hereof shall be deemed full performance
of all obligatiohs for development and operation with reepect to
each and every part or geparately owned tract subjJect to this
agreement, regardless of whether there is any development of any
particular part or’tract of the unlt area, notwithstanding any-
thing to the contrary in any lease, operating agreement or other
contract by and between the parties hereto, or theif";eepecfi?e
predecessors In lnterest, or any of them.

(b) Drilling and_ producing operations performed hereunder
upon any tract of unitized lands will be accepted and deemed %o
be performed,upon and for the benefit of each and every tract of

unitized land, and no lease shall .be deemed to expire by reason

of failure to drill or produce wells sitvated on the land therein

embraced,
(e) SuspenSion of drilling or producing operatiocis on all

:unitized lands pursuant to direction or consent of the Secretary

and the State Commlasioner, orxr thelr duly authorized representative,

shall be deemed to constitute such suspension pursuant to such

- direction or consent as to each and every tract of unitized land.

(d) Each lease, sublease or contract relating to the explora-

tion, drilling, development or operation for oil or gas of lands,

other than those of the Unlted States and State of New Mexlco, com-

mitted to this agreement, which, by its terms might expire prior

to the termination of thils agreement, 1s hereby extended beyond

any such term so provided thereln so that 1t shall be continued in

full force and effect for and during the term of this agreement.

(e) Any Federal lease for a fixed term of twenty (20) years or

any renewal thereof or any part of such lease which 1s made subject

to this agreement shall continue in force beyond the term provided

therein until
mitted hereto
therein or by

mains subject

the termination herecof., Any cthcer Federal lease com-
shall continue in force beyond the term so provided
law as to the land committed so long as such lease re-

hereto, provided that production is had in paying

-17-




T T T [RSRTRtN R

quantities under this unit agreement prior to the expiration date of
the term of such lease.

(f) Each sublease or contract relating to the operatlon and
development of unitized substances from lands of the United States
committed to thils agreement, which by lts terms would expire prior

to the time at which the underlying lease, as extended by the im-

ereby extended bheo-- -

~ —ae

mediately preceding paragraph, will expire; is

yond any such térm so provided therein so that it shall be continued
in full force and effect for and during the term of the underlying -
lease as such term is herein extended. .

(g) Any lease embracing lands of the State of New Mexico which
is made subject to this agreement, shall continue in force beyond
the term provided thérein as to the lands committed hereto until the
termination hereof,

(h) The segregation of any Federal lease committed to this agree-.
ment 1s governed by the following provision in the fourth paragraph
of Sec. 17(b) of the Act, as amended by the Act of July 29, 1954
(68 stat. 583, 585): "Any (Federal) lease hereafter committed to
sucﬁw(uﬁit) plan embracihg lands that are in part within and in part
outside of the area covered by any such plan shall be segregated into
separate leases as to the lands committed and the lands not committed

as of the effective date of unitizationﬁ Provided, however, that any

such lease as to the nonunitized portion shall continue in force and
effect for the term thereof but for not less than two years from the
date of such segregation and so long thereafter as oll or gas is pro-
duced in paying quantities,

(1) Any lease embracing lands of the State of New Mexico having
only a portion of its lands committed hereto, shall be segregated as

to the portion committed and the portion not committed, and the terms

menéing as of the effective date hereof; provided, however, noiwi
standing any of the provisions of this agreement to the contrary any
lease embracing lands of the State of New Mexico having only a portion

of its lands committed hereto shall continue in full force and effect

~-18-
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beyond the term provided thereln as to all lands embraced in such

lease, 1f o1l or gas 1s dliscovered and is cépable_of belng produced
in paying quantitles from some part of the lands embraced in such
;,?-55? 3 ‘ lease at the expiration of the secoﬁdary term of such lease; or if,
| at the expiration of the secondary term, the Lessee or the Unit
Operator 1is then engaged in bona fide drilling or reworking operations
~ on some part of the lands embraced in such lease, the same, és to'
111, lands embraced ﬁherein, shall remain in full force and effect
so long as such operations are béing diligently prosecuted, and if
they result in the production of o0il or gas, sald lease shall con-
tinue in full force and effect as to all of the lands embraced thérg-
in, so long thereafter as oll or gas in paying quantities is being
produced froﬁ any portion of said lénds. ‘ »
19; COVENANTS RUN WITH LAND. The covenants herein §hall be con- ;
strued to be covenants runﬁing with thefléna with respect to the interest
of the pértiesrhereto and their successors in interest until this agree-
ment terminates, énd any grant, transfef, or conveyance, of interest in

iand or leases subject hereto shall be and hereby is conditioned upon the

assumption of all privileges and obligations hereunder by the grantee,

transferee, or other successor in interest. No assignment or ftransfer of
any working interest, royalty, or other interest subject hereto shall be

binding upon Unit Operator until the first day of the calendar month after

copy of the instrument of transfer.
20. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM. This agreement shall become ef-
fective upon approval by the Director and the State Commissioner or thelir

- duly authorized representatives as of the date of approval by the Director

and shall terminate five (5) years from said effective date unless:

(a) such date of explration is extended by the Director and the
State Commissioner, or

{b) it is reasonably determined prior to the expiration of the
fixed term or any extension thereof that the unitizeda land is in-
capable of production of unitized substances in paylng quantities in

the formations tested hereunder and after notice of intention to

-19-
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terminate the agreement on such ground is given by the Unit Opera-
tor to all partles in interest at their last knéwn addresses, the
agreement is ferminated wilth the approval of the Director and State
Commissioner, or
(¢) a valuable discovery of unitized substances has been méde

on unitized land during said initial term or any extension thereof,
in which event the agreement shall remaln in effect for such term
“andnsox10ngwaswunitized,substances can be produced in paying quanti- .
ties, 1.e., in this particular instance in quantities sufficient to
pay for the cost of producing same from wells on unitized land within
any participating afea established heréunder and, shou1d>produét10n :
cease, s80 long thereafter asrdiligent operations are 1in progreés for

the restoration of production or discovery of new production and so

long thereafter as the unltized substances. so discovered can be produ&éd
as aforesaid, or |
(d) it is terminated as heretofore provided in this agreenent,
’ This agreement may be terminated at any time by not less thanv
75 per centum, on an acreage basis, of the owners of working interests

signatory hereto, with the approval of the Director and State Commissioner;

notice of any such approval to be given by the Unit Operator to all parties vf’

hereto.

21, RATE OF PROSPECTING, DEVELOPMENT, AND PRODUCTION. The
Director is hereby vested with authority to alter or modify from time to
time in his discretion the guantity and rate of production under this agree-
ment when such quantity and rate is not fixed pursuant to Federal or State
law or does not conform to any state-wide voluntary conservation or alloca-
tion program, which 1s established, recognized, and generally adhered to
by the majority of operators in such State, such authority being hereby
limited to alteration or modification in the public interest, the purpose
thereof and the public interest to be served thereby to be stated in the
order of alteration or modification. Without regard to the foregoing, the
Director 1s also hereby vested with authority to alter or modify from
time to time in his discretion the rate of prospecting and development
and the quantity and rate of production under this agreement when such
alteration or modification 1s in the interest of attaining the conserva-

tion objectives stated in thls agreement and is not in violation of any
-20~




—“ . L

i

applicable Federal or State law.

Powers in this section vested in the Director shall only be
exerclsed after notice to Unit Operator and opportunity for hearing to
be held not less than 15 days from notice.

22, CONFLICT OF SUPERVISION. Neither the Unit Operator nor
the working interest owners nor any of them shall be subject to any for-
felture, termination or expiration of any rights hereunder or under any

leases or contracts subject hereto, or to any penalty or liability on-ag-- -~

‘count of deiay"drAfaiiure in Whole or in part to comply with any appli-

cable provision thereof to the extent that the Unit Operator, working
interest owners or any of them are hindered, delayed or preveﬁted from
complying therewith by reason of failuférof the Unit Operator to obtain

in the exercise‘of due diligence, the concurrence of proper representatives
of the United States and proper representatives of the State'of New Mexico
in and about any matters or thing concerning which it is required herein
that such concurrence be obtained. The parties hereto, including the State |
Commission, agreé that all;poWers and:éhthority vested in the State Com- |
mission in and by any provisions of this agreement are vested in the State

Commission and shall be exercised by it pursuant to the provisions of the

laws of thelstate of New Mexico and subject in any case to appeal or judi-
cial review as may now or hereafter be provided by the laws of the State
of New Mexico. ’

23. APPEARANCES. Unit Operator shall, after notice to other
parties affected, have the right to appear for and on behalf of any and
ali interests affected hereby before the Department of the Interior, the
Commissioner of Publié Lands of the'State of New Mexico and the New Mexilco
011 Conservation Commissicn and to appeal from orders issued under the
regulations of sald Department, the State Commission or State Commlssioner
or to apply for relief from any of said regulations or in any proceedings
relative to operations before the Department of the Interior, the State
Commissioner, or State Commission or any other legally constituted
authority; provided, however, Lhat any other interested party shall zalsc
have the right at his own expense To be heard in any such proceeding,

24, NOTICES. All notices, demands or statements required here-
under to be given or rendered to the parties hereto shall be deemed fully

given if given in writing and personally delivered to the party or sent
-21- ’
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by postpald registered or certified mall, addressed to such parity or

parties at thelr respectlve addresses set forth in connection with the

! signatures hereto or to the ratificatlon or consent hereof or to such

other address as any such party may have furnished in writing to party
sending the notice, demand or statement,

25. NO WAIVER OF CERTAIN RIGHTS, Nothing in this agreement

contained shall be construed as a walver by any party hereto of the right

to assert any legal or constitutional right or defense as to the validity
~or invalldity of any law of the State wherein sald unitized lands are
located, or of thé ﬁnited States, or regulé£ions issued thereﬁndér.in any
way affecting such party, or as a waiver by any such party of any right
beyond his or its authority to waive.
26. UNAVQIDABLE DELAY. All obligations under this agreemeﬁt
requiring the Unit Operatér to commence or continue drilling or to operate

on or produce unitized substances from any of the lands covered by this

agreement shall be suspended while, but only so long as, the Unit Operator
desplte the exercise of due care and dilligence is prevented from complying
with such obligations, in whole or in part, by stfikes, acts ofiGod, ; '”"
Federal, State, or municipal law or agencles, unavoldable accldents, un- | |
controllable delays in transportation, inability to obtain necessary .
materials in open market, or other matters beyond the reasonable control 'é
of the Unit Operatdr whether similar to matters herein enumberated or not. (

27. FAIR EMPLQYMENT. In connection with the performance of
work under this agreement, the Unit Operator agrees not to discriminate %
against any employee or épplicant for employment because of race, religion, A

color, or national origin. The aforesaild provision shall include, but not

be limited to, the following: employment; upgrading, demotion, or trans-

fer; recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates

of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, in-
cluding apprenticeship. The Unit Operator agrees to post hereafter in
conspicuous places, availlable for employees and applicants for employ-

ment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the

) - provisions of the non-discrimination clause.

The Unit Operator agrees to insert the foregoing provision in




all sub-contracts hereunder, except sub-contracts for-standard commercial
suppllies or raw materlals.

28, 1IL0SS OF TITLE, In the event title to any tract of unitized
land shall fall and the true owner cannot be induced tb join in this unit
agreement, such tract shall be automatically regarded as not committed
hereto and there shall be such read jJustment of future costs and benefits

as may be required on account of the loss of such title. In the event of

a dispute as to title as to any royalty, working interest, or other interests

- subject thereto, payment or delivery on account théreof may-be withheld -

without 1iability for interest until the dispute is finally settled;
provided, that, as td Federal and State land or leases, no payments of
funds due the United States or the State of New MeXicovshould be with-
held, but such funds of the Unlted States shall bé deposited as directed
by the Supervisor and such funds of the State of New MexiQO'sﬁall be de-
posited as directed by the State Commissioner to be held as unearned mone&
pending final settlement of the title dispute, and then applied as earned
or returned in accordance with such final settlement,.

/f Unit .Operator as éﬁch is relieved from any responsibility for any
defect or failure of any title hereunder,

29. NON-JOINDER AND SUBSEQUENT JOINDER, If the owﬁer of any
substantial interest in a tract within the unit aréa fails or refuses to
subscribe or consent to this agreement, the owner of the working interest
in that tract ﬁay withdraw said tract from this agreement by written notice
to the Director, thelstate Commissioner, and the Unit Operator priocr to
the approval of this agreement by the Director. Any oll or gas interests
in lands‘within the unlt area not committed hereto prior to submission of
this agreement for final approval may thereafter be committed hereto by
the ownef or owners thereof subscribing or consenting to this agreement,
and, if the interest is a ﬁorking interest, by the owner of such interest
also subscribing to the vnit operating agreement, After operations are
commenced heréunder, the subsequent joinder, as provided in this section,

by 2 working interest cwner ig subiect %o such requirements or approvals,

~Jg PPN L fraaa RS RS
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if any, pertaining to such joinder, as may be provided for in tThe unit

operating agreement. After final approval hereof joinder by a non-working

~23-




interest owner must he consented to In writing by the working interest
owner committed hereto and responsible for the payment of any benefilts
that may accrue hereunder in behalf of such non-working interest. Joinder
by any owner of a non-working interest, at any time, must be accompanied
by appropriate joinder by the owner of the corresponding working Interest
in order for the interest to be regarded as effectively c¢ommitted hereto,
Joinder to the unit agreement by a working-interest owner, at any time,

must be accompanied by approppiate Joinder to the unit operating agreement,

;f more than one committedwygrking-interestvownep_is involved, in order: e

for the interest to be regarded as effectively committed to this unit
agieement, Except as may otherwlse hereln be provided subsequent Jolnders
to this agreement shall‘be effective as of the first day of the month
following the filing with the Supervisor, the State Commisslioner and- the
State Commission of duly executed counterparts ;f all or any papers neces-
sary to establish'effeétive commitment of any traet to this agreement un-
less objection to such joinder 1s duly made within 60 days by the Director,
Sﬁgtg@ggmmgssipner,‘or State Commission. 2 , ‘ f

30. COUNTERPARTS. This agreement may be executed in any number
of counterparts no one of which needs to be executed by all parties or may

be ratified or consented to by separate instrument in writing specifically ;

referring hereto 'and shall be binding upon all those parties who have f

executed such a counterpart, ratification, or consent hereto with the same
force and effect as 1f all such parties had signed the same document and
regardless of whether or not 1t 1is executed by all other parties owning
or clalming an interest in the landas within the above-described unlt area.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have caused thls agree-

‘ment tc be executed and set opposite their respective names the date of

. 14

execution,
GULF OIL CORPORATION
ATTEST:
Assistant Secretary Attorney-in-Fact

UNIT OPERATOR & WORKING INTEREST OWNER

ol




WORKING INTEREST OWNERS
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Unit Qutline

Tract Number

VA

®

@ Test Well
C— 1

Federal Lond 5,669.99
Siate of New Mexico Land 63264
| Total - 6,302.63

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AREA
Eddy County, New Mexico : EXHIBIT A"
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SCHEDULE SHOW

EXHIBIT "B" .
ING THE FERCENTAGE AND KIND

OF OWNERSHIP OF ALL LANDS IN THE

NORTHE CAVEENS UNIT AREA, EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

zcsumw of

Jerial No. &

Overriding Royalty

TPract Description of Expiration Basic Royalty or Production Pay- Working Interest
No. Land Acres Date of Lease and Percentage lessee of Record ment snd Pelrcentage gnd Percentage
FEDERAL LANDS
T-22-5, R-24-E, NMPM
1 Sec. 35: W/2 SW/bk & : LC-064520 Northern Natural Gas C. A. Hobbs et ux, Northern Natural Gas
SW/k WW/4 120.00 8-31-61 U.S.A. - 124%  Producing Company Hazel Hobbs (until Producing Company -
m $60,000 is paid) 3% Al
2 Sec. 35: N/2 NW/k; W C. A. Hobbs et ux, Gulf 0il Corporation 50%
SE/4 WW/k, S/2 NE/4 LC-064520-4 Phiilips Petroleum Bazel Hobbs (until Phillips Petroleum
SE/b & E/2 SW/i 440.00 8-31-61 U.S.A. ~ 124%  Company $132,000 is paid) 2% Company - 5%
3 Sec. 27: §/2 ) LC-064535 Callie C. Mclean et vir,
Sec. 34: All 960. 00 7-31-60 U.S.A. = 124% Gulf Oil Corporation M. A. Mcleen (until
| 4 $620,000 is paid) 3% Gulf Oil Corp. - 111
T-23-S, R-2L-E, NMPM
L Sec. 10: All 6110.00 LC-06TT14 Tidewater Oil Co.- 1/2 John W. Gates et ux, Tidewater 0il Co - 50%
- 10-30-61 U.S.A. ~ 125% Texaco Sesboard Inc. - Jane M. Gates (until Texaco Seaboard Inc - 50%
_ 1/2 $440,000 is paid) 3%
5 Sec. 1bk: W/2 NE/4 LC-0T19k2 , | Merrill Max Seaton et
& W/2 SE/b4 5:50.00 2-28-62 U.S.A. |~ 125% Gulf Oil Corporation  ux, Winifred T.Seaton
_ ‘ o (until $689,000 is
paid) 3% Gulf 0il Corp. - ALL
6 Sec. 1l: N/2, NW/b, MM-0512 . Flossie D. Barmes et
n/2 NE/k & SW/k NE/4  €00.00 11-30-61 U.S.A. - 125% Gulf Oil Corporation  vir, Arthur J.Barmes
(Until $320,000 is
paid) 3% Galf Oil Corp. = AL
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Serial No. &
Expiration
Date of Lease

Overriding Roysalty
- or Production Pey-
ment and Percentage

Numter of
Acres

Tract
No. Land

Desceription of Basic Royalty

and Percentage

Working Interest

Iessee of Record and Percentage

FEDERAL LANDS (Continued)

P
{
l
|

T-23-S, R-24-E, NMPM

' 40.00

7 See. 1l: SE/k SE/4 NM-0512-B Flossie D. Barmes et
Aw‘ ; . 11-30-61 U.S.A. - 124% A. C. Holder vir.Arthur J. Barmes
- ’ _ (Until $320,000 is
paid) *same reserva- A. C. Holder 50%
tion as Tract 6 3%  Gulf Oil Corporation 50%
8 Sec. 15: All 640.00 NM-03817 Northern Natural Gas Peggy P. Jennings et
4-30-62 U.S.A. -~ 125% Producing Company vir Howard W. Jenn- Nerthern Netuvral Gas
ings 3% Producing Company  All
T-22-S, R-24-E, NMPM :
9 Sec. 26: 8/2 j NM-04527 Northern Natural Gas  June C. Deason et vir, Nerthern Netural Gas
Sec. 35: N/2 NE/4 400.00 9-30-61 U.S.A. - 125% Producing Company T. J. Deason, Jr.(Until Producing Company 50%
w _ $348,000 is paid) 2% Phillips Petroleum
| : Company 25%
_ W Gulf Oil Corporation 25%
A; T-23-S, R-24-E, NMPM
10 Sec. 1: Lots 3, 4, 8/2 | Ruth McFherson et vir,
) sw/k, | NM-04529 : Teslie A. McPherson
Sec. 12: W/2 635.71 9-30-61 U.S.A. -~ 124% Gulf Oil Corporation (Until $1,017,890 is
w paid) 3% Gulf 0il Corporation All
1L Sec. 3: All 63h.28 NM-063737 The Superior Mrs. W. H. Milner et
. 4-30-62 U.S.A. - 124%  0il Company vir, W. H. Milner
. _ (Until $1,88%4,130 is
paid) 3%
. Heirs or devisees of :
. Reed Brainard,deceas- The Superior 0Oil Co. 5up
_ed & Mary R.Brainard, Culf Oil Corp. 50%
a widow 1%
a N. G. Cummings + of 1%
11 Federsl Tracts 5,666.99 or 89.96% of Unit Area




‘ PAGE 3.

Serial No. &- Overriding Royslty

Tract Description of Number of Expiration  Basic Royalty ) or Production Pay- Working Interest
No. Land Acres Date of Lease and Percentage Lessee of Record ment and Percentage and Percentage
STATE LANDS
7-23-S, R-24-E, NMPM
12 Section 2: NE/L4 and | E-5142 Hondo Oil and . Hordo Oil and
s/2 W/k 236.12 4-9-61 " State - 124% Gac Company None Gas Company All
13 Sect.on 2: SE/4, 8/2 E-10089-A-1 Phillips Petroleum
SW/h & NW/h SW/b - 28C.00 5-15-66 State - 124%  Phillips Petroleum Co. None Conpany 50%
. : Gul.f 0il Corp. 50%
14-A  Secticn 2: lots 3, b, . 0G-6176
1k-B NE/% W/h 116.52 11-17-59 - State - 124% Gulf 0il Corporation None Gulf 0il Corp. ALl

3 State Tracts 632.6k4 or 10.04% of Unit Area

TOTAL: 1% Tracts 6,302.63 in Entire Unit Area

ISR
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M AERPLY NAPEIN TO

UNITED STATES

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 3401
GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

WASHINGTON 13, D, e )

Feo1rmen  4CCive,

Gulf 0{1 Corporation < <
P. O, Drawer 669 - .

2oowell, New Memien FE-BI ("" l%

' \S
“ Attention: Mr, W, A, Shellshear %&'::\ £

Gentlemen:

Your application of January 22, 1960, filed with the
Regional Oil and Gas Supervisor, Moswell, New Mexico requests the
designation of 6,302.63 acres, more or less, in Eddy County, New
Mexico, as logically subject to explorstion and development under
the unitization pmiliom of the Minersl Leasing M:t, as smended,

Pursuamt to the unit plan ngulutiom of December 22, 1950,
(30 CFR 226,3), the land outlined in your plat marked North Cmma
Unit Area, Kddy County, New Mexico, is hereby designated as a logical
unit area. ‘

Your proposed form of unit agreement, which substentially
follows the June 1957 reprint of the standard form and contains modi-
fications vequired by the State of New Mexico, is acceptable. The
descriptton of the unit ares in Section 2 of the agreement may be
made by reference to official Bureeu of Land Management survey, or by
refarvence to Exhibit "A", The proposed initial exploratory well to
test formations of Devonian age or to a depth of 11,750 feet, is ac-
ceptable, .

In the abseunce of any other type of land requiring special
-pyowisions or any other objections mot now apparent, & duly executed
‘unit agTeement will be approved 1if submitted in approvable status
within & ressenable period of tims. When the egecuted agreemant is
tranemitted to the Supervisor for spprovel, imclude the latest status
of all screags showing the current owpgrs of all intsrests involvad.
I1f ownership of any intexreet ip a trect is divided, show in Exhibit "B"
the percentage of esch such owner., Notice is hereby given that the
right is reserved to deny approval of any exscuted cgreement submitted
which, in our opinion, does not have the full commitment of sufficient

" lands- to afford cftectivo control of unit operations.

Very truly youfc ,
W

Aoting Director
r 4

Bar T

'
Y R, IR L LT
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UNIT AGREEMENT
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION OF THE -

NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AREA
EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NO.

s

f) L /FEO

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into as of the day of __
] , 1960, by and between the parties subscribing..

’réﬁifying; or conSentihg hereto, and herein referred to as the "parties

hereto,"
WITNESSETH :

WHEREAS the parties hereto are the owners of working, royalty,
or other oil and gas interests in the unit area subJect to this agreement;
and ) ~

WHEREAS the Mineral Leésing Act of February 25, 1920, 41 Stat, é
437, as amended,-30’U.S.C. Secs. 181 et seq., authorizes Federal lessees | !
and their representatives to unite with each other, or Jjointly or separately
with others, in collectively adopting and operating a coopérative or unit

plan of development or operatlion of any oll or gas pool, field, or like

S VP ST

area, or any part thereof for the purpose of more properly conserving the

natrual resources thereof whenever determined and certified by the Secretary ,é

of the Interior to be necessary or advisable in the public interest; and

WHEREAS,; the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New
Mexico is authorized by an Act of the Legislaturé (Sec; 7-11-35 N, M,
Statutes 1953 Annotated) to consent to or approve this»agreement on be-
half of the State of New Mexico, insofar as it covers and includes lands
and mineral interests of the State of New Mexico; and

WHEREAS, the Oii Conservation Commlssion of the State of New
Mexico is authorized by an act of the Legislature (Chapter 72, Laws of
1935, as amended by Chapter 193, Laws of 1937, Chapter 166, Laws of 1941,
and Chapter 168, Laws of 194S) Lo approve this agreement and the conserva-

tion provisions hereof; and
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WHEREAS the parties hereto hold sufflcient Interests in the
North Caverns Unit Area covering the lanhd herelnafter described to glve
reagonably effective control of operations therein; and

WHEREAS, it 1s the purpose of the parties hereto to conserve
natural resources, .prevent waste, and secure other benefits obtainable
through development and operation of the area Subject to this égreement
under the terms, conditions and limitations herein set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of’ the premises and the promises

- herein contained, the parties hereto commit to this agféemén theilyr re- — ——- om0
specti&e interests in the below-defined unit area, and agree severally
among, themselves as follows:

1. ENABLING ACT AND REGULATIONS. The Mineral Leasing Act of
February 25, 1920, as.anonoed, supra, and all valid pertinent regulations,
inclnding operatiné and unit plan regulations, heretofore lssued there-

under or valid, pertinent, and reasonable reguiations hereafter issued

atnerennder are accepted and made a .part of this agreement as to Federal

lands, provided such regulations are not inconsistent with the terms of

this agreement; and as to Stabte of New Mexico and privately owned lands,

-the o1l and gas operating regulations in effect as of the effective date

hereof governing drilling and producing operations, not inconsistent with

: !
the terms hereof or the laws of the State of New Mexlco are hereby accepted §,
i

and made a part of this agreement.
2. UNIT AREA. - The following-described land is hereby designated

and recognized as constituting the unit area:

T-22-5, R-24_E, N,M.P.M, T-23-S, R-24-E, N,M.P.M, _ :
Section 26: S/2- Section 1: W/2 ;
27: S/2 ’ 2: All ;
1 34: Al 3: All
§§ 35: All 10: A1l
¢_§ 11: All
C 12: W/2
E 14: N/2, SW/4, W/2 SE/L
i 15: A1l
g Containing 6,302.63 acres, more or less.
§

Exhibit A attached hereto is a map showing the unit area and the
boundaries and identity of tracts and leases in sald arca to the extent
known to the Unit Operator. Exhibit B attached hereto is a schedule showing

to the extent known to the Unit Operator the acreage, percentage, and kind
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of ownership of 01l and gas interests in all land in the unit area, How-
ever, nothing herein or 1n sald schedule or map shall be construed as &
representation by any party hereto as to the ownership of any interest

other than such interest or interests as are shown in sald map or

- schedule as owned by such party. Exhibits A and B shall be revised by

the Unit Operator whenever changes 1in the unit area render such revislon
necessary, or when requested by the 01l and Gas Supervisor, herelrafter re-

ferred to as "Supervisor", or when requested by the Commissioner of Public

Lands of the State of New Mexico, hereinafier referied to as "State Com-
missioner", and not less than seven coplies of the revised exhibits shall
be filed with the Supervisor, and one (1) copy thereof shall be filed with
the State Commissioner and one (1) copy with the New Mexlco 01l Conserva-
tion Commission, hereinafter referred to as "State Commission",

The above-described unit area shall when practicable be expanded
to include therein any additional tract or traects régarded as reasonably
necessary or advisable for the purposes of this agreement, or shall be
contfacted to exclude iahds not -within any participating area whenever
such expénsion or contraction is necessary or advisable to conform with
the purposes of this agreement., Such expansion or contraction shali be
effected in the following manner:

(a) Unit Operator, on its own motion or on demand of the Director ?
of the Geclogical Survey, hereinafter referred to as "Director", or on ‘
demand of tne State Commissloner, aftér preliminary concurrence by the é
Director, shall prepare a notice of proposed expansion or contraction des- |
cribing the contemplated changes in the boundaries of the unit area, the
reééons therefor, and the proposéd effective date thereof, preferably
the first day of a month subsequent to the date of notice,

(b) Said notice shall be delivered to the Supervisor, the State

Commissioner and the State Commission and copies thereof malled to the

last known address of each working interest owner, lessee, and lessor
whose 1interests are affected, advising that 30 days will be allowed for
submission to tne Unit Cperator of any objections,

(¢) Upon expiration of the 20-day period provided in the pre-

ceding 1ter (b) hereof, Unit Operator shall file with the Supervisor, the

~3-




State Commlssioner and the}State Commission evidence of malling of the
notice of expansion or contraction and a copy of any objections thereto
which have been filed with the Unit Operator, together with an applica-
tion in sufficient number, for approval of such expansion or contraction
and with appropriate Jjolnders.

(d) After due consideration of all pertinent<1nformation,‘the
expansion or contraction shall, upon approval by the Director, the State

~Commissioner and the State Commission, become effective as of the date

prescribed in the notice thereof.
(e) All legal subdivisions of unitized lands (i.e., 40 acres by
" Government survey or 1ts nearest lot or tract equivalent in instances of
irregular surveys, however, unusually large lots or tracts shall be con-
sidered in multipleé of 40 acres, or the nearest aliquot equivalent there-
of, for the purpose of elimination under this subsection), no parts of
which sre entitled to be in a participatiné area within 5 years after thé;
first day of the month followling the effective date of the first ihitial
participatiﬁg area established under‘fhe unit agreement, shall be eliminated
automatically from this agreement, effective as of the first day ﬁhere-
after, and such lands shall no longer be a part of the unlt area and shall
no longer be subject to this agreement, unless at the expiration of said
5-year period diligent drilling operatioﬁs are in progress on unitized
lands not entitled to participation, in which event all such lands shall
remain subject hereto for so long as such drilling operations are con- -
‘tinued diligently, with not more than 90 days' time elapsing:between the
completion of oﬁe such well and the commencement‘of the next such well,
except that the tiﬁe allowed between such wells shall not expire earlier
than 30 days after the expiration of any period of time during which
drilling operaticons are prevented by a matter beyond the reasonable control
of unit operator as set forth in the section hereof entitled "Unavoidable
Delay"; provided that all legal subdivisions of lands not in a partici-

pating area and not entitled to become participating under the applicable

b
[N

provisions of this agreement wiinin i0 years a s2 first day of the
month following the effective date of said first initial participating area

shall be eliminated as above specifled. Determination of creditable

.
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"Unavoidable Delay" time shall be made by unit operator and subject to
approval of the Director and the State Commissloner., The unit operator
shall, within 90 days after the effective date of any elimination here-
under, describe the area so eliminated to the satisfaction of the Direcﬁor
nd the State Commissloner and promptly notify all parties in interest.
If conditions warrant extension of the 10-year period specified-
in this subsection 2(e), a single extension of not to exceed 2 years may

be accomplished by consent of the owners of 90% of the current unitized

-working interests and 60% of the current unitized basic royalty 1nterests

(exclusive of the basic royalty interests of the United Stabe 8), on a
total-nonparticipating-acreage basis, respectively, with approval of the
Director, and the State Commissioner provided such extension appllcation
i1s submlitted to the State Commissioner and the Director not later than
60 days prior to the expiration of said 1l0-year period.

Any- expansion of the unit area pursuant to tﬁis section which
embraces lands theretofore eliminated pursuant to this subsection 2(e)"
shall not be considered automatic commitment or recommitment of such lands.

3., UNITIZED LAND AND UNITIZED SUBSTANCES. All land conmitted
to this agreement shall constitute land referred to herein as "unitized
land" or"and subject to this agreement”. All oil and gas in any and all
formations of the unitized land are unitized under the terms of this agree;
ment and herein are called “unitized substances",

L, UNIT OPERATOR. Gulf 0il Corporation is hereby designated as
Unit Operator and by signature hereto as Unit Operator commits to this agree-
ment all interests in unitized substances vested in 1t and égrées and con-
sents to accept the dutles and obligations of Unit Operator fof the dls-
covery, development and production of unitized substances as herein pro-
vided. Whenever reference is made herein to the Unlt Operator, such
reference means the Unit Operator acting in that capacity and not as an
owner of interest in unitized substances, and the term "working interest
owner" when used herein shall include or refer Lo Unit Cperator as thg_owner
of a working interest when such an interest 1is owned by it.

5. RESIGNATION OR REMOVAL CF UNIT OPERATOR. Unit Operator shall
have the right to resign at any time prior to the establishment of a par-
ticlpating area or areas hereunder, but such resignation shall not become

-5




effeotive 80 as to release Unit Operator from the duties and obligations
of Unlt Operator and terminate Unit Operator's rights as such for a period
of 6 months after notice of intention to resign-has been served by Unit

Operator on all working interest owners and the Director, the State Com-

: missioner and State Commission and until all wells then drilled hereunder
are placed in a satisfactory conditlion for suspension or abandonment whilch-
- ever 1ls required by the Supervisor as to Federal lands and the State Com-

;imission as to State and privately owned lands unless a new Unit Operator

.- 8hall have been selected and approved andvshall have taken over and as-
jsumed the duties and obligations of Unit Operator prior to the expiration

?] of sald period.

Unit Operator shall have the right to resign in like manner and

‘%jsubject’tb‘like limitations, as above provided, at any time a participating
Ejarea established hereunder 1s in existencé, but, in all instances of
i %r'esi.gna.t::l.orfs or removal, until a successor unit operator is selected and
5‘Ea.p‘pr"oved‘as hereinafter provided, the working interest owners shall be
§§Jointly responsible for performance of the duties of uﬁit operator, and
;:shall not later than 30 days before suéh resignation or removal becomes
‘téffective appoint a common agent to represent them in any action to be

i taken hereunder,

The resignation'of Unit Operator shall not release Unit Operator

: ffrom any liability for any default by it hereunder occurring prior to the

; . effective date of 1ts resignation.

The Unit Operator may, upon default or failure in the.performance

of 1ts duties or obligations hereunder, be subject to removal by the same

j :peroentage vote of the owners of working interests determined in like man-

ner as herein provided for the selection of a new Unit Operator. Such re-

moval shall be effective vpon notice thereof to the Director and the State

Commissloner,

The recignation or removal of Unit Operator under this agreement
shall not terminate its right, title, or interest as the owner of a working
Interest or other interest in unitized substances, but upon the resignation
or removal of Unit Operator becoming effective, such Unit Operator shall
deliver possession of all equipment, materials, and appurtenances used in

conducting the unit operations and owned by the working interest owners to
-6




the new duly qualified successor Unit Operator or to the owners thereof if
no such new Unit Operator 1s elected, to be used for the purpose of con-
ducting unit operations héreﬁnder. Nothing herein shall be cénstrued as
authorizing removal of any material, equipment ang appurtenances needed for
the preservation of any wells, |

6. SUCCESSOR UNIT OPERATOR. Whenever the Unit Operator shall

tender his-or its resignation as Unit Operator or shall be removed as

~~~hereinabove provided, the owners of the working interests in the partici-

pating area or areas according to their respective acreage interests in
such particlpating area or areas, or, until a participating area shall
have been establiéhed, the owners of the working interests according to
theilr respective acreage interests in all unitized land, shall by majority
vote select a successor Unit Operator: Provided, that, if a majority but
less than 75 per cent of the working interests qualified to vote are owﬂéa
by one party to this agreement, :a concurring vote of one or more additional
working interest owners shall be required to select a new operator. Such
selection shall not become effective until:
| (a) a unit Operator so selected shall accept in writing the duties
and responsibilitiles of‘Unit Operator, andg
(b) the selection shall have been épproved by the Director and

State Commissioner. If no successor Unit Operator 1s selected and
qualified as herein provided, the Director and State Commissioner at their
election may declare this unit agreement‘terminated.

T ACCOUNTING PROVISIONS AND UNIT OPERATING AGREEMENT., If the
Unit Operator 1s not the sole owner of working interests, costs and ex-
penses‘ihcurred by Unit Operator in conducting unit operations hereunder
shall be paid and apportioned among and borne by the owners of working
interests, all in accordance with the agreement or agreements entered into
by and between the Unit Operator and the owners of workling interests,
whether one or more, separately or collectively. Any agreement or agree-
ments entered intoc between the working interest owners and the Unit Opera-
tor as provided in this section, whether one or more, are herein referred
to as the "unit operating agreement”. Such unit operating agreement shall

also provide the manner in which the working interest owners shall be

~7-




-2

entitled to recelve thelr respective proportionate and allocated share of
the benefits accrulng hereto in cdnformity wlth thelr underlying operating
agreements, leases, or other independent contracts,‘ and such other rights

and obligations as between Unit Operator and the working interest owners

»as may be agreed upon by Unit Operator and the working interest owners;

however, no such unit operating agreement shall be deemed either to modify
any of the terms and conditions of ~thig unlt agreement c¢r to relicve the
Unit Operator of any right or obligation established under this unit agree-
ment, and iv’n case of any inconsistency or conflict between the unit agree-
ment and the unit operating agreement, this unit égreémen‘c shall prevail.
Three (3) true copies of any unit operating agreement executed pursuant

to this section should be filed with the Supervisor and one_(l) true copy
wlth the Commissioner, prior to approxia-l of this unit agi‘eer?lent by -’che
Director.

8.  RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF UNIT OPERATOR. Except as other-

wise specifically provided herein, the exclusive right, privilege, and duty

of exercising any and all rights of the parties hereto which are necessary
or convenieht for prospecting for, producing, storing, allocating, and
distributing the unitized substances are hereby delegated t‘io and shall be
exercised by;the Unit Operator as herein provided. Acceptable evidence

of title to sald rights shall be deposited with said Unit Operator'_. and, to-
gether with this agreement, shall constitute and define thé )rights,
privileges, and obligations of Unit Operator. Nothing hereiln, hoWever,
shall be constr{led to transfer title to any land or to any lease or
operating agreement, it belng understood that under this agreement the Unit
Operator, in its capacifty as Unit Operator, shall exercise the rights of
possession and use vested in the parties hereto only for the purposes herein
specified.

9. DRILLING TO DISCOVERY., Within 6 months after the effective
date hereof, the Unit Operator shall begin to drill an adequate test well
at a location approved by the Supervisor if on Federal land or by the State
Commissioner if on State Land, or by the State Commlission if on privately
owned land, unless on such effective date a well is being drilled con-

formably with the terms hereof, and thereafter continue such drilling

_8-
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- quiring Unit Operator to commence or continue any drilling during the period

o ’ ~

diligently until the Devonian formations have been tested or until at

a lesser depth unitized substances shall be discovered which can be pro-
duced 1n paying quantities (to-wilt: quantities sufTieient to repay the
costs of drillling, and producing operations, with‘a reasonable profit) or
the Unilt Operator shall at any time establish to the satisfactlon of the'
Supervisor if on Federal land, of the State Commissloner 1if on State land,
or of the State Commission if on privately owned land, thét further \
drilling of saild well would be unwarranted or impractiéablé, provided;
however, that Unit Operator shall not in any eveﬁt be required to drill
sald well to é depth in excess of 11,750 feet. Until the discovery.of

a deposit -of unitized substances capable of belng produced 1in paylng : @
quantities, the Unit Operator shall continue dfilling diligently one well
at a time, allowing not more than 6 months between the completion of one
well and the beginning of the next well, until a well capable of producing
unitized substances in paying quantities '1is completed to the satisfaction
of sald Supervisor if it be on Federal land or of the State Commissioner
if on State land or the 3tate Commission 1f on privately owned land or
until 1t is reasonably proved that the unitized land is incapable of pro-

duciling unitized substances in paying quantities in the formations drilled

hereunder. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to 1limit the right of

the Unit Operator to resign as provided in Section 5 hereof, or as re-

pending such resignation becoming effective in order to comply with the
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requirements of this section. The Director and State Commissioner may
modif& the drilling requirements of this seétion by granting reasonable
extensions of time whén, in their opinion, such action is warranted.

Upon failure to comply with the drilling provisions of this sec-
tion, the Director and State Commissioner may, after reasonable notice Tc
the Unit Operator, and each working interest owner, lessee, and lessor at
thelr last known addresses, declare this unit agreement terminated.

10, PLAN OF FURTHER DEVELOPMENT AND OPERAVION. Within & mouths
after completion of a well capable of producing unitized substances in
paying quantities, the Unit Operator shall submit for the approval of cthe

NP F
-~

Supervisor and the State Commissioner an acceptabvle pian of develcopm

and operation for the unitized land which, when approved by the Supervisor
_9..




and the State Commissioner, shall constitute the further drillirig and opera-
ting obligations of the Unlit Operator under this agreement for the periloed
sp'ecified»therein. Thereafter, from time ﬁo time before the expiration

off any existing plan, the Unlt Operator shall submit for the approval of

the Supervisor and the Stalé Commissioner 2 plan for an additional speci-

fied pgriod for the development and operation of the unitized land. Any
plan submitted purs{;ant to this section shall provide for the exploration
of the unitized areé and for the diligenf drilling 'ne'cessary for determina-
tion of the area or areas thereof capable of producing uhitized substances
in paying quantities in each and every prbdu_c’cive formation and shall be
as complete and édequate as the SuperViéor and the State Commissloner may
determine to be necessary for timely development and proper conservation
of the oil and gas resources of the unitized area and shali:
(a) specify the number and locations of any wells to be drilled
and the proposed order and time for such drilling; and
(b) to the e;_g/_‘cent practicable speqify the opera’cing practices
regarded as necessary and advisable for proper conservation of
natural resources. Separate plans may be submitted for separate
productive zoneé, subject to the approval of the’ Supervigsor and
the State Commissioner. Said plan or plans shall be modified or
supplemented when necessafy to meet chang'ed conditions or to pro-
tect the interests of all parties to this agreement. Reasonable
diligence shall be exercised in compiyin~> with the obligations of
the approved plan of development. The Supervisor and State Com-
missioner are authorized to grant a reasonable extens'on of the

6-month pericd herein preseribed for submission of an initial

l

plan of development where such action is justifled because of un-
usual conditions or circumstances. After completion hereunder of
a well capable of producing any unitized substance in paying
quantities, no further wells, except such as may be necessary to
afford protection against operations not under this agreement or
such as may be specifically approved by the Supervisor and the
State Commissioner shall be drilied exccpt in accordance with a

plan of development approved as herein provided.

~-10-




11;' PARTICIPATION AFTER DISCOVERY, Upon completion of a well
capable of producing unitized substances in paying quantities, the Unit
Operator shall, wlthin the month of such completion, if practicable, or as
soon thereafter as required hy the Supervisor or the State Commlssioner
submit for approval-by the Director and the State Commisslcner a schedule,
based on subdlvisions of the public-land survey or allquot parts thereof,

of all unitized land then regarded as reasonably proved to be productive

i of-unitized—substances in paying quanitities; all lands in said schedule

on approval of the Director and the State Commissioner to constitute a

participating area, effective as of the date of completion of such well
w‘wg\" ST A AT R 4 AT 3 Sl e by oy “om,
or the- effective date of the unit agreement whichever is later Said

et N 2 i

schedule also shall set forth the percentage of unitized substances %o be

‘allocated as herein provided to each unitized tract in the participating

area so established, and shall govern the allocation of production from
and after the date the participating area becomes effective, A Separate
participating area shall be established in like manner for each separate
pool or deposit of unitized substances or for any group thereof produced
as a single poolror Zone, and any two or more participating areas so
established may be combined into one with the consent of the owners of

all working interests in the lands within the particlpating areas so fto

be combined, on approval of the Director and the State Commissioner. The
participating area or areas so established shall be revised from time to
time, subject to like approval, whenever such action appears proper as a
result of further drilling operations or otherwise, to include additional
land then regarded as reasonably proved to be productive in paying quanti-
ties, or to exclude land then regarded as reasonably proved not to be pro-
ductive in paying quantities and the percentage of allocation shall also

be revised accordingly. The effective date of any revision shall be the
/ e

first of the month in which is obtained the knowledge or information on

which such revision 1is predicated, provided, however, that a more appro-
}5“§£é effective date may be used if justified by the Unit Operator and
approved by the Director and the State Commissioner, No land shall be
excluded from a participating area on account of depletion of the unitized

substances.

-11-
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It 1s the intent of this sectlon that arparticipating area shall
represent the area known or reasonably estimated to be productive in paying

quantities; but, regardless of any revision of the participating ares,

~nothing herein contained shall be construed -as requiring sny retroactive

ad justment for production obtained prior to the effective date of the
revision of- the participating area. ‘

In the absence of agreement at any time between the Unit Operator

"and the Director and the State Commissioner as to the proper definition or

redefinition of a participating area, or until a participating area has,
or areas have, been establlshed as provided herein, the bortion of all
payments affected thereby may be impounded in a manner mutually acceptable
to the owners of‘working interests, except royalties due the United States

and the State of New México; which shall be determined by the Supervisor

-for Federal lands and the State Commissioner for State lands and the State

Commission as to privately owned lands and the amount thereof deposited,
as directed by the Supervisor and the¢State Commissioner respectively, to
be held as unearned money until a. participating area is finally approved
and then applied as earned or returned in accordance with a determination
of the sum due as Federal and State royalty on the basis of such approved
participating areé.

Whenever it is determined, subject to the approval of the Super-

Visor, as to wells drilied on Federal land and of the State Commissioner

as td»wells drilled on State land and the State Commission as to wells on
privately owned lands, that a well drilled under this agreement 1s not
capable of production in paying quantities aﬁd‘ihclusion of the land on
which 1t 1s situated in a participating area is unwarrénted, production
from such well shall, for the purposes of settlement among all parties
other than working interest owners, be allocated to the land on which the
well 1s located so long as such land is not within a partiecipating area
established for the pool or deposit from which such production 1s obtained.
Settlement for working interest benefits from such a well shall be made as
provided in the unit operating ggreement.

12, ALLOCATION OF PRODUCTION. All unitized substances produced
from eachh participating area established under this agreement, except any

part thereof used in conformity with good operating practices within the
-12-
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unitized area for drilling, operating, camp and other production or develop-
ment purposes, for repressuring or recycling in accordance with a plan of
development approved by the Supervisor, and State Commissioner and the

State Commission, or unavoidably lost, shall be deemed to be prﬁduced
edﬁally on an acreage basis from the several tracts of unitized land of

the participating area established for such production and, for.the pur-

-pose of determining any benefits accruing under this agreement, each such

“tract of unitized land shall have allocated to it such percentage of said

pfoduction as the number of acres of such tract 1nciuded in said partici-»
pating area bears to the total acres of unitized land in sald partieci-
pating area, except that allocation of preduction hereunder for purposes
other than for séttlement of the royalty, overriding royalty, or payment
out of productlion oblligations of the respective wérking intefest ownérs,
shall be on the basis prescribed in the unit operating agreement whether

in conformity with the basis of allocation herein set forth or otherwise.

It is hereby agresd that production of unitized substances from a partici-

pating area shall be allocated as provided hereln regardless of whether
any wells are drilled on any particular part or tract of said participating
area, If any gas produced from one participating area is used for re-
pressurling or recycling purposes in another participating area, the first
gas withdrawn from such last-mentioned participating area for sale during
the life of this agreement shall be considered to be the gas so transferred
until an amount equal to that transferred shall be so produced for sale and
such gas shall be allocated to the participating area from which initially
pProduced as constituted at the time of such final production.

| 13. DEVELCPMENT OR OPERATION OF NON-PARTICIPATING LAND .OR
FORMATI@NS. Any party or parties hereto owning or controlling the working
Interests 1n any unitized land having thereon a regular well locatlion may
with the approval of the Supervisor as to Federal land, the State Com-
missioner as to State land, and “he State Commission as to privately owned
land, and subject to the provisions of the Unit Operating Agreement, at such
party's or parties! sole risk, costs, and expense drill a well at such lo-
cation on such land to test any formation for which a participating area

has not been established or to test any formation for which a participa-

ting area has been established if such location is not within said
-13-
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" shall hereafter be entitled to the right to take in kind their share of

participating area, or drill any well not mutually agreed to by all in-
terested parties, unless within 90 days of recelpt of notice from said
party of nis intention to drill the well the Unit Operator elects and
commences to drill such a well in 1ike manner as other wells are drilled
by the Unit Operator under this agreement .

If any well drilled as aforesald by a working interest owner re-
sults in production such that the 1and upon which it 1is situated may properly
be included in a participating area, such participating area shall be es-
tablished or enlarged as provided in this agreement and the well shall |
thereafter be operated by the Unit Operator in accordance with the terms
of this agreement and the unit openating agreement.

If any well drilled as aforesald by a working interest owner ob-
tains production in quantities insufficient to Justify the inclusion in
a participating area of the land upon which such well 1s situated, such
well may be operated and produced by the party drilling the same subject
to the conservation requirements of this zgreemcnt. The r*yal
amount or value of production from any such well shall be paid as specified
in the underlying lease and agreements affected. o

14, ROYALTY SETTLEMENT, The United States and any State and all
royalty ouners who, under existing contract, are entitled to take in kind

a share of the substances now unitized hereunder produced from any tract,

the unitized substances allocated to such tract, and Unit Operator, or in
case of the operation of a well by a working interest owner as herein in
speclal cases provided for, such working interest owner, shall make de-
liveries of such royalty share taken in kind in conformity with the :-ap-
plicable contracts, laws, and regulations. Settlement for royalty in-
terest not taken in kind shall be made by working interest owners respon-
sible therefor under existing contracts, laws and regulations on or before
the last day of each month for unitized substances produced during the
preceding calendar month; provided, however, that nothing herein contained
shall operate to relieve the lessees of any land from their respective
lease obligations for the payment of any royalties due under their leases.
If gas obtained from lands not subject to this agreement is 1n-

troduced into any participating area hereunder, for use in repressuring,
~14-
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stimulation of production, or 1increasling ultimate recovery, which shall be
in conformity with a plan first approved by the Supervisor, the State Com-

missioner, and the State Commlssion, a like amount of gas, after settlement

as herein provided for any gas transferred from any other participating

aréa and with due allowance for loss or depletlion from any cause, may be

withdrawn from the formation into which the gas was introduced, royalty

free as to dry gas, but not as to the products extracted therefrom; pro-

thé plan of oper@tions or as may otherwise be consented to by the Super-.
viéor; the State Commissionér‘ahd the State Commission és confofming:to
gdéd’petroleum engineering pféctice; and provided further, that such r;ght
6f;withdrawalAshall terminate on the termination of this unit agreemen£.
Royalty due the United States shall be computed as pro&ided in
the 6perating regulations andipaid in yélﬁe or delivered in kind &s to all
unitized substances on the basis of the amounts thereof allocatedAto
unﬁtizgd Federal laﬁd as»prov;ded’herein;at the rates specifled in the .
respective Federal 1easeé; or at such lower rate dr rates as may be
authorized by law or regulation; provided, that for leases on which the
royalty rate depends on the dally average production per well, sa&d average
pr&duction shall be determined in accordance with tﬁe operating regulations
as:though each participating area were a single consolidated lease. §
Royalty due on accoﬁnt of State and privately qwned lands shall o
beicomputed and paid on the basis of all unitized substanées allocated to

such lands.

15. RENTAL SETTLEMENT, Rental or minimum royalties due on

leases committed hereto shall be paid by working interest owners responsi-

ble therefor under existing contracts, laws, and regulations, provided

that nothing herein contained shall operate to relieve the lessees of any

land from their respective lease obligations for the payment of any rental

or minimum royalty in lieu therecf due under their leases. Rental or

minimum royalty for lands of the United States subject to this agreement

gshall be paid at the rate specified in the respective leases from the

United States unless such rental or minimum royalty is waived, suspended,

or reduced by law or by approval ¢f the Secretary or his duly authorized
! | representative,

f | | -15-




Rentals on State of New Mexico lands subject to this agreement
shall be pald at the rates specified in the respegtive leases,

With respect to any lease on non~Federal land containing pro-
visions which would terninate such lease unless drilling operations were
within the time thereiln specifled commenced upon the land covered thereby
or rentals pald for the privilege of deferring such drilliing operations,
the rentals requlred thereby shall, notwithstanding any other -provision
of this agreement, be deemed to accfue and becomeApayable during the term

thereof as extended by this agreement and thereafter until the required

portion of such . land 1is ihcluded within a particlpating area,
16. CONSERVATION., Operations hereunder and production of
unltized substances shall be conducted to provide for the most economical

and efficient recovery of sald substances without waste, as defined by

or pursuant to State or Federal law or regulation.

17. DRAINAGE. The Unit Operator shall take appropriate and
adequate measures to prevent drainage of unitized substances from unitized
lénd by wells on landknotAsubJecﬁ to this agreement, 6r, with the consent
of the Director «nd the State Commlssioner, pursuant to applicable regﬁla-
tions pay a fair and reasonable compensatory royalty.

18. LEASES AND CONTRACTS CONFORMED AND EXTENDED, The terms,
conditions, and pfovisions of all leases, subleases, and other contracts
relating to explcration, drilling, development, or operation for oil or
gas of lands committed to this agreement are hereby expressly modifiled
aﬁd amended to the extent necessary to make’the same conform to the pro-
visions hereof, but étherwiée to remain in full force and effect; and the
parties hereto hereby consent that the Secretary as to Federal leases and
the State Commlissioner as to State leases shall and each by his approval
hereof, or by the approval hereof by hls duly authorized representative,
does hereby establish, alter, change, or revoke the drilling, produclng,

""" cyalty requirements of Federal and State
leases ccmmitted hereto and the regulations in respect thereto to conform
said requirements to the provisions of this agreement, and, without limiting

the generality ol the foregoing, all leases, subleases, and contracts are

~-16-~
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particularly modified in accordance with the following:

(a) The development and operation of lands subject to this
agreement under the terms hareof shall be deemed full pérformance
of all obligations for development and operation with respect to
each and every part or separately owned tract subject to this
: agreemeﬂt, regardless of whether there is any development of any
particular part or tract of the unit area, notwithstanding any-
thing to. the .contrary 1in any lease, operating agreement or other
contract by and between the partlies hereto, or thelr respective
predecessors 1in interest, or any of them.

(b) Driiling and producing operations performed herepnder
upon any tract of unitized lgnds wili be accepted and deemed to
be performed upon and for the benefit of each-and every tract of
unitized;land, and ﬁo iease shall be deemed to expire by reasoh
of failure to drill or produce wells situated on. the land therein
embraced.

‘ (e) Suspension of drilling or produecing opérations on all
unitized lands pursuant to direction or conseﬁt of the Secretary
and the State Commissioner, or their duly authorized representative,
shall be deemed to constitute such suspension pursuant to such
direction or consent as to each and every tract of unitized lang.

(@) Each lease, sublease or contract relating to the explora-
tion, drilling, development or operation for oll or gas of lands,
other than those of the United States and State of New Mexico, com-
mitted to this agreement, which, by 1ts terms might expire prior
to the termination of thils agreement, 1s hereby extended beyond
any such term so provided therein so that it shall be continued in
full force and effect for and during the term of this agreement,.

(e) Any Federal lease for a fixed term of twenty (20) years or
any renewal thereof or any part of such lease which is madevsubject
to this agreement shall continue in force beyond the term provided
therein until the termination hereof. Any other Federal lease com-
mitted hereto shall continue in force beyond the term so provided
therein or by law as to the land committed so long ag/such lease re-

mains subject hereto, provided that production 1s had in paying

-17-




quantities under this unit agreement prior to the expiration date of
the term of such lease,

(f) Each sublease or contract relating to the operaticn and
development of unitized substances from lands of the United States
committed to this agreement, which by its terms would expire prior
to the time at which the underlying lease, as extended by the im-
medlately preceding paragraph, will expire, 1s hereby extended be-

" yond any such term so provided therein so that it shall be continued
lin full force and effect for and during the term of the underlying
lease as-such term is herein extended.

(g) Any lease embracing lands of the State of New Mexico which
 is;made subject to this agreement, shall continue in force beyond

thehterm provided thereln as to the lands committed hereto until the

termination hereof.

(h) The segregation of any Federal lease committed to this agree- P

ment is goVerned by the following provision in the fourth paragraph
of séc. 17(b) of the Act, as amended by the Act of July 29, 1954 :
(68 stat. 583, 585): "Any (Federal) lease hereafter committed to §
such (unit) plan embracing lands that are in part within and in part
.outside of the area cdvered by any such plan shali be segregated into

separate leases as to the lands committed and the lands not committed

as of the effective date of unitization: Provided; however, that any §
such lease as to the nonunitized portion shall continue in force énd
effect for the term thereof but for‘not less than two years from the ;
date of such segregation and so longvthereafter as oll or gas is pro-
duced in paying quantities."

(1) Any lease embracing lands of the State of New Mexlco having
only a portion of its lands committed hereto, shall be segregated as
to thne portion committed and the portion not committed, and the Terms
of such lease shall apply separately to such segregated portions com-
mencing as of the effective date hereof; provided, however, notwith-
standing any of the provisions of this agreement to the contrary any
lease embracing lands of the State of New Mexico having only a portion

of its lands commltted hereto shall continue in full force and effect

~18-
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beyond the term provided therein as to all lands embraced in such
lease, 1if 01l or gas 1s discovered and 1s capable of being produced

in paying quantities from some part of the lands embraced in such
lease at the explration of the secondary term of such lease; or if,

at the expiration of the secondary term, the Lessee or the Unit
Operator 1s then engaged 1in bona fide drilling or reworking operatilons
on gome part of the lands embraced in such lease, the same, as to

so long as such operations are being diligently prosecuted, and if

they result in the production of oil or gas, said lease shall con-
- tinue in full force and effect as to all of the lands embraced there-
in, so long thereafter as olil or gas in paying quantitiés is being
produced from any portion of said lands.
19, COVENA&TS RUN WITH PAND. The covenants herein shall be con-
strued to be covenants running with the land with respect to the interest
of the parties hereto and thelr successors in interest until this agree-
ment: terminates, and any grant, transfer, or conveyance, of inﬁerest in
land or leases subject hereto shall be and hereby is conditioned upon the
-assumption 6f all privileges and obligations hereunder by the grantee,
transferee, or other successor in interest. No assignment or transfer of
any working interest, royalty, or other interest subject hereto shall be
binding upon Unit Operator until the first day of the calendar month after
Unit Operator i1s furnished with the original, photostatic, or certified
copy oif the instrument of transfer.
20, EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM. This agreement shall become ef-
fective upon approval by the Director and the State Commissioner or their
duly authorized representatlves as of the date of approval by the Director
and shall terminate five (5) years from sald effective date unless:
(a) such date of expiration 1s extended by the Director and the
State Commigsioner, or

(b) 1t is reasonably determined prior to the expiration of the
fixed term or any extension thereof that the unitized land is 1in-
capable of production of unitized substances in paying quantities in

the formations tested hereunder and after notice of intention to
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terminate the agreement on such ground is given by the Unit Opera-

tor to all parties in interest at thelr last known addresses; the

i

agreement is terminated with the approval of the Director and State
5 Commissioner, or

ﬁ’i : (c} a valﬁable discovery of unitized substances has been made

| on unitized land during saild initial term or any extenslon thereof,

f
1 [‘ in which event the agreement shall remain in effect for such term

~and 8o iong &as unitlzed substanges can be produced in paying quanti-
‘ties, i.e., in this particular instance in quantities sufficientbto

pay for the cost of producing same from wells on unitized land within
any participating area established hereunder and, should production
cease, S0 long thereafter as diligent operations are in progress for

the restératioh of production or discovery of new production and so

long thereafter as the unitized substances so discovered can be produced
as aforesaid, or

(a) 1t 1is terminated as heretofore provided in this agreemecnt. i

This agréement may be terminated at any time by not less than i I
75 per centum, on an acreage basis, of the owners of working interests |
signatory hereto, with the approval of the Director and State Commissioner;
nbtice of any such‘approval to be g;yen by the Unit Operator to all‘béfﬁiéS"
hareto.

21. RATE OF PROSPECTING, DEVELOPMENT, AND PRODUCTION. The

Director is hereby vested with authority to alter or modify from time to

time in his discretion the quantity and rate of production under this agree-
ment when such quantity and rate is not fixed pursuant to Federal or State

law or does not conform to any state-wide voluntary conservation or alloca-

tion program, which 1s established, recognized, and generally adhered to

by the maJority of operators in such State, such authority being hereby

iimited to alteration or modification in the public interest, the purpose
thereof and the public interest to be served thereby to be stated in the
order of alteration or modification. Without-regard to the foregoling, the
Director is also hereby vested with authority to alter or modify from

time To time in his discretion the rate of prospecting and development

and the quantity and rate of production under thls agreement when such
alteration or modification 1s in the interest of attaining the conserva-

tion objectives stated in this agreement and i1s not in violation of any
-20~
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applicable Federal or State law,

Powers 1In this section vested in the Director shall only be
exercised after notlce to Unit Operator and opportunity for hearing to
be held not less than 15 days from notice.

22, CONFLICT OF SUPERVISION, Nelther the’Unit Operator nor
the working interest owners nor any of them shall be subject to any for-
feiture, termination or expiration of any rights hereunder or under any
leases or contracts subject hereto; or to any penalty or liability on ac-
count of delay or failure in whole or in part to comnly Aw;*_t” any appli-
cable provision thereof to the extent that the Unit Operator, working
interest owners or any of them are hindered, delayed or prevented from
complying therewith by reason of fallure of the Unit Operator to obtain
in the exercise of due diligence, the concurrence of proper representatives
of the United States and proper representatives of the State of New Mexlco
in and about any matters or thing concerning which 1t is required hérein
that such concurrence be obtaine&. The parties hereto; 1ncluding the State
Commission, agree that allwpowers and authority vested in the State Com-
mission in and by aﬂ& provisions of this agreement are vested in the State
Commission and shall be exercised by 1t pursuant to the provisions of the
laws of the State of New Mexlico and subject in any case to appeal or judi-
cial review as may now or hereafter be provided by the laws of the State
of New Mexico.

23, APPEARANCES. Unit Operator shall, after notice to other
parties affected, have the right to appear for and on behalf of any and
all interests affected hereby before the Department of the Interior, the
Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico and the New Mexico
01l Conservation Commission and to appeal from orders issued under the
regulations of said Department, the State Commlission or State Commissioner
or to apply for relief from any of said regulations or in any proceedings
relative to cperations before the Department of the Interior, the State
Commissioner, or State Commission or any other legally constituted
authority; provided, however, that any other interested party shall also
have the right at his own expense to be heard in any such proceedilng.

24, NOTICES., All notices, demands or statements required here-
under to be given or rendered to the parties hereto shall be deemed fully

given if given in writing and personally delivered to the party or sent
21~
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by postpaid regilstered or certified mail, addressed to such party or
parties at theilr respective addresses set forth in connection with the
slgnatures hereto or to the ratification or consent hereof or to such
other address as any such party may have furnished in Qriting to party
sending the notice, demand or statement,

_ 25, NO WAIVER OF CERTAIN RIGHTS. Nothing in this agreement
contained shall be construed as a walver by any party heretoc of the right

to assert any legal or constitutional right or defense as to the validity

or invalidity of any law of the State wherein sald unitized lands are

located, or of the United States, or regulations issued thereunder in any

“way affecting such party, or as a'waiver by any such party of any right

‘beyond his or its authority to waive.

‘ 26. UNAVQIDABLE DELAY. All obligations under this agreement -
requiring the Unit Operator to commence or continue drilling or to operate
on or produce unitized substances from any of tﬁe lands covered by this
agreement shall be suspended while, but only so long as, the Unit Operatog
desplte the exerclise of due caie and diligence is prevented Trom complying
with such obligations, in whole or in part, by strikes, acts of God,
Federal, State, or municipal law or agencles; unavoidable accidents, un-
controllable delays in transportatio§, inability to obtain necessary
materials in opén market, or other matters beyond the reasonable control
of the Unit Operator whether similar to matters herein enumberated or not,

27. FAIR EMPLOYMENT. In connection with the performance of
work under this agreement, the Unit Operatorbagrées not to discriminate -
against any employee or épplicant for employment because of race, religilon,.
color, or national origin. The aforesaid provision shall include, but not
be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or trans-
fer; recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates
of pay or cther forms of compensation; and selection for training, in-
cluding apprenticeship. The Unit Operator agrees to post bercafter in
conspicuous places, available for employees and applicants for employ-
ment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the
provisions of the non-discrimination clause,

The Unit Operator agrees to lnsert the foregoing provision in
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all sub-contracts hereunder, except sub-contracts for standard commercial
supplies or raw materials.

28, 1LOSS OF TITLE, In the event title to any tract of unitized
land shall fail and the true owner cannot be Induced to join 1in thils unit
agreement, éuch tract shall be automaticall& regarded as ﬁot committed
‘hereto and there shall be such readjustment of future costs and benefits

a8 may be required on sccount of the loss of such title. In the event of

subject thereto, payment or deiivery on account thereof may be withheld
‘without liability for interest until the dispute 1s finally settled;
provided, that, as to Federal and State land or leases, no payments of
funds due the United States or the State of New Mexico should be with-
~ held, but such funds of the United States shall be deposited as directed
by the Supervisor and ;uch‘funds of the State of‘New Mexic& shall be de-
posited as directed by the State Commissioner to be held as unearned mone&
~ pending final settlement of the title dispute, and then applied as earned
or returned in accordance with such final settlement.

Unit Operator éé such 1s relieved,from’any responsibility for any
defect or failure of any title hereunder.

. 29. NON-JOINDER AND SUBSEQUENT JOINDER, If the owner of any
substantial interest in a tract within the unit area falls or refuses to
subscribe or consent to this agreement, the owner of the working interest
in that tract may withdraw said tract from this agreement by written notlce
to the Director, the State Commissicner, and the Unit Operator prior to
the-approval of this agreement by the Director. Any oil or,gas_interests
in lands within the unit area not committed hereto prior to submission of
this agreement for final approval may thereafter be committed hereto by
the owner or owners thereof subscribing or consenting to thié agreement,
and, 1f the interest is a working interest, by the owner of such interest
also subscribing to the unit operating agreement, After operations are
commenced hereunder, the subsequent joinder, as provided in this section,
by a working interest owner is subject to such requirements or approvals,
if any, pertaining to such joinder, as may be provided for in the unit

operating agreement., After final approval hereof joinder by a non-working
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% interest owner must be consented to in wrlting by the working interest

owner committed hereto snd responsible for the payment of any benefits
that may accrue hereunder in behalf of such non-working interest., Joinder
by any owner of a non-working interest, at any time, must be accompanied

by appropriate Jolinder by the owner of the corresponding working interest

in order for the interest to be regarded as effectively commlitted hereto,
Joinder to the unit agreement by a working-interest owner, at any time,
must be accompanied by appropriate joinder to the unit operating agreement,

if more than one committed working-interest owner 1s involved, in order

——For-the interest to be regarded z2s effectively committed to this unit
agreement, Except as may otherwise herein bé provided subsequent joinders
to this agreement shall be effective as of the first day éf the month
follpwing the filing with the Supervisor, the State Commissioner and the
State Commission of duly executed counterparts of all or any papers neces-
sary to establish effective commitment of any tract to this agreement un-
1ess<6bjection to such Jeinler is duly made within 60 days by fhe Director,
State Cémmissioner, or State Commission. _

L» 30. COUNTERPARTS. This agreement may be executed in any*humber
of counterparts no one of which needs to be executed by all partieé or may
be ratified or consented to by separate instrument in writing specifically i
referring hereto and shall be-binding_upon all those partles who have
executed such a counterpart, ratification, or consent hereto with the same
fofce and effect as if all such parties had signed the same document and
regardless of whether or not it 1s executed by all other parties owning
or clalming an interest in the landa within the above-described unit area.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused thls agree-

ment to be executed and set opposite their respective names the date of

execution,
GULF OIL CORPORATION
ATTEST:
= B:y
Asslstant Secretary Attorney-in-Fact

UNIT OPERATOR & WORKING INTEREST OWNER
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; ) EXHIBIT "B"
. SCHEDULE SHOWING THE PERCENTAGE AND KIND
OF OWNERSHIP OF ALL LANDS IN THE
NORTH CAVERNS UNIT AREA, EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

mmmwmw No. & Overriding Royalty

Description of Numbar of Expiration Basic Royalty or Production Pay- Working Interest
Land Acres Date of lease and Percentage lessee of Record ment and Percentags and Percentage
FEDERAL LANDS ‘
T-22-S, R-24-E, NMPM
Sec. 35: W/2 sWw/bh & . LC-064520 Northern Natural Ges C. A. Hobbs et ux, Northern Netural Ges
sw/b Nw/4 120.00 8-31-61° U.S.A. - 124% Producing Company Hazel Hobbs (until Producing Company -
A $60,000 is paid) 3% ALl
Sec. 35: N/2 NW/4; : C. A. Hobbs et ux, Gulf Oil Corporation 50%
SE/L W/k4, S/2 NE/4 _ LC-06L4520-A Phillips Petroleum Hazel Hobbs (until Phillips Petroleum
SE/k & Ef2 sW/b 440.00 8-31-6L U.S.A. - 125%  Company $132,000 is paid) 2% Company - 50%
Sec. 27: S/2 : LC-064535 Callie C. Mclean et vir,
Sec. 34: A1l 950.00 7-31-60 U.S.A. - 124% Gulf 0il Corporation M. A, Mclean (until
M $620,000 is paid) 3% Gulf Oil Corp. - 211
T-23-S, R-24-E, NMPM
Sec. 10: All 640.00 LC-0677Lh Tidewater Oil Co.- 1/2 John W. Gates et ux, Tidewater 0il Co - 50%
10-30-61 U.S.A. = 1244  Texaco Seaboard Inc. - Jane M. Gates (until Texaco Seaboard Inc - S0%
1/2 $440,000 is paid) 3%
Sec. 1k: W/2 NE/b4 LC-0T19k2 Merrill Max Seaton et
& W/2 SE/k 560.00 2-28-62 U.S.A. - 128% Gulf Oil Corporation  ux, Winifred T.Seaton
; _ (until $680,000 is
paid) 3% Gulf 0il Corp. - A1
Sec. 11: N/2, NW/L, : NM-0512 : Flossie D. Barmes et
N/2 NE/4 & SW/h NE/4  600.00 11-30-61 U.S.A. - 124% Gulf Oil Corporation  vir, Arthur J.Barmes
(Until $320,000 is
raid) 3% Gulf Oil Corp. - ALl




PAGE 2.

& widow 14
N. G. Cummings 4 of 1

) Serial No. & Overriding Royslty
Tract Deseription of Number of Expiration Basic Royalty or Production Pay- Working Interest
Ko. Land Acres Date of Leese and Percentage lessee of Record ment and Percentage and Percentage
FEDERAL LANDS (Continued)
T-23-S, R-24-E, NMPM
T Sec. 1l: SE/4 SE/4 4o.00 NM-0512-B Flossie D. Barmes et
- 11-30-61 U.S.A. - 124% A. C. Holder vir.Arthur J. Barmes
{ (Until $320,000 is
paid) *same reserva- A. C. Holder 50%
tion as Tract 6 3% Gulf Oil Corporation 50%
8 Se¢. 15: A1l 640.00 "NM-03817 Northern Natural Gas Peggy P. Jennings et
; . 4-30-62 U.S.A. - 124%  Producing Company vir Howard W. Jenn- Northern Natural Gas
| . ings 3% Producing Company  All
T-22-S, R-24-E, NMPM
9 Sec. 26: S/2 « NM-0L4527 _ Northern Natural Gas  Jume C. Deascn et vir,  Northern Natural Gas
Sec. 35: N/2 NE/b4 400.00 9-30-61 U.S.A. - 124% Producing Company T. J. Deason, Jr.(Until Producing Company  50%
, $348,000 is paid) 2% Phillips Petroleum
Compeany 25%
: Gulf Oil Corporation 25%
T-23-5, R-24-E, NMPM
.h 10 Sec. 1: Lots 3, 4, 5/2 , Ruth McPherson et vir,
sw/k, NM-04529 , - * Leslie A. McPherson
Sec. 12: W/2 635.71 9-30-61 U.S.A. - 124% Gulf Oil Corporation (Until $1,017,890 is
paid) 3%  Gulf Oil Corporation All
11 Sec. 3: All 634.28 NM-063737 The Superior Mrs. W. H. Milner et
. , , 4-30-62 U.S.A. - 124% 01l Company vir, W. H. Milper
, _ o (Until $1,884,130 is
paid) 3%
i, Heirs or devisees of :
. wom.w,wnmnumu.m:. deceas- The Superior O0il Co. 5Un
v ed & Mary R.Brainard, Gulf Oil Corp. 50%

11l Federal Tracts

5,669.59 or 89.96% of Unit Area

o AR
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Serial No. & Overriding Royslty

Tract ummawMW¢wos of Number of  Expiration . Besic Royalty or Production Pay- Working Interest
No. . - Land beres Date of Lease  and Percentage Lessee of Record ment and Percentage and Percentage
STATE LANDS
. ?-23-5, R-24-E, NMPM | ,
12 Section 2: NE/4 and | E-5142 , Hondo Oil and Hondo Oil and
( s/2 W /k | 236.12 4-9-61 State - 124%  Gas Company None Gas Company AL
13 Section 2: SE/b, S/2 , E-10089-A-1 - Phillips Petroleum
sw/l & WW/4 SW/b 280.00 5-15-66 State - 124%  Phillips Petroleum Co. None Company 50%
, , | Gulf Cil Corp. 50%
14-A4  Section 2: Lots 3, L4, | 0G-6176 |
14-B  NE/b sw/k '116.52 11-17-59 State - 124%  Gulf Oil Corporation  None Gulf 0il Corp. Al
3 State Tracts 632.64 or 10.04% of Unit Area
TOTAL: 1k Tracts 6,302.63 in Entire Unit Area




GULF OIL CORPORATION

LAW DEPARTMEMT

R

DAVIO T.SEARLS to A P f e
GENERAL COUNSEL ROSWELL, NEW MEXICO
PITTSBURGH, PA.
DAVID W. STEPHENS ADGRESS ALt CORRESPONDENCE IN CARE OF
PORT WORTH, TEXAS. ' P.0. BOX 669, LAW DEPARTMENT
WILLIAM V. KASTLER April 8’ 1960

’becretary—Dlrector
New Mexico 0311 Conservation Commission
P.- 0. Box 871 4 : S
Santa Fe, New Mexilco : . =

Re: In the Matter of the Application of BEF : 7
Gulf 0il Corporation for the approval 5
of the Unit Agreement for the develop-
ment and operation of the North Caverns
Unit Area, Eddy County, New Mexlco.

- Dear Sir: ’j s

Gulf 0il Corporation respectfully herein requests the Com-
mission's approval of the North Caverns Unit Agreement, coples of
which are attached hereto, on thé grounds that the proposed unit 1
.plan will in principle tend. to .promcte- the conservabtion of oil and i Co.
gas and the prevention of waste. In support of its application, i
Gulf states as follows:

1. That the Unit Area shall be:

T-22-8, R-24-E, N.M,P.il, T-23-S, R-24-E, N,M.P.M, /

Sec. 26: S/2 See, 1: W/?
27: /2 2: All
34: A1 3: All
35: A1l 10: A1l
11: All

12: W/2 .

14: N/2, sSW/4, W/2 SE/4
$,30% 15: All

conbaining 6,302.63 acres, more or less,

2. That the Unit Area may by the terms and provisions of
the Unit Agreement be enlarged or contracted as pro-
vided but that the administrative approval for any ex-
pansion or contraction of the Unit Area must also be
obtained from the Secretary-Director of the 0il Conser-
vation Commission.

. 3. That the Unit Operator shall file with the Commission
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Secretary-Director
New Mexlco 0il Conservation Commission
April 8, 1960

Page 2

. That any party owning rights in the unitized substances

North Caverns Unit Agreement within 30 days after the
effective date thereof. :

who does not commit such rights to saild Unit Agreement
before the effective date thereof may thereafter become
a party thereto by subscribing to such agreement or
counterpart thereof or by ratifying the same. The Unit
Operator shall file with the Commission within 30 days
an original of any such counterpart or ratification.

That the Order of the Commission should become effective
upon the apprcval of said Unit Agreement by the Director
of the United States Geological Survey and the Commis-
sioner of Public Lands for the State of New Mexico, and
shall terminate ipso facto upon the termination of said
Unit Agreement. ~The last Unit Operator shall immediately
no%ify the Commission in writing of such termination,

The Unit test well is located in the NW/4 of the SW/4 of Sec-

tion 11~

238-24E. The well is projected to a depth adequate to test

the Devonian formation, not to exceed 11,750 feet.

Gulf 01l Corporation has previousiy obtained a preliminary
designation of Unit Area from the Acting Director of the United
States Geologlical Survey, a verifax copy of which is attached here-

to.
It

is requested that this matter be set for hearing before

an examiner at an early date,

WVK:ejl

Respectfully submitted,

GULF OIL CORPORATION

ot 5

William V., Kastler
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. If ovmmership of any interest in a tract i{s divided, show in Exhibit "B"

; ™ W REPLY AIPRR TO

]
- UNITED STATES

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR Lo ~

GEOLOGICAL SURVEY D

WASHINGTON 28, D.C. y .

FEB1r1960 (St ive

Gulf 0il Corporation ‘ ¢ Ny

P. 0. Drawer 669 thl ¢, 196C

Roswell, New Mexico

CAltention: Hr, W. A, Shelishear " Ry ue VY
Gent lement

Your application of January 22, 1960, filed with the :
Regional Oil and Gas Supervisor, Roswell, New Mexico requests the ' i
designation of 6,302,633 acres, more or less, in Eddy County, New ’
Mexico, as Iogicully subject to exploration and development under . .
the unitization provisions of the Mineral Leasing Act, as amended, b4

Pursuant to the unit plan regulations of December 22, 1950,
(30 Crr 226,3), the land outlined in your plat marked North Cmrns
Unit Ares, Eddy County, New Hexico,_tl hcnby dezignated as a logical
unit area.

G Sl e

TP

Your proposed form of unit agreement., which substentially
follows the June 1957 reprint of the standard form and contains modi-
fications required by the State of Mew Mexico, is acceptable. The
description of the unit ares in Section 2 of the agreement may be
made by reference to official Buresu of Land Management survey, or by
reference to Exhibit "A", The proposed initial exploratory weil to
test formations of Dovoniaa age or to & depth of 11,750 feet, is ac-
ceptable,

In the sbsence of sany other type of land requiring special
provisions or any other objections not now apparent, a duly executed
unit agreement will be approved if submitted in approvable status
within a reasonable period of time, When the executed agreement is
transmitted to the Supervisor for approval, include the latest status
of sll acresge :hoving the current owners of all interests inwelved.

the percentage of each such owner, Notice is hereby given that the .
right 1s reserved to deny approval of any executed agreement submitted = -
which, in our opinion, does not have the full commitment of sufficient’
lands to afford effective control of unit operations,

Very truly yours,

Aating Director
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UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 34 e
GEOLOGICAL SURVEY
WASHI{NGTON 28, D.C.
FEB 1 * 1960

Gulf 0il Corporation
P. O, Drawer 669
Roswell, New Mexico

Attention: Mr, W. A, Shellshear '_

.Gentlemen: == ,-; S S e ;;

Your spplication of Jsnuary 22, 1960, filed with the
chional 011 and Gas Supervisor, Roswell, New Mexico requests the B
designation of 6,302,63 acres, wore or 1enl, in Eddy County, New 2
Mexico, as logicully subject to exploration and development under
the unitization provisions of the Mineral Leasing Act, as unended

Pursusnt to the unit plan regulationl‘of December 22, 1950,
(30 CFR 226,3), the land outlineéd in your plat marked North Caverns
Unit Area, Eddy County, New Hexico, is hereby designated as a logical
unit area.

Your proposed form of unit agreement, which substantially ' i

follows the June 1957 reprint of the standard form and contains modi- o
fications required by the State of New Mexico, i3 acceptable, The

description of the unit area in Section 2 of the agreement may be

made by reference to official Bureau of Land Management survey, or by
reference to Exhibit "A". The proposed initial exploratory well to ;
test formations of Devonian age or to & depth of 11,750 feet, is ac- ¥
ceptable. : o

In the absence of any other type of land requiring specjial
provisions or any other objections not now apparent, a duly executed
unit agreewment will be approved ifisubmitted in approvable status
within & reasonsable period of time, When the executed agreement is
transmitted to the Supervisor for approval, include the latest status
of all acreage showing the current owners of all interests involved,
If ownership of any interest in a tract is divided, show in Exhibit “B"
the percentage of each such owner,' Notice is hereby given that the
right is reserved to deny approval:of any executed sgreement submitted
which, in our opinion, does not have the full commitment of sufficient
lands to afford effective control of unit operations.

e
RN VA

Very truly yours,
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